ORIGINAL SIGNATURES

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD LTC APPLICATION FOR PERMIT
July 2012 Edition /4[ 50)%

LONG-TERM CARE
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND C%Q%WwaD

This Section must be completed for all projects.

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT FEB 14 2014
Project Type HEALTH FACILITIES &
[Check one] [check one] SERVICES REVIEW ROARD
] Establishment of a new LTC facility
O General Long-term Care ] Establishment of new LTC services
X Expansion of an existing LTC facility or
0 Specialized Long-term Care service

X

Modernization of an existing facility

Narrative Description

Provide in the space below, a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done, NOT WHY it is
being done. If the project site does NOT have a street address, include a legal description of the site. Include the
rationale regarding the project’s classification as substantive or non-substantive.

include: the number and type of beds involved; the actions proposed (establishment, expansion and/or
modernization); the ESTIMATED total project cost and the funding source(s) for the project.

The Applicant, Neighbors Property, LLC (Owner) and Neighbors Rehabilitation Center,
LLC (Operator/Licensee) together are proposing the renovation Qf the existing 101 licensed
nursing beds and the addition of 30 additional nursing care beds to the existing facility known as
Neighbors Rehabilitation Center located at 811 West 2™ Street, Byron, Ogle County, Planning
Area 141, Illinois. Upon project completion, the total licensed nursing beds will equal 131-beds
in a total of 59,765 gross square feet comprised in a single story structure with a partial
basement. There is 32,622 gsf of existing space (23,013 gsf renovated and 9,609 gsf as is) and
27,143 gsf of newly constructed space. The total project cost is estimated to be $9,018,858 of
which $1,218,858 will be cash and securities and the balance of $7,800,000 will be financed
through a mortgage.

This project is classified as substantive in accordange with 771llinois Administrative
Code, Chapter II of Subchapter b, Section 1125.140 as the project proposes the modernization
along with the addition of beds over and above the 10 percent/20-beds allowance [20 ILCS

3960/12}.
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Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name. Neighbors Rehabilitation Center

Street Address: 811 West 2™ Street

City and Zip Code: Byron, lllinois 61010

County: Ogle Health Service Area: 001 Health Planning Area: 141 Ogle County

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Neighbors Property, LLC

Address: 6840 North Lincoln Avenue

Name of Registered Agent: Thomas Winter, CFO

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Michael Giannini, Manager

CEOQO Address: 6840 North Lincoln Avenue, Lincolnwood, lllinois 60712

Telephone Number: (847) 675-7979

Type of Ownership (Applicant/Co-Applicants)

] Non-profit Corporation O Partnership
| For-profit Corporation O Governmental
X Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship RE Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner,

Primary Contact
[Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries)

Name: John P. Kniery

Title: Health Care Consultant

Company Name: Foley & Associates, Inc.

Address: 133 South 4" Street, Springfield, lllinois 62701

Telephone Number: (217) 544-1551

E-mail Address: jkniery@foleyandassociates.com

Fax Number: {217) 544-3615

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Charles H. Foley, MHSA

Title: Health Care Consultant

Company Name: Folegj Associates, Inc.

Address: 133 South 4™ Street, Springfield, lllinois 62701

Telephone Number: (217) 544-1551

E-mail Address; cfoley(@ andassociates.com

Fax Number: (217) 544-3615
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Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Neighbors Rehabilitation Center

Street Address: 811 West 2™ Street

City and Zip Code: Byron, lllinois 61010

County: Ogle Health Service Area: 001 Health Planning Area: 141 Ogle County

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC

Address: 822 West 2™ Street

Name of Registered Agent: Thomas Winter, CFO

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Michael Giannini, Manager

CEOQO Address: 6840 North Lincoln Avenue, Lincolnwood, lllinois 60712

Telephone Number: (847) 675-7979

Type of Ownership (Applicant/Co-Applicants)

L
X

Non-profit Corporation O Partnership
For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
Limited Liability Company [ Sole Proprietorship ] Other

Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lilinois certificate of good

standing.
Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Primary Contact
[Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries)

Name: John P. Kniery

Title: Health Care Consultant

Company Name: Fole%& Associates, Inc.
Address: 133 South 4

Street, Springfield, lllinois 62701

Telephone Number: {217) 544-1551

E-mail Address: jkniery@foleyandassociates.com

Fax Number: (217) 544-3615

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Charles H. Foley, MHSA

Title: Health Care Consuitant

Company Name: Foley & Associates, Inc.

Address: 133 South 4™ Street, Springfield, lllinois 62701

Telephone Number: (217) 544-1551

E-mail Address: cfole oleyandassoclates.com

Fax Number: (217) 544-3615
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Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance. This person must be an
employee of the applicant.]

Name: Kirsten Barrish .

Title: VP of Physical Plant and Dietary Services

Company Name: S.I.R, Management, Inc.

Address: 6840 North Lincoln Avenue, Lincolnwood, lllinois 60712
Telephone Number: (847) 675-7979

E-mail Address. kbarrish@sirmanagement.com

Fax Number: (847) 675-0555

Site Ownership

[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Neighbors Property, LLC

Address of Site Owner: 6840 North Lincoln Avenue, Lincolnwood, Illinois 60712
Street Address or Legal Description of Site: 6840 North Lincoln Avenue

Proof of ownership or control of the site Is to be provided as . Examples of proof of ownership are property
tax statement, tax assessor's documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation attesting to

S

Operating Identity/Licensee

[Provide this information for each applicable facility, and insert after this page.]
Exact Legal Name: Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC

Address: P.O. Box 585, 811 West 2™ Street, Byron, lllinois 61010

J Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
O For-profit Corporation O Governmental
X Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship ) Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an llinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each co-applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any
person or entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating
in the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any

nancial contribution,
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Flood Plain Requirements
{Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of illinois Executive Order #2005-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.orq. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the
requirements of Hllinois Executive Order #2005-5 (http://www . hfsrb.illinois.gov).

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preservation Act.

State Agency Submittals

The following submittals are up- to- date, as applicable:

All formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been
submitted

(] Alf reports regarding outstanding permits

If the applicant fails to submit updated information for the requirements listed above, the
application for permit will be deemed incomplete.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representatrve(s) of the applicant enmy The

authorized representative(s) are:
o inthe case of a corporation, any two of fts officers or members of its Board of Directors;.

o Inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more manage:s of members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner. when two or
mare general pariners do not exist);

o. Inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneﬁclary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe casa of a sole proprietor, the individual ual that i the propristor.

This Application for Permit s filed on the behalf of N?Amhbm@ PYDDU’H' ue *
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lilinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersighed also certifies that the permit applicaﬁon fee required
for this application Is sent herewith or will be paid upon requast :

RATURE

PRmTED NAME . { PRINTED NAME
. /2 freEpeg— 5’954&1&*5 -
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED WTLE /
Notarization: Notafmaﬁon
Subgg%ed and swom to before me Subscribed and swarn to bafore me -
this 1™ day of 4 Juver bee A3 ‘ © this ™ dayof_@w_wc_u& i3
/ : s p / A

Sap @‘Oﬁaw i S K!MBERLY A WALSH

ARAA AR

) 3
: 3
KIMBERLY A WALSH ' $
Seal NOTARY PUBLIC. STATE OF ILLINOIS $ eal NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLNOIS  $
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES07/15/14  § MY COMMSSIONEXPIRES.07/15114  §:
¢ R PP AR 9
*Insert EXA

legal name of the applicant
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

CERTIFICATION
The application must be signed by the authorized repfesentatwe(s) of the applicant entsty The
authorized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a comporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;}

o Inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managets or members do not exist);

o inthecaseofa partnership, twoofrtsgenera! partners (or the sole general partner whentwoor
more genaeral partners do not exist);

o. inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (orthe sole beneﬁclarywhan two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole propnetor the individual thatlsthe proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behatt of Neiakloors Relnak\itodion (' sater LU wet

in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lliinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this appflication for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the parmit appllcaﬁon fee raqulred
for this application is sent herewith or wiil be paid upon request.

PRINTED NAME 1 PRIN‘I‘ED NAME :
z. ZL S0 &»54&34*5 /—([‘
PRINTED TITLE PRINTEDTILE /
Notarization: ' Notarization:
Subsg&edandswomtobe me Subscribed and swom to bafore me -
this 47> _day of -1 Juvtn e QI3 ~ - this 4 dayof {)yhei b Q013

AN

WAAAAANAANS

KIMBERLY A WALSH
Spal NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:07/15/14

Seal KIMBERLY A WALSH
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:07/15/14

AAAAL AL

AAAAAILA AR
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD LTC APPLICATION FOR PERMIT
July 2012 Edition

SECTION Il - PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES ~
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS '

This Section is applicable to ALL projects.
Criterion 1125.320 — Purpose of the Project

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that-the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant’s definition.

3. ldentify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and eppropriate for the
project.

4. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or imbrove the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s
health status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded if any. For facility projects, include
statements of age and condition and regulatory citations if any. For equipment being replaced, include repair and
maintenance records.

Criterion 1125.330 — Alternatives

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

ALTERNATIVES
1. identify ALL of the altematives to the proposed project:
Alternative options must include:
a. Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;
b. Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing

altemative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes;

C. Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve ali or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and

d. Provide the reasons why the chosen altemative was selected.
2. Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The

comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financial
benefits in both the short term (within one to three years after project compietion) and long |
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term. This may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED
THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS
REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED.

3 The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that
verifies improved quality of care, as available.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD LTC APPLICATION FOR PERMIT
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SECTION It - BED‘ CAPACITY, UTILIZATION AND APPLICABLE REVIEW
CRITERIA

,f-bTh'S Sectlon is apphcab!e to all c osi ab shment expans:on or modermzatmi: of .
LTC categories of service that are subject to CON review, as provided in the illinois Health 5
Facilities Planning Act [20 ILCS 3960). It is comprised of information requirements for each LTC_ v

~category of service, as well as charts: for. each service, md:catmg the review criteria that mustd
-addressed for each action (estabhshment expansson and modermzatlon) After identifying the .
‘applicable rewew criteria for each category of service involved , read the criteria and prov:de the requxre :
.mformat' n, AS APPLICABL .

Criterion 1125.510 - Introduction

Bed Capacity

Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize General Long Term Care must submit
the following information:

ldicate bed cap cit changes by Service:

R Total# o Totat# -
ategory of Service. isti Beds A
" Project
~*Completion”
General Long-Term 101 131
Care

[} Specialized Long-
Term Care

O

*Existing number of beds as authorized by IDPH and posted in the “LTC Bed Inventory” on the
HFSRB website (www.hrfsb.illinois.gov). PLEASE NOTE: ANY bed capacity discrepancy from the
Inventory will result in the application being deemed incomplete.

Utilization

Utilization for the most current CALENDAR YEAR:

X General Long Term 2012 83 33,857
Care 2013*

(] Specialized Long-
Term Care

*2013 data not final. IDPH Facility Profile not due until April 4, 2014.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

Appllcable Review Criteria - Guide .

The review criteria listed below must be addressed, per the LTC rules contained in 77 llI. Adm

LTC APPLICATION FOR PERMIT
July 2012 Edition

Code 1125. See HFSRB’s website to view the subject criteria for each project type -

(http://hfsrb.illinois.gov). To view LTC rules, click on “Board Administrative Rules” and

then click on “77 Ill. Adm. Code 1125".

READ THE APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA QUTLINED BELOW and submit the required
documentation for the criteria, as described in SECTIONS IV and V:

Saction

Subject

Establishment of .520 Background of the Applicant
Services or Facility .530(a) Bed Need Determination

.530(b) Service to Planning Area
Residents

540(a) or (b) + {c} + | Service Demand ~ Establishment

(d) or (e) of General Long Term Care

570(a) & (b) Service Accessibility

.580(2) & (b) Unnecessary Duplication &
Maldistribution

.580(c) impact of Project on Other Area
Providers

580 Staffing Availability

.600 Bed Capacity

.610 Community Related Functions

.620 Project Size

630 Zoning

640 Assurances

.800 Estimated Total Project Cost

Appendix A Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Appendix B Related Project Costs

Appendix C Project Status and Completion
Schedule

Appendix D Project Status and Completion

Schedule

; ackgrou nd: of,the Apphcant
% 40P

iStaff ing. Ava abll "

‘Bed:Capacity 7
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':PI'OJeCt Costs ‘and Sources of ulnds: ]

Related Projéct Costs

Continuum of Care ~ 520 Background of the Applicant
Establishment or .560{a){1) through (3) | Continuum of Care Components
Expansion .580 Staffing Availability

.600 Bed Capacity

610 Community Related Functions

.630 Zoning

.640 Assurances

.800 Estimated Total Project Cost

Appendix A Project Costs and Sources of Funds

| Appendix B Related Project Costs
Appendix C Project Status and Completion
Schedule
Appendix D Project Status and Completion

Schedule

‘Defined Population

Modernization .650(a) Deteriorated Facilities
.650(b) & (c) Documentation
.650(d) Utllization
.600 Bed Capacity
610 Community Related Functions
620 Project Size
630 Zoning
.800 Estimated Total Project Cost
Appendix A Project Costs and Sources of Funds
Appendix B Related Project Costs
Appendix C Project Status and Completion
Schedule
Appendix D Project Status and Completion

Schedule
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SECTION 1V - SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA

GENERAL LONG-TERM CARE

Criterion 1125.520 — Background of the Applicant

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT
The applicant shall provide:

1. Alisting of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if
applicable.

2. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the applicant
during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

4. I, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfil the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest the information has been previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurmred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, {0 update andfor clarify data.

Criterion 1125.530 - Planning Area Need

1. Identify the calculated number of beds needed (excess) in the planning area. See HFSRB
website (http://hfsrb.illinois.gov) and click on "Health Facilities Inventories & Data”.

2. Atltest that the primary purpose of the project is to serve residents of the planning area and
that at least 50% of the patients will come from within the planning area.

3. Provide letters from referral sources (hospitals, physicians, social services and others) that
attest to total number of prospective residents {by zip code of residence) who have received
care at existing LTC facilities located in the area during the 12-month period prior to
submission of the application. Referral sources shall verify their projections and the
methodology used, as described in Section 1125.540.
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Criterion 1125.540 - Service Demand - Establishment of General Long Term Care

1. Document the number of referrals to other facilities, for each proposed category of service,
for each of the latest two years, Documentation of the referrals shall include: resident/patient
origin by zip code; name and specialty of referring physician or identification of another

referral source; and name and location of the recipient LTC facility.

2. Provide letters from referral sources {(hospitals, physicians, social services and others} that
attest to totat number of prospective residents (by zip code of residence) who have received

care at existing LTC facilities located in the area during the 12-month period prior to
submission of the application. Referral sources shall verify their projections and the
methodology used.

3. Estimate the number of prospective residents whom the referral sources will refer annually to

the appficant's facility within a 24-month period after project completion. Please note:

e The anticipated number of referrals cannot exceed the referral sources' documented

historical LTC caseload.

¢ The percentage of project referrals used to justify the proposed expansion cannot
exceed the historical percentage of applicant market share, within a 24-month period

after project completion

e Each referral letter shall contain the referral source’s Chief Executive Officer's
notarized signature, the typed or printed name of the referral source, and the referral

source's address

4, Provide verification by the referral sources that the prospective resident referrals have not
been used to support another pending or approved Certificate of Need {CON) application for

the subject services.

5. If a projected demand for service is based upon rapid population growth in the

applicant facility's existing market area (as experienced annually within the latest 24-

month period), the projected service demand shall be determined as follows:

a. The applicant shali define the facility's market area based upon historical
resident/patient origin data by zip code or census tract;

b. Population projections shall be produced, using, as a base, the population census or

estimate for the most recent year, for county, incorporated place, township or
community area,by the U.S. Bureau of the Census or IDPH;

¢. Projections shall be for a maximum period of 10 years from the date the application is

submitted:;

d. Historical data used to calculate projections shall be for a number of years no less
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than the number of years projected;

e. Projections shall contain documentation of population changes in terms of births,
deaths and net migration for a period of time equal to or in excess of the projection
horizon;

f. Projections shall be for total poputation and specified age groups for the applicant's
market area, as defined by HFSRB, for each category of service in the application
(see the HFSRB Inventory}; and

g. Documentation on projection methodology, data sources, assumptions and special
adjustments shall be submitted to HFSRB.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTAQHMENT— 14,.IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST:PAGE OF THE

Criterion 1125.550 - Service Demand ~ Expansion of General Long-Term Care

The applicant shali document #1 and either #2 or #3:
1. Historical Service Demand

a. An average annual occupancy rate that has equaled or exceeded occupancy
standards for general LTC, as specified in Section 1125.210(c), for each of the
latest two years.

b. If prospective residents have been referred to other facilities in order to receive
the subject services, the applicant shall provide documentation of the referrals,
including completed applications that could not be accepted due to lack of the
subject service and documentation from referral sources, with identification of
those patients by initials and date.

2. Projected Referrals
The applicant shall provide documentation as described in Section 1125.540(d).

3. if a projected demand for service is based upon rapid population growth in the
applicant facility’s existing market area (as experienced annually within the latest 24-
month period), the projected service demand shall be determined as described in Section
1125.540 (e).

APP LlCA'ﬂON FORM

Criterion 1125.560 - Variances to Computed Bed Need ~THIS ITEM IS NOT GERMANE
N

The applicant proposing a continuum of care project shall demonstrate the following:

‘Continuum of Care:

1. The project will provide a continuum of care for a geriatric population that includes independent
living and/for congregate housing (such as unlicensed apartments, high rises for the elderly and
retirement villages) and related health and social services. The housing complex shall be on the
same site as the health facility component of the project.

2. The proposal shall be for the purposes of and serve only the residents of the housing complex
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and shall be developed either after the housing complex has been established or as a part of a
total housing construction program, provided that the entire complex is one inseparable project,
that there is a documented demand for the housing, and that the licensed beds will not be built
first, but will be built concurrently with or after the residential units.

3. The applicant shall demonstrate that:

a. The proposed number of beds is needed. Documentation shalt consist of a list of available
patients/residents needing the proposed project. The proposed number of beds shall not
exceed one licensed LTC bed for every five apartments or independent living units;

b. There is a provision in the facility's written operational policies assuring that a resident of the
retirement community who is transferred to the LTC facility will not lose histher apartment unit
or be fransferred to another LTC facility solely because of the resident's altered financial
status or medical indigency; and

c. Admissions to the LTC unit will be limited to current residents of the independent living units
and/or congregate housing. '

The applicant proposing a project for a defined poputation shall provide the following:

Defined Population

1. The applicant shall document that the proposed project will serve a defined population group of a
religious, fraternal or ethnic nature from throughout the entire health service area or from a iarger
geographic service area (GSA) proposed to be served and that includes, at a minimum, the entire
health service area in which the facility is or will be physically located.

2. The applicant shall document each of the following:
a. A description of the proposed religious, fraternal or ethnic group proposed to be served;
b. The boundaries of the GSA;

¢. The number of individuals in the defined popuiation who live within the proposed GSA,
including the source of the figures;

d. That the proposed services do not exist in the GSA where the facitity is or will be located;

e. That the services cannot be instituted at existing facilities within the GSA in sufficient
numbers to accommaodate the group's needs. The applicant shall specify each proposed
service that is not available in the GSA's existing facilities and the basis for determining why
that service could not be provided.

f.  That at least 85% of the residents of the facility will be members of the defined population
group. Documentation shall consist of a written admission policy insuring that the
requirements of this subsection (b)}{(2)(F) will be met.

g. That the proposed project is either directly owned or sponsored by, or affiliated with, the
religious, fraternal or ethnic group that has been defined as the population to be served.by
the project. The applicant shall provide iegally binding documents that prove ownership,
sponsorship or affiliation.
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Criterion 1125.570 - Service Accessibility —-THIS ITEM IS NOT GERMANE

a.

b.

(3]

1. Service Restrictions

The applicant shall document that at least one of the following factors exists in the planning
area, as applicable:

o

[}

2. Additional documentation required:

The applicant shall provide the following documentation, as applicable, concerning existing
restrictions to service access:

The location and utilization of other planning area service providers;
Patient/resident location information by zip code;

independent time-travel studies; |

Certification of a waiting list;

Admission restrictions that exist in area providers;

An assessment of area population characteristics that document that access problems exist;

Most recently published IDPH Long Term Care Facilities Inventory and Data (see
www.hfsrb.illinois.gov).

The absence of the proposed service within the planning area;

Access limitations due to payor status of patients/residents, including, but not limited to,
individuals with LTC coverage through Medicare, Medicaid, managed care or charity
care;

Restrictive admission policies of existing providers; or

The area population and existing care system exhibit indicators of medical care
problems, such as an average family income level below the State average poverty
level, or designation by the Secretary of Health and Human Services as a Health
Professional Shortage Area, a2 Medically Underserved Area, or 2 Medically Underserved
Population.
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Criterion 1125.580 - Unnecessary Duplication/Maldistribution —THIS ITEM IS NOT
GERMANE

1. The applicant shall provide the following information:

a. Alist of all zip code areas that are located, in total or in part, within 30 minutes normat travel
time of the project's site;

b. The total population of the identified zip code areas (based upon the most recent population
numbers available for the State of lllinois); and

¢. The names and locations of all existing or approved LTC facilities located within 30 minutes
normal travel time from the project site that provide the categories of bed service that are
proposed by the project.

2. The applicant shall document that the project will not result in maldistribution of services.

3. The applicant shall document that, within 24 months after project completion, the proposed
project:

a. Wil not lower the utilization of other area providers below the occupancy standards specified
in Section 1125.210(c); and

b.  Will not fower, to a further extent, the utilization of other area facilities that are currently
(during the |atest 12-month period) operating below the occupancy standards.

Criterion 1125.590 - Staffing Availability

1. For each category of service, document that relevant clinical and professional staffing needs for
the proposed project were considered and that licensure and JCAHO staffing requirements can be
met.

2. Provide the following documentation:

a. The name and qualification of the person currently filling the position, if applicable; and
b. Letters of interest from potential employees; and

c. Applications filed for each position; and

d. Signed contracts with the required staff; or

e. A narrative explanation of how the proposed staffing will be achieved.
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Criterion 1125.600 Bed Capacity

The maximum bed capacity of a general LTC facility is 250 beds, unless the applicant documents that a larger facility
would provide personalization of patient/resident care and documents provision of quality care based on the
experience of the applicant and compliance with IDPH's licensure standards (77 Ill. Adm. Code: Chapter |,
Subchapter ¢ (Long-Term Care Facilities)) over a two-year period.

Criterion 1125.610 - Community Related Functions

The applicant shall document cooperation with and the receipt of the endorsement of community groups in the town
or municipality where the facility is or is proposed to be located, such as, but not limited to, social, economic or
govemnmental organizations or other concemed parties or groups. Documentation shall consist of copies of all letters
of support from those organizations.

Criterion 1125.620 - Project Size

The applicant shall document that the amount of physical space proposed for the project is necessary and not
excessive. The proposed gross square footage (GSF) cannot exceed the GSF standards as stated in Appendix A of
77 Hl. Adm. Code 1125 (LTC rules), unless the additional GSF can be justified by documenting one of the following:

1. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational needs,
as supported by published data or studies;

2. The existing facility's physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an architectural
design that results in a size exceeding the standards of Appendix A;

3. The project involves the conversion of existing bed space that results in excess square footage.

DOCUMENTATION
‘PAGE OF THE ‘APPLICATION FORM,

Criterion 1125.630 - Zoning

The applicant shall document one of the following:
1. The property to be utilizad has been zoned for the type of facility o be developed;
2. Zoning approval has been received; or

3. A variance in zoning for the project is to be sought.
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Criterion 1125.640 - Assurances

1. The applicant representative who signs the CON application shall submit a signed and
dated statement attesting to the applicant's understanding that, by the second year of
operation after the project completion, the applicant will achieve and maintain the
occupancy standards specified in Section 1125.210(c) for each category of service
involved in the proposal.

2. For beds that have been approved based upon representations for continuum of care
{Section 1125.560(a)} or defined population (Section 1125.560(b}), the facility shall
provide assurance that it will maintain admissions limitations as specified in those
Sections for the life of the facility. To eliminate or modify the admissions limitations, prior
approvat of HFSRB will be required.

Criterion 1125.650 - Modernization

1. If the project involves modernization of a category of LTC bed service, the applicant shall
document that the bed areas to be modernized are deteriorated or functionally obsolete and need
to be replaced or modernized, due to such factors as, but not limited fo:

a. High cost of maintenance;
b. non-compliance with licensing or life safety codes;

¢. Changes in standards of care (e.g., private versus multiple bed rooms); or

d. Additional space for diagnostic or therapeutic purposes.

2. Documentation shall include the most recent:
a. IDPH and CMMS inspection reports; and

b. Accrediting agency reports.

3. Other documentation shall include the following, as applicable to the factors cited in the
application:

a. Copies of maintenance reports;
b. Copies of citations for life safety code violations; and

c. Other pertinent reports and data.

4. Projects involving the replacement or modernization of a category of service or facility shall meet
or exceed the occupancy standards for the categories of service, as specified in Section
1125.210{c).

-APPEND DOCUMEN
:APPLICATION FORM.:
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SPECIALIZED LONG-TERM CARE

Criterion 1125.720 - Specialized Long-Term Care — Review Criteria

This section is applicable to all projects proposing specialized long-term care services or beds.
1. Community Related Functions
Read the criterion and submit the following information:

a. adescription of the process used to inform and receive input from the public including
those residents living in close proximity to the propased facility's location;

b. letters of support from social, social service and economic groups in the community;

c. letters of support from municipal/elected off' cials who represent the area where the
project is located.

2. Availability of Ancillary and Support Services

Read the criterion, which applies only to ICF/DD 16 beds and fewer facilities, and submit the
following:

a. a copy of the letter, sent by certified mail return receipt requested, to each of the day
programs in the area requesting their comments regarding the impact of the project
upon their programs and any response lefters;

b. a description of the public transportation services availabte to the proposed residents;

c. adescription of the specialized services (other than day programming) avaitable to the
residents;

d. a description of the availability of community activities available to the facility's
residents.

e. documentation of the availability of community workshops.
3. Recommendation from State Departments
Read the criterion and submit a copy of the letters sent, including the date when the letters were
sent, to the Departments of Human Services and Healthcare and Family Services requesting
these departments to indicate if the proposed project meets the department's planning
objectives regarding the size, type, and number of beds proposed, whether the project
conforms or does not conform to the department's plan, and how the project assnsts or hinders
the department in achieving its planning objectives.
4. Long-term Medical Care for Children Category of Service
Read the criterion and submit the following information:
a. amap outlining the target area proposed to be served;
b. the number of individuals age 0-18 in the target area and the number of individuals in
the target area that require the type of care proposed, include the source documents
for this estimate;

¢. any reports/studies that show the points of origin of past patients/residents admissions
to the facility;
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f.

5. Zoning

zoning.

a.

b.

C.

a.

Read the criterion and provide a letter from an authorized zoning official that verifies appropriate

6. Establishment of Chronic Mental iliness

Read the criterion and provide the foliowing:

7. Variance to Computed Bed Need for Establishment of Beds for Developmentally ¢
Disabled Placement of Residents from DHS State Operated Beds

Read this criterion and submit the following information:

describe the special programs or services proposed and explain the relationship of
these programs to the needs of the specialized population proposed to be served.

indicate why the services in the area are insufficient to meet the needs of the area
population;

documentation that the 90% occupancy target will be achieved within the first full year of

documentation of how the resident population has changed making the proposed
project necessary.

indicate which beds will be closed to accommodate these additional beds.

the number of admissions for this type of care for each of the last two years.

documentation that all of the residents proposed to be served are now residents of a
DHS facility;

documentation that each of the proposed residents has at least one interested family
member who resides in the planning area or at least one interested family member
that lives out of state but within 15 miles of the planning area boundary where the
facility is or will be located;

if the above is not the case then you must document that the proposed resident has
lived in a DHS operated facility within the planning area in which the proposed facility
is to be located for more than 2 years and that the consent of the legal guardian has
been obtained;

a letter from DHS indicating which facilities in the planning area have refused to accept
referrals from the department and the dates of any refusals and the reasons cited for
each refusal;

a copy of the letter {sent certified—-return receipt requested) to each of the
underutilized facilities in the planning area asking if they accept referrals from DHS-
operated facilities, listing the dates of each past refusal of a referral, and requesting an
explanation of the basis for each refusal;

documentation that each of the proposed relocations will save the State money;,

a statement that the facility will only accept future referrals from an area DHS facility if
a bed is available;

an explanation of how the proposed facility conforms with or deviates from the DHS
comprehensive long range development plan for developmental disabilities services.
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SECTION V — FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY REVIEW
Criterion 1125.800 Estimated Total Project Cost

The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody’s {(the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18 month period prior to the submittal of the application):

=  Avallability of Funds - Review Criteria
+ Financial Viability - Review Criteria
+ Economic Feasibility - Review Criteria, subsection {(a)

Availability of Funds

The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be avazilable and be equal to or exceed the estimated tota!
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable: indicate the dellar amount to be provided from the following sources:

$1,218,858 a. Cash and Securities - statements {(e.g., audited financial statements, letters from financial
institutions, board resolutions) as to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project, including the
identification of any security, its value and availability of such funds; and

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be earned on
any asset from the date of applicant’s submission through project
completion;

b. Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing

anticipated receipts and discounted value, estimated time table of gross receipts and
related fundraising expenses, and a discussion of past fundraising experience.

. Gifts and Bequests - verification of the doilar amount, identification of any conditions of
use, and the estimated time table of receipts;
d. Debt - a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt time period,
$7,800,000 variable or permanent interest rates over the debt time period, and the anticipated

repayment schedule) for any interim and for the permanent financing proposed to fund the
project, including:

1. For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required
referendum or evidence that the governmental unit has the authority to
issue the bonds and evidence of the dollar amount of the issue,
including any discounting anticipated;

2. For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the specified
amount and interest rate;

3. For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to the
expectation of making the loan in the amount and time indicated,
including the anticipated interest rate and any conditions associated with
the mortgage, such as, but not limited to, adjustable interest rates,
balioon payments, stc.;

4. For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and
conditions, including any purchase options, any capital improvements to
the property and provision of capital equipment;

5. For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including all terms and
conditions.
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the governmental unit attesting to this intent;

e. Governmental Appropriations — a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance accompanied
by a statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental unit. If funds are
to be made available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resolution or other action of

f. Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the
amount and time of receipt;

will be used for the project.

g. Alt Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any other funds that

$9,018,858

TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

Financial Viability -

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or

guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Einanciatl Viability Waiver- THIS ITEM IS NOT GERMANE

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:
“A” Bond rating or better
All of the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

—h

insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Assoclation Inc.) or equivalent

2
3. The applicant's current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
4

The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A

rated guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

1. The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shafl -

provide viabilily ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and
for the first full fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project
completion. When the applicant's facility does not have facllity specific financial statements and the facility
is a member of a health care system that has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's
viability ratios shall be provided. [f the health care system includes one or more hospitals, the system's

viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the applicable hospital standards.

COMBINED (NEIGHBORS PROPERTY, LLC & NEIGHBORS REHABILITATION, LLC)

Current Ratio 1.0 1.0 1.0 2.0
Net Margin Percentage 4.5 43.8 3ﬁ.0 17.3
Percent Debt to Total Capitalization 71.0 68.2 70.6 79.9
Projected Debt Service Coverage 3.1 3.6 26 4.0
Days Cash on Hand 58 10.4 3.4 79.5
Cushion Ratio 0.3 06| 0.2 3.0

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation and
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e. Govemmentai Appropriations - a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance accompanied
by a statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental unit. If funds are
to be made available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resolution or other action of
the governmental unit attesting to this intent;

f. Grants ~ a letter from the granting agency as to the avaitability of funds in terms of the
amount and time of receipt;

g. All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any other funds that
will be used for the project.

$9,018,858 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

Financial Viability

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying thelr roleé in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financiat Viability Waiver- THIS ITEM IS NOT GERMANE

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios If:

1. "“A” Bond rating or better

2. All of the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

3. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

4. The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

1. The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall
provide viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and
for the first full fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project
completion. When the applicant's facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the facility
is @ member of a health care system that has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's
viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care system includes one or more hospitals, the system's
viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the applicable hospital standards.

NEIGHBORS PROPERTY, LLC

Current Ratio 0.5 06 | 1.0 22
Net Margin Percentage =271 -28.5 -26.2 -58.6
Percent Debt to Total Capitalization 87.9 85.5 88.6 110.2
Projected Debt Service Coverage 0.4 1.1 1.1 1.0
Days Cash on Hand 5.2 314 17.7 57.4
Cushion Ratio 0.0 .01 .01 02

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation and
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e. Govermnmental Appropriations — a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance accompanied

by a statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental unit. if funds are
to be made available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resolution or other action of
the govermnmmental unit attesting to this intent;

f Grants ~ a |etter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the
amount and time of receipt;

g. All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any other funds that
will be used for the project.

$9,018,858

TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

Financial Viability

Ali the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver- THIS ITEM IS NOT GERMANE

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

“A” Bond rating or better
All of the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent
The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

E o

1. The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall
provide viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and |
for the first full fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project |
completion. When the applicant's facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the facility |
is a member of a health care system that has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's
viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care system includes one or more hospitals, the system's
viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the applicable hospital standards.

NEIGHBORS REHABILITATION, LLC

2012
Current Ratio 1.1 1.1 1.0 2.0
Net Margin Percentage 63.9 68.4 76.8 247
Percent Debt to Total Capitalization N/A N/A N/A N/A
Projected Debt Service Coverage 44.7 245 26.7 54.4
Days Cash on Hand 5.9 8.5 2.7 81.4
Cushion Ratio 1.7 4.3 1.3 42.6

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation and

Pade24




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD LTC APPLICATION FOR PERMIT
July 2012 Edition

applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a separate table for each co-
applicant and provide worksheets for each.

2. Variance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that ancther organization, public
or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to mest the debt obligations should the applicant default.

Economic Feasibility

This section is applicable to all projects

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by submitting a notarized
statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to one of the following:

1. That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with cash
and equivalents, inciuding investment securities, unrestricted funds, recelved pledge
receipts and funded depreciation; or

2. That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part by
borrowing because:

A. A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet
asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 1.5 times for LTC
facilities; or

8. Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the
existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire
debt within a 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This cniterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shaii
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized statement
signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as applicable:

1. That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net cost
availabie;
2. That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost available, but is

more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges, no required mortgage,
access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing costs and other factors;

3. That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities and that
the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly than constructing
a new facility or purchasing new equipment.
€. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

Read the criterion and provide the following:

Identify each area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost and
square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the following format
(insert after this page).
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COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY SERVICE

A B C D E F G H
Area Total Cost
(list below) | Cost/Square Foot | Gross 8q. Ft. Gross 8q. Ft. Const. § Mod. $ {G+H)
New Mod. | New Circ.* | Mod. Circ.* (AxQC) (BxE)
Nursing-New | $1980.06 | $69.07 | 30,021* 23,013 $5,705,767 | $1,589,415 | $7,295,182
Contingency $13.22 | $4.86 | 30,021 23,013 $396,864* | $111,936* | $508,800
TOTALS $203.28 | $73.93 | 30,021* 23,013 $6,102,631 | $1,701,351 | $7,803,082

* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

*Contingency Cost breakdown based on Total Contract Costs (New Construction is 78%, Modernization is 22%)
**New Construction of 27,143gsf + vacated (demolition) space of 2,878gsf as demalition costs are in the construction
contract line item.
D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per equivalent
patient day or unit of sarvice) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years
;oﬂowing project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of salaries, benefits and supplies
or the service.

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per equivalent

patient d

ay) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years following project
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- APPENDIX-A

component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the fair market or
dollar value {refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated project cost. If
the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of health care,

complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Preplanning Costs $65,151.84 $34,848 $100,000

Site Survey and Soil Investigation $11,401.57 $6,098.43 $17,500

Site Preparation $65,151.84 $34,848.16 $100,000

Off Site Work $15,534.81 $8,309.19 $23,844

New Construction Contracts $3,717,412.46 31',933,354,54 $5,705,767
- Modernization Contracts $1,035,533.19 $553,881.81 $1,589,415

Contingencies $331,492.59 $177,307.41 $508,800

Architectural/Engineering Fees $415,347.57 $222,159.43 $637,507

élaﬁ’sul’ﬁng and Other Fees $39,091.11 $20,908.89 $60,000

Movable or Other Equipment (not in construction -

contracts) $179,835.38 $96,189.62 $276,025

Bond Issuance Expense (project related)

Net Interest Expense During Construction (project

related)

Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment

Other Costs To Be Capitalized o

Acaquisition of Building or Other Property (excluding

land)

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $5,875,952.36 $3,142,906 $9,018,858

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Cash and Securities $794,108.47 $424,749.53 $1,218,858

Pledges

Gifts and Bequests

Bond Issues (project related)

Mortgages $5,081,843.89 $2,718,156.11 $7,800,000

Leases (fair market value)

Govemnmmental Appropriations

Grants

Other Funds and Sources v

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $5,875,952.36 $3,142,905.64 | $9,018,858

*Clinical Cost equates to Appendix D's Total Clinical space as a percentage of the whole (78%});

Conversely, Nonclinical Cost equates to Appendix D's Total Nonclinical space as a percentage of the

whole {22%}).
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i - APPENDIX B

Related Project Costs

Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that
will be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project X Yes ] No
Purchase Price: § 100,000
Fair Market Value: $

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service
] Yes X No

if yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including operating deficits
through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target utilization specified in Part
1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $§ _Not Germane
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Project Status and Completion Schedules

Indicate the stage of the project's architectural drawings:
[] None or not applicable [ Preliminary

& Schematics [J Final Working

Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140). February 2017*
* Construction completion is May of 2018. The additional time towards project completion is to allow for licensure.

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to obligation (refer to Part 1130.140):
[ Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
[] Project obligation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the contingent
“certification of obligation” document, highlighting any language related to CON Contingencies

Project obligation will occur after permit issuance.
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APPENDIX D

Cost/Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the department/area DGSF or the building/area BGSF and cost. The type
of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be identified. The sum of the department costs
MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different
purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the department’s or area's portion of the surrounding
circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

- __ ~ N Gross Square Feet Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square Feet That Is:
New .
Department/Area Cost Existing | Proposed Const. Modemized | Asls | Vacated Space

CLINICAL
New Resident
Rooms & Bath
Rooms $ 1,241,347 468 8,226 7,758 468
Existing Rsident
Rooms and Toilet
Rooms $ 1,790,190 11,863 11,863 11,863
Nursing Support $ 244,618 513 1,621 1,108 288 225
Utility Rooms $§ 158,960 731 1,060 329 115 618
Living/Dining/Activity $1,511,619 5,076 10,017 4,941 1.837 | 3.139
PT/OT $ 411,518 0 2,727 2,727
Alzheimers
Dayroom and Toilet 1,383 1,393
Food Service $ 286,117 1,598 1,896 208 500 | 1,098
Shower
Rooms/Toilets-
existing $ 230,583 1.528 1,528 1.528
TOTAL CLINICAL $ 5,875,952 23,170 38,938 17,161 15,171 6,606 1,383
NON-CLINICAL
Chapel and Support $ 253,370 1,679 1,678 1,679
Office / :
Administration $ 332444 198 2,203 | 2,005 198
Maintenance Stoage §34 534
Commons $ 689,939 702 4,572 3,870 702
Dietary Office 124 ) 124
Staff Lounge 351 351
Plaza $ 298,340 1,977 1,977 1,977
Support '
Departments § 247,032 0 1,637 1,637
Building Storage $ 44,970 0 298 298

| Mechanical Room $ 96,748 566 661 95 566
Lobby 476 476
Building Support $ 516,700 1,347 3,424 2,077 787 560 Z
Existing Corridor I
Renovations $ 660,362 4,376 4,376 4,376
Total Non-Clinical $ 3,142,906 12,330 20,827 9,882 7,842 .3,003 1,485
TOTAL $9,018,858 | 35,500 | 59,765 27,143 23,013 | 9,608 2,878
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD LTC APPLICATION FOR PERMIT
July 2012 Edition

After paginating the entire, completed application, indicate in the chart below, the page numbers for the
attachments included as part of the project's application for permit:

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS
ATTACHMENT
NO. PAGES
Applicant/Co-applicant Identification including Certificate of Good 34.36
1 Standin )
g
2 Site Ownership 37-42
3 Operating Identity/Licensee 43-44
4 Organizational Relationships 45
5 Flood Plain Requirements 46-47
6 Historic Preservation Act Requirements 48-49
General Information Requirements
10 Purpose of the Project 50-88
11 Alternatives to the Project 89-109
Service Specific - General Long-Term Care
12 Background of the Applicant 110-141
13 Planning Area Need 142-161
14 Establishment of General LTC Service or Facility
15 . Expansion of General LTC Service or Facility 162-195
| 16 Variances
17 Accessibility
18 Unnecessary Duplication/Maldistribution
19 Staffing Availability 196-198
20 Bed Capacity 199
21 ~ Community Relations 200-210
22 Project Size 211
23 Zoning 212
24 Assurances 213-214
25 Modernization 215-225
Service Specific - Specialized Long-Term Care
26 Specialized Long-Term Care — Review Criteria
Financial and Economic Feasibility:
27 Availability of Funds 226-322
28 Financial Waiver
29 Financial Viability 323-326
L 30 Economic Feasibility 327-330
APPENDICES
A Project Costs and Sources of Funds 29
B Related Project Costs 30
C Project Status and Completion Schedule 31
D Cost/Space Requirements 32

33
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SECTION I - IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

Continued i

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant {refer to Part 1130.220}].

o] Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Ilinois certificate of good
standing.

The owner of the proposed project is Neighbors Property, LLC. The operator/Licensee
will be Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC. Collectively these entities are the Applicant.

The entities™ lllinois Certificates of Good Standing are appended as ATTACHMENT-1A.

ATTACHMENT-1
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File Number 0246605-8

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

NEIGHBORS PROPERTY, LLC, HAVING ORGANIZED IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS ON
FEBRUARY 21, 2008, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN

GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY IN THE STATE OF
ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 20TH

dayof  NOVEMBER  AD. 2013

N <3 2677 3 o ’
Authentication #: 1332402436 M W

Authenticate at: http://www.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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File Number 0245608-7

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

NEIGHBORS REHABILITATION CENTER, LLC, HAVING ORGANIZED IN THE STATE OF
ILLINOIS ON FEBRUARY 21, 2008, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL
PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF

THIS DATE IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY IN
THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 20TH

dayof  NOVEMBER  AD. 2013

W A ;
».A\ Qi )
Authentication #: 1332402402 M@/

Authenticate at: hitp://iwww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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SECTION I - IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

Continued ii

Site Ownership

Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of
proof of ownership are property tax statement, tax assessor’s documentation, deed,
notarized statement of the corporation attesting to ownership, an option to lease, a letter of
intent to lease or a lease.

The owner of the existing building and site is Neighbors Property, LLC. The entity’s
Tilinois Certificate of Good Standing is appended as ATTACHMENT-2A. As an existing
ongoing business, the legal description of the project's site is appended within the 2012 Real
Estate Tax Bill, appended as ATTACHMENT-2B. Additionally, as part of this project,
adjacent land is being acquired and being made part of this project. Appended as
ATTACHMENT—ZC, is a signed Letter of Intent to Purchase Vacant Land. Together these

attachments serve as proof of site control.

ATTACHMENT-2
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File Number 0246605-8

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

NEIGHBORS PROPERTY, LLC, HAVING ORGANIZED IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS ON
FEBRUARY 21, 2008, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN

GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY IN THE STATE OF
ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 20TH

dayof ~ NOVEMBER  AD. 2013

.\\ o ,( ._"j
‘ 7 A", /"/’57
Authentication #: 1332402436 ' M

Authenticate at: hitp:/Awww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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OGLE COUNTY

JOHN H. COFFMAN, COUNTY COLLECTOR 2012 REAL ESTATE TAX BILL

OGLE COUNTY COURTHOUSE PLEASE READ fhe instrustions on the baok of this bill regarding when end where to
PO. BOX 40 pay your taxes, Addifional Information 13 provided for changing your mafling eddress and

tax exsmptions in which you might e entiffed.

Ths County Treasurer only callects your taxes and lsnotmpons!btefotﬂzemountoﬁour
assassment or the amount of your tax bifl. We wifl be happy 1o asalst you or direct you to the

proper authority tegarding questions about your tax bill
ASSESSED TO: NE1GHBORS PROPERTY LLC

OREGON, IL 61061-0040

. [PROPEATY DEBCRFTION T T T E——
"E‘Gnmmm RNG/BLK:11 TWP:25 SEGTAOT:S1 05-31-201-004
6840 w481 02FTEQB7FTW1IZNE4LYINGNOF2NDST T TTRRRREVRLUE |
LINCOLNWOOD i, 80712- EXNTBOFT :

CLABS 00DE 'Wz“‘ﬂ"“'w
| LSCRTTON GF PROPRITS 0080 00240
B11 W 2D & TOWRBHP _
, H — AL NS s B - T T ST Arres
RECEIPT PORT;ON'EEP FORYDURHEGOHDS‘ cor T PRIORZATED o PRIORGIGURT . LRUERLNT AR AR
2012 OGLE COUNTY REAL ESTATE TAX DGLE COUNTY 0.84558 $s0i064 | 068958 $4,080.90
PAY TO: OGLE COUNTY COLLECTOR OGLE CO: MENTAL HEALTH 0.08301 $388.79 | 008821 $201.20°
OGLE G0, EXTENSION 0.00882 7220 | -0.00885 §r242
CORMELA FEE TR CALSULATION . 2007 St i OGLE CO, VETERANS ASSISTANCE | 0.00628 $46.47 0.00031 $483¢
. | OGLE GO. SEMIOR SERVICES 0.01473 $108.29 0.01473 $10368
LAND gagss | QGLE COUNTY PENSION | 0.08588 $704.80 008920 $720.32
_mmumm~ g7eg4¢ | BYRON FIRE DISTRICT 041583 $3.057.16 0.40888 $2,891.21
AR umm 0 |BYRONFIREDISTRICT PENSION | 02803 £208.08 0.02743 $201.68
B0 OF REVEWEQUALZEDVALE = 154 92 ROCK VALLEY COM COL 511 045320 $3331.80 Q44707 $3.208.83
HOME [MPROVEMENT EXEMPTION  ~ . RYRON UNIT 228 asti $20.548.67 374033 $47.468.67
VETERANG EXEMPTION - 0 BYRON WNIT 229 PENSION | 005984 $385.60 0.05532 $408.72
VALUE PRIORTO BYATE BOUALZE =~ 736194 | BYRON LIBRARY DIgT €.18024 $1,47851 0.16013 $1.177.28
STATE EQUALIZATION FADTOR® X tooon | BYRONLERARYDIST PENSION | 0.0u888 $26.10 0.00604 §4a.41
STATE EQUALLZED VALLE - 735134 | BYRON MUBEUM DISTRICT 001886 £12248 0.01631 $11951
m::mm A 0 |BYRONPARKDISY 0.30300 222784 | 030985 $2.278.00
:‘Nwm' ”Mslwwpmnm - 0 |BYRONPARKDIST  PENSION | a0trme IR )] 0,02222 $163.38
OIGASLED PERSONS SEMFTION - 0 | BYRON TOWNSHE ROAD 044273 $3,254.52 045188 $3.31858
HIETURNING VETERANS EXEMPTION - g BYRON FOREST PRES 0.33262 $2447.00 . 036812 $202005
DISABLED VETERANS EXEMPTION  ~ o |BYRONFORESTPRES PeNSioN | 0.01235 $50.40 001380 36020
NEBD, EXEMPTION - o |eYRONTOWNSHP C.14002 $1,402.20 05978 $1,174.60
TAXABLE VALLE = 735, ‘| cirY OF BYRON
mﬁ% {_‘ 7.05468 crrvou\mu
*4NOT TO 85 YSED FOR FARM LAND AND $55,462.34
FARM BUILDINGS
1 TOTALTARDUE
S8R 482 34 Kras
MAAKEY VALUL efaitat il e y
5-582 113 i 11 L ks
.li ﬁ §§ S
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LAW OFFICGE OF

STEPHEN N. SHER rc

5780 QLD OGRCMARD ROAD . SUITE 429
SHOKE. JLNOIG GCOLY

TELEPHONE (B4 77 3247950

December 20, 2013
BY EMAIL

Mr. Ron Glisan
The United Church of Byron
701 W. 2™ Street,
Byron, llinois 61010

Feett

Re:  Letter of Intent for Purchase of Vacant Land
Dear Mr. Gilsan:

This letter of intent (“Letter of Intent”) sets forth the basic terms and conditions upon which
Neighbors Property, LLC, an [llinois limited liability company (“Purchaser”), is interested in
purchasing the Property set forth below from The United Church of Byron (“Seller”), which is the
owner of the Property set forth below.

Property Real property on the west side of the Church and 100 fect wide by 349 feet long
with at least 34,961 square fect (approximately .80 acre), as indicated on the
attached drawing.

Purchase Price  $100,000.00, with standard prorations for real property, including, without
limitation, real estate taxes, if any, all payable in cash or by wire fransfer at the
Closing of the transaction as described below. At Closing, the Purchaser will
covenant to construct the parking lot on Seller’s property adjacent to the west per
the attached drawing. The Closing will not be subject to Purchaser obtaining
financing,

Closing Date The closing of the transaction shall occur on the 30" day following exccution of a
purchase agreement.

Earnest Money Within three (3) business days of the full execution of an asset purchase
agreement (the “Purchase Agreement™), Purchaser shall deposit Twenty Five
Thousang Dollars ($25,000.00) as carncst money into a Strict Joint Order Escrow
with a nationally recognized title company determincd by Purchaser (the “Title
Company”). All earnest money shall be credited to Purchaser agrinst the
Purchase Price at Closing.

Purchase Within five (5) business days of acceptance of this Letter of Intent, Purchaser
Agreement shall deliver to Seller’s counsel a first draft of the Purchase Agreement, which
shall contain provisions, representations and wamenties related to the real
property as customarily provided in a purchase involving vacant land. Thercafier,

40 ATTACHMENT-2C




The United Church of Byron
December 20, 2013
Page 2

Seller and Purchaser shall proceed to use their best offorts to negotiate and
execute a definitive Purchase Agreement satistactory 1o all parties prior to the end
of the Exclusivity Period.

Title/Survey The Qwner's Title Policy shall be obtained through the Title Company. Buyer
shall arrange at its cost for a current ALTA survey on the Property, Seller shall
additionally pay the cost of any fees for the title search, title commitment and title
policy, but Purchaser shall pay the cost of any endorsements, At Closing, Seller
shall convey 1o Purchaser good and marketable fec simple title to the real
property by warranty deed. Purchaser need not accept title to the real property
encumbered by liens, claims or encumbrances of any kind or nature.

Exclusive {n consideration of Purchaser entering into this Letter of Intent, Sefler agrees to

Negotiations - deal in good faith while negotiating these wransactions and agrees to negotiate
exclusively with Purchaser with vespect to these transactions for thirty (30} days
after Purchaser’s receipt of a fully executed Letter of Intent.

Non-Binding Except for the oblipations and tiabilities set forth under the heading “Exclosive
Negotiations™, this Letter of Intent does not constitute a binding agreement on
either party hereto, but is intended to specify the primary terms and conditions of
the proposed transaction herein outlingd, and, except with respect to exclusivity,
neither party may claim any legal rights against the other by reason of signing of
this Letter of Intent or by taking any action in reliance thereon.

By cxecution of this Letter of [ntent gach party acknowledges the transaction terms described
generally hercin are acceptable. Selier shall have until 5:00 pm (Central) on the fifth (5%) business
day after the date of this Letter of Intent, to accept it writing this Lener of Intent at which point, if
we have not received your acceptance to the same, we may withdraw and terminate this Letter of
Intent. This Letter of Intent supersedes and cancels all prior understandings between the parties, if
any, and may be executed in counterparts.

Very teuly yours,

‘Stephch N. Sher

ACCEPTED AND AGREED
SELLER:

. Rl

Name: Gueﬂgé’}‘ L Bedel | Sevien Steward, Ue SRyrey
fts:
Date: _ Dec, 25 2015
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SECTION I - IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

Continued lii

Operating Identity/Licensee

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Illinois Certificate of Good
Standing. '
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and

address of each partner specifyving whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the
% of ownership.

The operator/Licensee of the existing Neighbors Rehabilitation Center is Neighbors
Rehabilitation Center, LLC. The entity's lllinois Certificate of Good Standing is appended as
ATTACHMENT-3A. Please refer to the listing below for an identification of all persons with 5

percent or greater interest in this entity, the licensee.

Atied Associates, LLC 36.2816%
Barrish, Bryan Trust dtd 9/1/02 12.7476%
Barrish Group Limited Partnership 12.7476%
Gesualdo, Ralph 12.7476%
Ralph Gesualdo Children's Trust 12.7476%
Giannini, Michael Trust did 3/13/00 10.7864%
Total 98.0700%

ATTACHMENT-3
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File Number 0245608-7

To all to whom these Presents Shall Cbme, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

NEIGHBORS REHABILITATION CENTER, LLC, HAVING ORGANIZED IN THE STATE OF
ILLINOIS ON FEBRUARY 21, 2008, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL
PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF

THIS DATE IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY IN
THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 20TH |

dayof ~ NOVEMBER  AD. 2013

’\ R SK ’.:/ ) A
\ N '.." “ :A'. ,!!
. 2678 _7_,,""" % ’
Authentication # 1332402402 ‘WZ/

Authenticate at: hitp:/iwww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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SECTION I - IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

Continued iv

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each co-applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of
any person or enfity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity
is participating in the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount

and type of anv financial confribution.

The organizational relationship for Neighbors Rehabilitation Center is simply Neighbors

Property, LLC as the owner and Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC as the
operator/Licensee. There are no other direct entities or facilities. However, according to the
definitions of related entities, there are twelve long-term nursing care facilities that are
considered "related": It should be noted that none of the "related” entities will be participating in

the development or funding of the project other thaﬁ the owner and operator of the Subject

facility.

Facility Name Barrish Gesualdo | Giannini
Albany Care, Inc. 7.314% 7.314%
Applewood Rehabilitation Center, LLC 11.171% | 11.171%

Bryn Mawr Care, Inc. 13.506%

Columbas Park Nursing & Rehab Center, Inc. 7.193% 6.604%
Decatur Manor Healthcare, LLC 8.799% 8.799%

Elmwood Care, Inc 14.250% 11.574%
Fairview Nursing Plaza, Inc. 14.200% 14.200%
Greenwood Care, Inc. 15.517%

Maplewood Care, Inc. 13.000% 17.973%
Regency Rehabilitation Center, LLC 12.153% 12.153% | 10.417%
Rock Island Nursing & Rehab Center, LLC 9.479% 9.479%

Wilson Care, Inc. 11.111%

ATTACHMENT-4
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SECTION I - IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

Continued v
Flood Plain Requirements

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of Illinois Executive
Order #2005-5 pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of
the flood plain requirements please provide a map of the proposed proiect location showing any
identified floodplain _areas. Floodplain _maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or
www.illinoisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a readable format. In addition please

provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the requirements of Illinois Executive
Order #2005-5 (http://www.hfsrb.illinois.gov).

A map identifying that the area is not within a special flood zone is appended as

ATTACHMENT-5A.

ATTACHMENT-§
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SECTION I - IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

Continued vi
Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preservation Act.

Appended as ATTACHMENT-6A is a letter from the Iflinois Historic Preservation
Agency’s Ms. Anne E. Haacker, Deputy State Historic Preservation Officer dated February 5,

2014, stating that “no historic, architectural or archaeological sites exist within the project area™.

ATTACHMENT-6

48




Illinois Historic
=== Preservation Agency

I . FAX (217) 524-7525

@ 1 Old State Capitol Plaza, Springfield, IL 62701-1512 www.illinoishistory.gov

Ogle County

Byron
CON - New Addition for Long-Term Care Facility, Neighbors Rehabilitation Center
811 W. 2nd St.
IHPA Log #007012314

February 5, 2014

Kathy Harris

Foley and Associates, Inc.
133 8. 4th St., Suite 200
Springfield, IL 62701

Dear Ms. Harris: -

This letter is to inform you that we have reviewed the information provided
concerning the referenced project.

Our review of the records indicates that no historic, architectural or
archaeological sites exist within the project area.

Please retain this letter in your files as evidence of compliance with Section 4 of
the Illinois State Agency Historic Resources Preservation Act (20 ILCS 3420/1 et.
seq.). This clearance remains in effect for two years from date of issuance. It
does not pertain to any discovery during construction, nor is it a clearance for
purposes of the Illinois Human Skeletal Remains Protection Act (20 ILCS 3440).

If you have any further questions, please contact me at 217/785-5027,

Sincerely,

Anne E. Haaker
Deputy State Historic
Preservation Officer

ATTACHMENT-6A
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SECTION II - PURPOSE OF THE PROJECTD, AND ALTERNATIVES-
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS continued i

Criterion 1125.320 - Purpose of the Project

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or
well-being of the market area population to be served.

The proposed project is for the renovation of the existing [01-bed nursing care facility
plus the facility's expansion. The need for the project is to improve the accessibility of the
existing health care resource as the facility has had to turn away residents seeking services from
Neighbors Rehabilitation Center. Specifically, the facility turned away 267 potential residents of
which 65 were due to the facility's inability to accept the admission for reasons of male or female
incompatibility, existing residents needing isolation thereby tying up the potentially available
bed, end stage of life issues as well as the fact that residents are now seeking more private rooms
for their short term rehab. This project seeks to address all of those accessibility issues by
renovating the existing structure and adding 30 beds which will be in accordance with resident
preference.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant’s definition.

The primary market area is a 30 minute drive time from the Applicant’s facility. Ina
recent zip code analysis for all admissions during the most recent 24-month period, over 82%
were from within the 30-minute market area.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed. as applicable and
appropriate for the project.

There may be no industry that is changing as fast and dramatically as health care and
more specifically, long-term nursing care in the United States. The Applicant has experienced
this first hand and is the only provider of long-term nursing care in Byron and the immediate 15-
minute travel time (no adjustment) from the facility, Neighbors Rehébilitation Center. This
facility in each of the last three years for which [DPH has published facility profiles (2010, 2011

ATTACHMENT-10
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SECTION II - PURPOSE OF THE PROJECTD, AND ALTERNATIVES-
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS continued ii

and 2012), document that the facility has exceeded the Board's target utilization rate of 90%,
respectively the facility averaged 91.6%, 92.6% and 91.8%. In CY 2013, the facility has actually
had to turn away potential residents secking admission due to issues of gender incompatibility,
medical isolation and end of life issues. To address these issues of inaccessibility for area
residents seeking admission, the Applicant is proposing the addition of 30 additional nursing
beds.

4, Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

Appended as ATTACHMENT-10A4, is the Applicant's listing of residents turned away
and the rationale for the action. |

Appended as ATTACHMENT-10B, is the Zip Code analysis for the admissions to
Neighbors Rehabilitation Center supporting the identification of the primary service area.

Appended as ATTACHMENT-10C, is the map of the ‘primary service area, a/k/a the 30-
minute travel time contour.

Appended as ATTACHMENT-10D, is the travel time study of area nursing home
facilities as performed using the online mapping/directional software, MapQuest.com.

Appended as ATTACHMENT-10E, are the 2010, 2011, and 2012 IDPH facility profiles
for the Subject facility, Neighbors Rehabilitation Center.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well
as the population’s health status and well-being.

In addition, and more important than the proposed additional capacity, is the renovation
of the existing 101-bed nursing care facility. As the Subject facility is existing and its utilization

has remained in excess of the State's target rate of 90%, it is imperative to utilize the addition of

ATTACHMENT-10
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SECTION II - PURPOSE OF THE PROJECTD, AND ALTERNATIVES-
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS continued ii

nursing beds to phase in the renovation of the existing space (Please refer to ATTACHMENT-
10E for the most recent three years of historical facility data). Then both the existing space and
the addition can be utilized to address the inaccessibility issue with the facility turning potential
residents away.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable obiectives, with specific timeframes that
relate to achieving the stated goals as appropriate.

The Applicant’s goal is to again reach and maintain as it has in the past the State's target
utilization rate of 90 percent by the second full year of operation after project completeness.
For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded if any. For facility

projects, include statements of age and condition and regulatory citations if any. For equipment
being replaced, include repair and maintenance records.

The modernization of the existing facility, Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, is one that
addresses curb appeal and resident comfort, i.e., desirability and marketability. There are those
issues of physical plant which are also being addressed, such as the replacement of resident room
windows throughout, as it only makes sense to perform many major maintenance items at the

same time thereby allowing for efficiencies in time and personnel.

ATTACHMENT-10
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[P

Street Address:
8§11 W. 2nd Street

EIGH @RS Byron, Iitinois 61010

Mailing Address:

111 ] P.G.Box 58

Rehabilitation Center o, B 5
February 11, 2014

Ms. Courtney Avery, Administrator
Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson St., 2™ Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

RE: Historical Service Demand

Dear Ms. Avery:

Neighbors Rehabilitation Center (NRC) has utilized a waiting list at different times over the past
24 months. Also during that time frame, 65 referrals were referred to other care facilities due to
lack of bed availability at NRC. Attached you will find a complete list of these referrals.

Please contact me if you have any questions or concerns regarding this information.

Administrator

PT:pk

enc

www.neighborsbyron.com

ph: 815.234.2511
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NRC - HISTORICAL SERVICE DEMAND
1/1/12 - 12/31/13

Date Referral SOR Reason for referral

Jan. 3, 2012 LT Swedish American Hosp. No female bed available

Feb. 1,2012 C.G. Univ. of Wisconsin Hosp. private room d/t age

Feb. 20,2012 MK, Swedish American Hosp.  |private room

Feb. 20,2012  |).S. family no bed available on Special Care Unit
Feb. 23, 2012 B.A, KS8 Hosp. isolation

Mar. 12,2012 IS family no beds available

Mar. 23,2012 |Male family wanted a more updated room

Mar. 23,2012 [Female |family wanted a nicer looking facility

Mar. 24,2012  Male Freeport Memorial Hosp. no bed availabie on Special Care Unit
Apr. 6, 2012 Male Freeport Memoriai Hosp. no beds available

Apr. 11, 2012 KJ. QSF St. Francis Hosp. private room d/t age

Apr. 11, 2012 1.C. Swedish American Hosp. isolation

Apr.19, 2012 K.C. Swedish American Hosp. different facility with private room
Apr. 28,2012 |D.C. Rockford Memorial Hosp.  |no beds avaifable

May. 24,2012 [S.D. OSF St. Anthony Hosp. isolation ]
Jul, 13, 2012 E.S. family private room

Aug. 1,2012 H.S. Rockford Memorial Hosp. no bed available on Special Care Unit
Aug, 7, 2012 LS. OSF St. Anthony Hosp. isolation ’
Aug. 27,2012  |A.P. Swedish American Hosp. isolation

Aug. 27,2012 |).B. Kindred Hosp. isolation

Aug. 29,2012  |S.C. OSF St. Anthony Hosp. private room d/t medical needs

Nov. 8, 2012 D.E. Heartland Hospice no beds avallable

Nov, 15,2012 |R.M. Univ. of Wisconsin Hosp.  |no beds available

Nov. 15,2012 |D.L Kindred Hosp. private room d/t age

Nov. 20,2012 |I.B. Select Specialty Hosp. no bed avallable

Nov, 23,2012 [M.V. Kishwaukee Hosp. isolation

Nov. 26,2012  [R.P. Heritage Health no bed avilable

Nov. 27,2012  |M.F. IHinois Masonic Hosp. no bed available

Nov. 27,2012 {W.B. no bed on Special Care Unit

Nov. 27, 2012 c.S. Swedish American Hosp no beds available
Dec. 4, 2012 W.H. St. Anthony Hospital - different facility w/ private room
Dec. 18,2012  |B.C. Rockford Memorial Hospital |different facifity w/ private room
Dec, 21, 2012 P.E. MacNeal Hosp. private room d/t medical needs

Dec. 21,2012 |P.T. OSF St. Francis Hosp. private room d/t medical needs

Jan, 22,2013 RS. Kindred Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
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NRC - HISTORICAL SERVICE DEMAND

1/1/12 - 12/31/13

Date Referral SOR Reason for referral
Feb. 5, 2013 D.G. Univ., of Wisconsin Hosp. isofatlon
Feb, 5, 2013 KT, Kindred Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
Feb. 6, 2013 E.F. Kindred Hosp. _ isolation
Feb. 21, 2013 D.S. Rockford Memorial Hosp.  |isolation
Mar. 8, 2013 M. family private room
Mar. 11, 2013 |W.M, Kindred Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
Mar. 20,2013  |R.O. Swedish Arerican Hosp. private room
Mar. 22,2013 |CS, Fairview Nursing Plaza private room d/t age
Mar. 22,2013 M.R. Rush Medical Center private room d/t medical needs
Mar. 22,2013 [D.R Edwards Hosp., private room d/t medical needs
Mar. 28, 2013  |S.S. Kindred Hosp. private room d/t age
Apr, 24, 2013 W.T. Swedish American Hosp. privaté room d/t medical needs
Apr. 30, 2013 R.B. Kindred Hosp. isofation
May. 2, 2013 EL Kindred Hosp. isolation
May. 9, 2013 CH. Kindred Hosp. isolation
May. 15,2013 |[L.D. Vitas Hospice isolation
Jun. 3,2013 K.N. Rockford Memorial Hospita! (private room
jul. 8, 2013 LM. Kindred Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
Jul, 30, 2013 DS, Kindred Hosp. isolation
Aug. 6, 2013 G.W. Rockford Memorial Hosp. private room
Wg. 8, 2013 W.B, Kindred Hosp private room d/t medical needs
Aug. 9, 2013 V. Kindred Hosp., private room d/t medical needs
Aug. 9, 2013 M.T. St. Anthony's Hospital private room
Aug. 12,2013 LK. St. Anthony's Hospital private room
Sept. 3, 2013 W.B. Kindred Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
Nov. 1, 2013 AV, St. Anthony Hospital private room
Nov. 6, 2013 H.Y. Kindred Hosp. private room
Nov. 6, 2013 AV, St. Anthony Hospital private room
Nov. 15,2013  |H.Y. Swedish American Hospital jprivate room
Dec. 11,2013 {P.S. Kindred Hosp private room
Dec, 17, 2013 M.M. Kindred Hosp private room
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Driving Directions from 811 W 2nd St, Byron, [llinois 61010 to 811 S 10th St, Oregon, Il... Page 1 of 2

Notes
] , el - Oregon Healthcare Center
= mapguest’
Trip to: E
811 S 10th St
Oregon, IL 61061-2129
11.13 miles / 17 minutes
e Dé\,ﬂmoédm
811 W 2nd St, Byron, IL 61010-1464 Fron Ans
& 1. Start out going west on W 2nd St toward Grant St. Map 0.02 i
0.02 Mi Total
ﬁ' 2. Take the 1st left onto Grant St. Map 0.09 Mi
If you reach Blanchard Ct you've gone a little foo far 0.1 Mi Total
" rz'; 3. Turn right onto IL-2 / IL-72. Continue to follow IL-2. Map 10.6 Mi
£ 10.7 Mj Total
ﬁ 4. Tumn right onto Webster St. Map 0.4 Mi
Webster St is just past Clay St 11.1 Mi Total

If you are on Gale St and reach S 5th St you've gone about 0.1 miles too far

‘1 5. Turn left onto S 10th St. Map 0.01 Mi
11.1 Mj Total

6. 811 S 10TH ST is on the left. Map
If you reach Rhoads Pl you've gone about 0.1 miles too far

811 S 10th St, Oregon, IL 61061-2129
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Driving Directions from 811 W 2nd St, Byron, Illinois 61010 to 811 S 10th St, Oregon, Il... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 11.13 miles - about 17 minutes

i FREE NAVIGATION APP Enter your mobile number
seLecT: O IPHONE O ANDROID i |

©2013 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
their content, road condltions or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from 811 W 2nd St, Byron, Iilinois 61010 to 414 S Wesley Ave, Mou... Page 1 of 2

th_es

m a@ q u e gt » Pinecrest Manor

Trip to: ;
414 S Wesley Ave '
Mount Morris, IL 61054-1428 ‘ : '
12.09 miles / 17 minutes

o Download

811 W 2nd St, Byron, IL 61010-1464 Free App
) 1. Start out going west on W 2nd St toward Grant St. Map 0.02 Vi
0.02 Mi Total
2. Take the 1st teft onto Grant St. Map 0.09 Mi
If you reach Blanchard Ct you've gone a littie foo far 0.1 Mi Total
ﬁ E—l 3. Turn right onto IL-2 / IL-72. Confinue to follow IL-2. Map 7.2 Mi
LA ' : 7.3 Mi Total
w 4. Tum right onto W Mud Creek Rd. Map 3.9Mi
W Mud Creek Rd is 0.5 miles past E Indian Cove Dr 11.2 Mi Total

If you reach Cultra Dr you've gone about 1.1 miles too far

-?. 5. W Mud Creek Rd becomes E Hitt St. Map 0.3 Mi
11.5 Mi Total
ﬁ' @ 8. Turn right onto JL-64. Map 0.3 Mi
Garden View Family Restaurant is on the comner 11.8 Mi Total
ﬁ 7. Turn left onto N Wesley Ave. Map 0.3 Mi
Pepper Mill is on the corner 12.1 Mi Tolal

If you are on W Hitt St and reach N Seminary Ave you've gonhe about 0.1 miles foo far
E 8. 414 8§ WESLEY AVE is on the right. Map

Your destination is just past W Brayton Rd
If you reach the end of S Wesley Ave you've gone a little too far

414 S Wesley Ave, Mount Morris, IL 61054-1428
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Driving Directions from 811 W 2nd St, Byron, Illinois 61010 to 414 S Wesley Ave, Mou... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 12.09 miles - about 17 minutes

FREE NAVIGAT!ON APP Enter your mobile number
- seLecT; O ipHONE O ANDROID l ]

©2013 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subject fo the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
their contert, road conditions or route usability. You assume alf risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from 811 W 2nd St, Byron, Illinois 61010 to 254 Eim St, Rockford, Ill... Page ! of 2

Notes

m a pq Uest‘ | Warrior's Gaiewéy .

Trip to:

254 Elm St
Rockford, i 61101-1264
15.75 miles / 24 minutes

_ _ Deownload
811 W 2nd St, Byron, IL 61010-1464 Free App
@ 1. Start out going east on W 2nd St toward N Lincoln St. Map 0.1 Mi
0.1 Mi Total
!’ 2. Take the 2nd right onto N Colfax St/ N Tower Rd. Map 0.09 Mi
N Coffax Stis just past N Lincoln St 0.2 Mi Total
If you reach N Lafayette St you've gone about 0.1 miles too far
41 ™} 3. Tumn left onto IL-2 7 IL-72. Continue to follow IL-2. Map 11.0Mi
Casey's Carry-Out Pizza is on the comer 11.2 Mi Total
ﬁ 4. Tum left onto S Main St/ IL-2. Continue to follow S Main St. Map 4.3 Mi
Road Ranger is on the comer 16.5 Mi Total

if you reach the end of Hanger Dr you've gone a little too far

F 5. Turn slight right onto Wyman Crossover / IL-2 N. Continue to follow tL-2 N. Map 0.2 Mi
% IL-2 N is just past Cedar Sf 15.7 Mi Total
ﬂ 6. Turn left onto Eim St. Map 0.02 Mi
E!m St is just past Chestnut St 15.8 Mi Tofal

Happy Wok is on the comer
If you reach W State St you've gone a little too far

B 7. 254 ELM ST is on the left. Map
If you reach S Main St you've gone & little too far

254 Elm St, Rockford, IL 61101-1264
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Driving Directions from 811 W 2nd St, Byron, 1llinois 61010 to 254 Elm St, Rockford, Ill... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 15.75 miles - about 24 minutes

FREE NAVlGATlON APP Enter your mobile number
seLecT: O 1pHoNE O ANDROID | }

©2013 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
their content, road conditions or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from 811 W 2nd St. Byron, Illinois 61010 to 599 W 7th St, Pecatonica... Page 1 of 2

Notes

m a@ q u est- Peca’tomca Pavifion

Trip to:

599 W 7th St
Pecatonica, IL 61063-9741
17.78 miles / 25 minutes

| Downioad
811 W 2nd St, Byron, IL 61010-1464 Fros Aon
' 1. Start out going east on W 2nd St foward N Lincoln St. Map 0.1 Mi
& )
G.1 Mi Total
ﬂ 2. Take the 1st left onto N Colfax 8t/ N Tower Rd. Continue to follow N Tower 5.7 N
Rd. Map 5.8 Mj Total

N Tower Rd is just past N Lincoln St
If you reach N Lafayette St you've gone about 0.1 miles too far

Q.E 3. Tum left onto Montague Rd. Map ' 1.2 Mi
: 7.1 Mi Total
ﬂ 4. Tum right onto S Hoisington Rd. Map 5.7 Mi
S Hoisington Rd is 0.9 miles past Kendall Rd 12.8 Mi Total

If you reach N Conger Rd you've gone about 0.9 miles foo far

5. Turn left onto US-20 W/ Ulysses S Grant Memorial Hwy. Map ) 3.0 Mi
Em'\; US-20 W is 0.6 miles past Comly Rd 15.8 Mi Total
S |If you are on N Hoisington Rd and reach Berglund Rd you've gone about 0.8 miles too
far
ﬁ 8. Turn right onto N Pecatonica Rd. Map 1.5Mi
' N Pecalonica Rd is 0.2 miles past N Jackson Rd 17.3 Mi Total
If you reach Grove Rd you've gone about 0.4 miles too far
% 7. Tumn left onto W 7th St. Map 0.5 Mi
W 7th St s just past £ 8th St 17.8 Mi Total

If you reach £ 6th St you've gone a little foo far

B 8. 599 W 7TH ST. Map

Your destination is 0.1 miles past John St
If you reach Grove St you've gone a littfe too far

599 W 7th St, Pecatonica, IL 61063-974142.308881,-89.368723

(Address is approximate)
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‘Driving Directions from 811 W 2nd St, Byron, Illinois 61010 to 599 W 7th St, Pecatonica... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 17.78 miles - about 25 minutes

FREE NAVIGAT[ON APP Enter your mobile number
seLeCT: O ipHONE O ANDROID [

©2013 MapQuest, nc. Use of directions and maps is subject fo the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
their content, road conditions or route usabilily. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from 811 W 2nd St, Byron, Illinois 61010 to 1660 S Mulford Rd, Roc...

Notes

maﬂq&JéSf ROS‘3W00d Care Center of Rockford

Trip to:

1660 S Mulford Rd
Rockford, IL 61108-6760
19.71 miles / 26 minutes

811 W 2nd St, Byron, IL 61010-1464

@ 1. Start out going east on W 2nd St toward N Lincoln St. Map
ﬁ 2. Take the 2nd right onto N Colfax St/ N Tower Rd. Map

N Colfax St is just past N Lincoln St
Iif you reach N [ afayette St you've gone about 0.1 miles too far

q 7l 3. Turn left onto IL-2/ IL-72. Continue to follow IL-2. Map
—  Casey's Canry-Out Pizza is on the comer

‘1 4. Turn left onto S Main St/ IL.2. Map

Road Ranger is on the comer
if you reach the end of Hanger Dr you've gone a little too far

’1 5. Merge onto US-20 E / Ulysses S Grant Memorial Hwy toward 1-90 /
% Belvidere. Map
EXIT 6. Take the Alpine Rd exit. Map
R
ﬁ 7. Tum left onto S Alpine Rd. Map

If you reach US-20 E you've gone about 0.2 miles too far

r} 8. Turn right onto Harrison Ave. [Map
Harrison Ave is 0.1 miles past Manchester Dr
Walgreens is on the comer
If you reach Beach St you've gone a little too far

ﬂ 9. Turn left onto S Mutford Rd. Map

S Mulford Rd is 0.1 miles past Wendy Ln
Angelo's Restaurant & Pizzeria is on the left
if you reach Dudley Dr you've gone about 0.2 miles too far

m 10. 1660 S MULFORD RD is on the right. Map

Your destination is just past Carriage Green Way
if you reach Phaeton Dr you've gone a little too far

1660 S Mulford Rd, Rockford, iL 61108-6760

Download
Free App

0.1 Mi
0.1 Mi Total

0.09 Mi

0.2 Mi Total
11.0Mi

11.2 Mi Total
0.5 Mi

11.7 Mi Total

4.0 Mi
15.7 Mi Total

0.3 Mi
16.0 Mi Total

1.4 Mi
17.4 Mi Total

1.5 Mi
18.9 Mi Total

0.8 Mi
18.7 Mi Total
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Driving Directions from 811 W 2nd St, Byron, Illinois 61010 to 1660 S Mulford Rd, Roc... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 19.71 miles - about 26 minutes

FREE NAVIGATION APP Enter your mobile number
seLeCT: O tPHONE O ANDROID L ]

@2013 MapQuest, inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
their content, road conditions of route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from 811 W 2nd St, Byron, Illinois 61010 to 550 S Mulford Rd, Rockf... Page I of 2

Notes

m apquest‘ AIden-Alma Nefson Manor

Trip to:

550 S Mulford Rd
Rockford, IL 61108-2511
20.56 miles / 27 minutes

811 W 2nd St, Byron, IL 61010-1464

& 1. Start out going east on W 2nd St toward N Lincoln St. Map

ﬁ 2. Take the 2nd right onto N Colfax St/ N Tower Rd. Man

N Colfax St is just past N Lincoln St
If you reach N Lafayette St you've gone about 0.1 miles too far

ﬁ 3. Turn left onto IL-2 / IL-72. Continue to follow IL-2. Map
Casey's Carry-Out Pizza is on the comer
@a 2 4. Turn left onto S Main St/ IL-2. Map

Road Ranger is on the comer
If you reach the end of Hanger Dr you've gone a little too far

3-1, 5. Merge onto US-20 E / Ulysses S Grant Memorial Hwy toward 1-90 /
F Belvidere. Map

BT 6. Take the Alpine Rd exit. Map

k-

ﬁ 7. Tum feft onto 8 Alpine Rd. Map

If you reach US-20 E you've gone about 0.2 miles foo far

ﬁ 8. Tum right onto Harrison Ave. Map
Harrison Ave is 0.1 miles past Manchester Dr
Walgreens is on the corner
If you reach Beach St you've gone a little too far

ﬁ 9. Turn left onto S Mulford Rd. Map

S Mulford Rd is 0.1 miles past Wendy Ln
Angelo’s Restaurant & Pizzeria is on the left
If you reach Dudley Dr you've gone about 0.2 miles too far

10. 550 S MULFORD RD is on the right. Map

Your destination is just past Alma Dr
If you reach Elaine Dr you've gone a little too far

550 S Mulford Rd, Rockford, IL 61108-2511

Download
Free App

0.1 Mi
0.1 Mi Total

0.09 Mi

0.2 Mi Total
11.0 Mi

11.2 Mi Total
0.5 Mi

11.7 Mi Total

4.0 Mi
15.7 Mi Total -

0.3 Mi
16.0 Mi Total
1.4 Mi
17.4 Mi Total

1.5 M
18.9 Mi Total

1.7 Mi
20.6 Mi Total
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Driving Directions from 811 W 2nd St, Byron, lllinois 61010 to 550 S Mulford Rd, Rockf... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 20.56 miles - about 27 minutes

FREE NAVIGATION APP Enter your mabile aumber
seLECT: O ipHONE O ANDROID I 1

©2013 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
their content, road conditions or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use

81 ATTACHMENT-10D
http://’www.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.b7b25ebf6b9f5449871 14eec 11/19/2013




Driving Directions from 811 W 2nd St, Byron, Illinois 61010 to 321 Amold Ave, Rockfo... Page 1 of 2

Notes .
. Fairview Nursing Plaza

Trip to:

321 Arnold Ave
Rockford, IL 61108-2315
20.38 miles / 28 minutes

811 W 2nd St, Byron, IL 61010-1464

@ 1. Start out going east on W 2nd St toward N Lincoln St. Map
ﬁ 2. Take the 2nd right onto N Colfax St/ N Tower Rd. Map

N Coffax St is just past N Lincoln St
if you reach N Lafayette St you've gone about 0.1 miles too far

% E] 3. Tum left onto IL-2 / IL-72. Continue to follow IL-2. Map
' Casey's Carry-Out Pizza is on the corner

"! |——2J*1 4. Turn feft onto S Main St/IL-2. Map

Road Ranger is on the corner
if you reach the end of Hanger Dr you've gone a little too far

’1 5. Merge onto US-20 E / Ulysses S Grant Memorial Hwy toward {-90 /

i 2&‘ Belvidere. Map

EXIT 6. Take the Alpine Rd exit. Map
&
ﬁ 7. Tumn feft onto S Alpine Rd. Map

if you reach US-20 E you've gone about 0.2 miles too far

{ E State Stis just past Manheim Rd

w 8. Tum right onto E State St/ US-20-BR. Map
Zq Hlinois State Of; Secretary of State Police Department is on the right

If you are on N Alpine Rd and reach Raven St you've gone about 0.1 miles too far

F} 9. Tum right onto Arnold Ave. Map

Amold Ave is 0.3 miles past S New Towne Dr
Lino's is on the comer
if you are on E State St and reach Justin Ct you've gone a little too far

10. 321 ARNOLD AVE is on the right. Map

Your destination is just past Justin Ct
If you reach Elaine Dr you've gone a little too far

321 Arnold Ave, Rockford, IL 61108-2315

82
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Download
Free App

0.1 Mi
0.1 Mi Total

0.09 Mi

0.2 Mi Total
11.0 Mi

11.2 Mi Total
0.5 Mi

11.7 Mi Total

4.0 Mi
16.7 Mi Total

0.3 Mi
16.0 Mi Total

3.2Mi
19.2 Mi Totaf

1.1 M
20.3 Mi Total

0.1 Ml
20.4 Mi Total
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Driving Directions from 811 W 2nd St, Byron, Illinois 61010 to 321 Arnold Ave, Rockfo... Page2of2

Total Travel Estimate: 20.38 miles - about 28 minutes

FREE NAVIGATION APP Enter your mabite pumber
seLecT: O iPHONE O ANDROID | ]

©2013 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
their content, road conditions or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from 811 W 2nd St, Byron, Illinois 61010 to 2313 N Rockton Ave, Ro... Page [ of 2

Notes

mapqu@st' ;Amberwood Nursing & Rehab Ctr.

Trip to:
2313 N Rockton Ave
Rockford, 1L 61103-3618
19.47 miles / 29 minutes

Download
811 W 2nd St, Byron, L 61010-1464 Free App
1. Start out gaing east on W 2nd St toward N Lincoln St. Map 0.1 Mi
® ;
0.1 Mi Total
2. Take the 2nd right onto N Coifax St/ N Tower Rd. Map ' 0.09 Mi
N Coffax St is just past N Lincoln St 0.2 Mi Total
If you reach N Lefayette St you've gone abhout 0.1 miles foo far
ﬁ E " 3. Turn teft onto L2/ IL-72. Continue 1o follow H.-2. Map 74 Mi
Casey’'s Carry-Out Pizza is on the coiner 7.3 Mi Total
% 4, Tum left onto S Meridian Rd. Map 7.6 Mi
If you are on S Main St and reach Gold River Ave you've gone about 0.4 miles too far 14.9 Mi Total
ﬁ 5. Turn right onto Auburn St. Map 4.0 Mi
* Aubumn St is just past Havaview Dr 18.9 Mi Total
ﬁ 6. Turn teft onto N Rockton Ave. Map 0.6 Mi
N Rockton Ave is just past Aubum Ct 19.5 Mi Total

Pizza Hut is on the comer
If you reach Tacoma Ave you've gone a little too far

- 7. 2313 N ROCKTON AVE is on the right. Map

Your destination is just past Yan Wie Ave
If you reach Fulton Ave you've gone a little too far

2313 N Rockton Ave, Rockford, IL 61103-3618
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Driving Directions from 811 W 2nd St, Byron, Illinois 61010 to 2313 N Rockton Ave, Ro... Page 2 of 2

Total Travel Estimate: 19.47 miles - about 29 m'inutes

FREE NAVIGATION APP  Ener your mobie number
seLecT: O ipHoNE O ANDROID [

©2013 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
their content, road conditions or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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SECTION II - PURPOSE OF THE PROJECTD, AND ALTERNATIVES-
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS continued iv

Criterion 1125.330 — Alternatives

1. Identify ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project:

Alternative options must include:

a. Proposing a proiect of greater or lesser scope and cost;

b. Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing
alternative setfings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes;

C. Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and

d. Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.

2. Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The
comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financial
benefits in both the short term (within one to three years after project completion) and
long term. This may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE
IDENTIFIED THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE
ALTERNATIVE WAS REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED.

ALTERNATIVE #1 Lesser Scope: Only the modernization of Neighbors Rehabilitation
Center.

Cost

The proposed modernization contracts line item for this project is estimated to be
$1,589,415 not including contingencies.
Patient Access

The issue facing this facility is that there is an increased demand for additional private
occupancy resident rooms. The proposed renovation does not take tliis into account as no semi-
private rooms are to be converted to private. The physical plant layout with 36 of the semi-
private rooms sharing a toilet with adjacent semi-private room does not lend itself to efficiently
and cost effectively convert rooms into private accommodations. On the other hand, for the
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SECTION II - PURPOSE OF THE PROJECTD, AND ALTERNATIVES-;
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS continued v

Applicant to reduce the total number of beds available would further only exacerbate the issue
that the facility has been turning potential admissions away due to the lack of beds that are
available because of gender incompatibility and isolation needs for infection issues. The
remedy would only be a trade off as the facility has historically been operating in excess of the
State’s target of 90%. Therefore, there appears to be no available nursing beds. According the
Applicant's listing of potential residents turned away in the last two Calendar Year (2012 &
2013) there were 65 residents turned away (refer to ATTACHMENT-11A). Therefore, to
reduce the total number of beds licensed beds would only make the issue of patient access more
restrictive.
Quality

The hiétorically high utilization of Neighbors Rehabilitation Center speaks to the high
quality and passion that this facility provides and sths to its residents. In CY 2010, 2011 and
2012, the facility maintained an average use rate in excess of 90%, 91.6%, 92.6% and 91.8%
respectively. According to the Facility's administrator, the falling utilization comes from the
evolving long-term care marketplace where hospitals are diagnosing more infection issues and
today's rehab patients are demanding private rooms. The fall off in utilization is not a result of
quality as the facility had to turn away so many inquiries {65 potential residents as illustrated in
ATTACHMENT-11A). In addition, with the hospital knowing that the facility does not have
the availability of private rooms, they limit their referrals to the Subject facility. Likewise,
comimunity residents also know that the facility lacks private room accommodations and inquire
at facilities outside the community and often the county. Moreover, the issue as presented here is
about accessibility and not quality. The Applicant states and continues to offer its commitment
to the highest quality in care but this alternative restricts the accessibility of those in need of
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SECTION II - PURPOSE OF THE PROJECTD, AND ALTERNATIVES-
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS cContinued vi

long-term care. This alternative does not allow for greater quality of care for existing residents
as they have and will continue to have to seek services at other facilities as their medical needs
outweigh their programmatic needs.

Financial Benefits

While the capital costs of this alternative are less expensive than that of the proposed
project, there are no financial benefits to this alternative. Potential residents are being turned
away at an increasing rate (CY2012 105 and CY2013 with 162). Refer to ATTACHMENT-
11B for the total referrals deferred by the Applicant. Should this trend continue, the facility
could suffer irreparable damage to its reputation and desirability, thereby, making the facility
less marketable.

For these reasons listed under this alternative, this option was considered not viable.

ALTERNATIVE #2 Greater Scope: The total replacement of Neighbors Rehabilitation
Center.

Cost

To estimate the raw construction cost of a bed-for-bed replacement, regardless if it is on-
site or off-site, it would be presumed that all 101 beds were to be replaced in approximately 500
gross square feet per bed (50,500 gsf) at a construction contract cost of $220 per gsf. This would
equate to a construction contract line item of well over $11 million. This does not include any of
the soft costs or new equipment that would most assuredly be part of the project.
Patient Access

The presumptions included above would not be large enough for an all private room
facility. However, even if half of the rooms could be the more desirable, private rooms with
private baths, the applicant had an average use rate in excess of 90% for the most recent 3 years
for which historical data is available. It would appear that no potential availability exists under
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SECTION II - PURPOSE OF THE PROJECTD, AND ALTERNATIVES-
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS continued vii

the State’s target use rate. Thus, no potential accessibility plus the 65 residents who were turned
away, falls short on improving patient accessibility.
Quality

The issue as presented here is about accessibility and not quality. The Applicant states
and continues to offer its commitment to the highest quality in care but this alternative restricts
the accessibility of those in need of long-term care. This alternative does not allow for greater
quality of care for existing residents as they have and will continue to have to seek services at
other facilities as their medical needs outweigh their programmatic needs.

Financial Benefits

There does not appear to be any financial benefits to the proposed project. The capital
costs to this alternative are higher than that of the project as being proposed. To not remedy the
inaccessibility to the care and services being sought could also do irreparable harm to the
facility's reputation and thus its desirability.

For the reasons stated under this alternative, this option was considered not viable.

ALTERNATIVE #3 Pursuing a Joint Venture or Utilizing Other Health Care Resources:

Cost

There is no cost to this alternative. Neighbors Rehabilitation Center is the only long-term
nursing care facility in more than 10-miles and nearly 17 minutes travel time from the existing
facility. There is not a hospital in Byron (with the closet being Swedish American in Rockford
which is approximately 26-miles in distance) to subsidize or fill in the care gaps left by this
facility (refer to ATTACHMENT-11C). Thus, to pursue a joint venture and the utilization of

other health care resources are truly not viable alternatives.
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SECTION II - PURPOSE OF THE PROJECTD, AND ALTERNATIVES-
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS continued viil

Patient Access

As this alternative is not viable to implement, patient access would also not be improved
by this alternative.
Quality

The Applicant states and continues to offer its commitment to the highest quality in care
but this alternative restricts the accessibility of those in need of long-term care. This alternative
does not allow for greater quality of care for existing residents as they have and will continue to
have to seek services other facilities as their medical needs outweigh their programmatic needs.
Financial Benefits |

As this alternative is not viable to implement, then there would not be any financial
benefits to this alternative.
ALTERNATIVE #4 the Proposed Project:
Cost

The comparable basis for cost is to look at the construction and modernization line items
of this project resulting in a capital cost of $7,295,182.
Patient Access

This alternative addresses the access issue for the potential residents who were turned
away and the desirability of the existing nursing care facility. It should be known that the
addition will allow the facility to phase in the renovations of the existing population with the
least disruption to the existing residents. Thus, both the renovated existing space and the
proposed 30 nursing bed addition are essential to, at least in part, address the inaccessibility in
finding general long-term care services in Byron and in the more than 15 minute travel time in
which no other long-term care services exist with the exception of that of the Applicant.
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SECTION II - PURPOSE OF THE PROJECTD, AND ALTERNATIVES-
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS continued ix

Quality

The issue as presented here is about accessibility and not quality. The Applicant states
and continues to offer its commitment to the highest quality in care but this alternative restricts
the accessibility of those in need of long-term care. This alternative will allow for greater quality
of care for existing residents as they have again have the ability to seek and find services near
their home.

Financial Benefits

The financial benefit of this alternative is ultimately the continued and ongoing viability

of providing nursing care and services in Byron through Neighbors Rehabilitation Center.

3. The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that
verifies improved quality of care, as available.

The issue as presented here is about accessibility and not quality. The Applicant states
and continues to offer its commitment to the highest quality in care and in physical plant

environment; therefore, this issue is not germane.
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et ke

Street Address:

811 W. 2nd Street

EIG Byron, Iilinois 61010
Mailing Address:

P,0O. Box 585

Rehabilitation Center Byron, Ilinois 61010

February 11, 2014

Ms. Courtney Avery, Administrator

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W, Jefferson St., 2™ Floor

Springfield, L. 62761

RE: Historical Service Demand

Dear Ms. Avery:

Neighbors Rehabilitation Center (NRC) has utilized a waiting list at different times over the past
24 months. Also during that time frame, 65 referrals were referred to other care facilities due to
lack of bed availability at NRC. Attached you will find a complete list of these referrals.

Please contact me if you have any questions or concerns regarding this information.

Pawn Thammarath
Administrator

PT:pk

ne

www.neighborsbyron.com
ph: 815.234.2511 95 fax: 815.234.3114




NRC - HISTORICAL SERVICE DEMAND
1/1/12 - 12/31/13

Date Referral | SOR Reason for referral

Jan, 3, 2012 LT, Swedish American Hasp. o female bed available

Feb. 1, 2012 CG. Univ, of Wisconsin Hosp. private room d/t age

Feb, 20,2012 |M.K. Swedish American Hosp. private room

Feb. 20, 2012 J.S. family no bed available on Special Care Unit
Feb. 23, 2012 B.A. 'KSB Hosp. isolation

Mar, 12,2012 {L.S. family no beds available

Mar. 23,2012  |Male family wanted a2 more updated room
Mar. 23, 2012 [Female (family wanted a nicer looking facility
Mar. 24,2012 [Male Freeport Memorial Hosp. no bed available on Special Care Unit
Apr. 6, 2012 Male Freeport Memorial Hosp. no beds available

Apr. 11, 2012 KJ. OSF St. Francis Hosp. private room d/t age

Apr. 11,2012  |I.C. ‘Swedish American Hosp. isolation

Apr.19, 2012 K.C. Swedish American Hosp, different facility with private room
Apr. 28, 2012 D.C Rockford Memorial Hosp. no beds available

May. 24,2012 [S.D. OSF St. Anthony Hosp. isofation

Jul, 13, 2012 ES. family private room

Aug. 1, 2012 H.S. Rockford Memorial Hosp,  |no bed available on Special Care Unit
Aug. 7, 2012 .S, OSF St. Anthony Hosp. isolation

Aug. 27,2012 |A.P. Swedish American Hosp. isolation

Aug. 27,2012 [1.B. Kindred Hosp. isolation

Aug. 29,2012 |S.C. OSF St. Anthony Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
Nov. 8, 2012 D.E, Heartland Hospice no beds available

Nov. 15,2012 {R.M. Univ. of Wisconsin Hosp. no beds available

Nov. 15,2012 |D.L Kindred Hosp. private room d/t age

Nov. 20,2012  |I.B. Select Specialty Hasp. no bed available

Nov. 23, 2012 M.V. Kishwaukee Hosp. isolation

Nov. 26,2012  {R.P. Heritage Health no bed avilable

Nov. 27,2012 [MF. Illinois Masonic Hosp. no hed available

Nov. 27,2012  1W.B. no bed on Special Care Unit

Nov. 27,2012  |CS. Swedish American Hosp no beds available

Dec.4,2012 (WA, St. Anthony Hospital different facility w/ private room
Dec. 18, 2012 8.C. Rockford Memarial Hospital |different facility w/ private room
Dec. 21,2012 |P.E. MacNeal Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
Dec, 21, 2012 P.T. OSF St. Francis Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
Jan, 22, 2013 R.S. Kindred Hasp. private room d/t medical needs
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NRC - HISTORICAL SERVICE DEMAND
1/1/12 - 12/31/13

Date Referral SOR Reason for referral
Feb. 5, 2013 D.G. Univ. of Wisconsin Hosp. isolation
Feb. 5, 2013 KT, Kindred Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
Feb. 6, 2013 E.F. Kindred Hosp. isolation
Feb.21,2013 |DS. Rockford Memorial Hosp.  {isolation
Mar, 8, 2013 M.L family private room
Mar. 11, 2013  [W.M, Kindred Hasp. private room d/t medical needs
Mar, 20, 2013 R.O. Swedish American Hosp. private room
Mar. 22, 2013  |C.S. Fairview Nursing Plaza private room d/t age
Mar. 22, 2013 |M.R. Rush Medical Center private room d/t medical needs
Mar, 22, 2013  D.R. Edwards Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
Mar. 28, 2013 [S.S! Kindred Hosp. private room d/t age
Apr. 24, 2013 W.T. Swedish American Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
Apr.30,2013 [R.B. Kindred Hosp. isolation
May. 2, 2013 EL Kindred Hosp. isolation
May. 9, 2013 CH. Kindred Hosp. isolation
May. 15,2013 |L.D. Vitas Hospice isolation
Jun. 3,2013 K.N. Rockford Memorial Hospital |private room
iul. 8, 2013 L.M. Kindred Hosp. private room d/ft medical needs
Jul. 30, 2013 DS, Kindred Hosp. {solation
Aug. 6, 2013 G.W. Rockford Memorial Hosp. private room .
Aug. 8, 2013 W.B, Kindred Hosp private room d/t medical needs
Aug. 9, 2013 JV. Kindred Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
Aug. 9, 2013 M.T. St. Anthony's Hospital private room
Aug. 12,2013 |LK. St, Anthony's Hospital private room
Sept. 3, 2013 'W.B, Kindred Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
Nov.1,2013 AV, St. Anthony Hospital private room
Nov. 6, 2013 H.Y. Kindred Hosp. private room
Nov. 6, 2013 AV. St. Anthony Hospital private room
Nov. 15,2013 [H.Y. Swedish American Hospital |private room
Dec. 11, 2013 P.S. Kindred Hosp private room
Dec. 17, 2013 M.M. Kindred Hosp private room
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Driving Directions from 811 W 2nd St, Byron, [llinois 61010 to 1401 E State St, Rockfor... Page 1 of 2

Notes
Swedish American Hestih &slem'
Trip lo:
1401 E State St
Rocklord, il 81104-2315
16.88 miles / 27 minutes
Download
@ 811w 2nd St, Byron, IL 61010-1464 | P
@ 1. Start out going sast on W 2nd St loward N Lincain 8t. Map a1 mi
G 10 Total
r‘ 2. Take the 2nd right onto N Colfax St /N Tower Rd. Map 0.09 Mi
N Colfax St s just past N Lincoln St 0.2 Mi Totat
if you react: N Lafayette St you've gone about 0.1 miles foo far
ﬁ ; 3. Turn jeft onto IL-2 7 AL-T2. Contmue to foflow 1L-2. Map 11.0 Mi
-4 Casey's Cary-Out Pizza is on the comer 11.2 5 Fota!
‘1 4. Tum left onlo 8 Main St/1L-2. Conlinue 1o follow S Main St. Map 43 Mi
Road Ranger (s on the comer 155 M Tolal
#you reacti the end of Hanger Dr you've gone a litte (oo far
3 5. Tumn slight right onto Wyman Crossover/IL-2 N Continue 10 follow IL-2 N. Map 0.1 Mt
; 21 -2 Nisjust past Cedar St 15.7 M Total
r’ ; 6. Tum right onto Chastnut St / US-20-BR E. Conlinue to folow US-20-BR E. Map 0.9 Mi
- US-20-8R £ s just past S Wyman St . 16.5 Mi Total
0% f you reach Elm St you've gone a little too far
ﬂ 2 7. Tum jeft onto S Longwood St/ US-20-BRE. Map 0.06 Mi
;f&f S Longwoad St is just past 7th St 16.6 Mi Yotal
\2(1.k # you are on Chertes St and reach 2nd Ave you've gone about 0.1 miles (00 far
P = 8 Take the 15t right onlo E State St / US-20-BR. Map 03 mi
g;f’. U S. Bank - East State OFfice 1s on the nght 16 ¢ Mi Totat
~ {f you &are on N Longwood St and reach Spafford Ave yau've gone about 0.1 mfes too
far
a . 1501 E STATE ST is on tha right. Man

Your destination is 6.1 miles past 9th St
# you reach Regan St you've gone & little Loo far

@ 1401 E State St, Rockford, IL 61104-2315
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Driving Directions from §11 W 2nd St, Byron, Itlinois 61010 to 1401 E State St, Rockfor... Page 2 of 2

2014 MapQuest, lnc Use of diteclions and maps is sutgect to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuwrscy of
thew content. rosd cordmons of foute usabiily ‘You assume aif nsk of use. Y aw Teoms af Lse

109 ATTACHMENT-11C
http://www.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.e0d32c23ea0904 140a274b56 2/12/2014




SECTION 1V - SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA continued i

GENERAL LONG-TERM CARE
Criterion 1125.520 ~ Background of the Applicant

The applicant shall provide:

1. A listing of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including
licensing, and certification if applicable.

ATTACHMENT-12A identifies all nursing facilities owned and operated by the
Applicant or its related entities. A copy of all the aforementioned facilities® licenses and
certifications as applicable are appended under ATTACHMENT-12B.

2. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated
by the applicant during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

The required documentation with regards to adverse action, as required under 1125.520,

c) 2, is appended as ATTACHMENT-12C. It should be noted that the ownership and operating
entities of the proposed Neighbors Rehabilitation Center do not have any adverse action taken
against them.

3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify
the information submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other
State agencies: the licensing or certification records of other states, when applicable; and
the records of nationally recognized accreditation organizations. Failure to provide
such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal of the
application without any further action by HFSRB.

The above requested authorization for the HFSRB and the DPH access to information is
appended as ATTACHMENT-12D.

4, If during a given calendar vear, an applicant submits more than one application for
permit, the documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill
the information requirements of this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest
the information has been previously provided, cite the project number of the prior

application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the information that has

been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

This item is not germane.

ATTACHMENT-12
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Nursing Homes in Illinois ' Page 1 of 1

Ownership Information

NEIGHEORS REHABILITATION CTR

811 WEST 2ND STREET
BYRON L 61010

Administration .
ADMINISTRATOR  PAWN THAMMARATH Staffin
TELEPHONE 815-234-2511

BRYAN G BARRISH
has ownership interest in the foltowing long term care entities

Facitity Percentage Owned
APPLEWOOD REHABILITATION CTR 12.07
FAIRVIEW NURSING PLAZA 14,20
BRYN MAWR CARE 13.50
COLUMBUS PARK N & REHAB CENTER 7.20
MAPLEWOOD CARE 13.00
H El {TATY 11.83
DECATUR MANOR HEALTHCARE 8.90
REGENCY REHABILITATION CENTER 1215
ALBANY CARE 7.34
ROCK ISLAND NSG & REHAB CTR 9.48
ELMWOOD CARE 14.25
WILSON CARE 1141

itgk aufine home @g sitrsing homes ta Hiinals

111 ' ATTACHMENT-12A
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Nursing Homes in [llinois Page 1 of 1

Ownership information

NEIGHBORS REHABILITATION CTR

811 WEST 2ND STREET
BYRON  iL 61010

Administration
ADMIMISTRATOR ~ PAWN THAMMARATH Starfing :
TELEPHONE 815-234-2511

RALPH_J. GESUALDO
has ownership interest in the following long term care entities

Facility Percentage Owned
H B CIR 1.83
DECATUR MANOR HEALTHCARE 8.90
REGENCY REHABILITATION CENTER 12.15
ROCK ISLAND NSG & REHAB CTR 9.48

Fayment H0Uice
Privite Payimenot Hates

idph anlize home

eursing bomes in iasls @

112 ATTACHMENT-12A
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Nursing Homes in Illinois Page 1 of 1

Ownership information

NEIGHBORS REHABILITATION CTR

811 WEST 2ND STREET
BYRON  {L 61010

ADMINISTRATOR PAWN THAMMARATH
TELEPHONE 815-234-2511

MICHAEL R GIANNINI
has ownership interest in the following long term care entilies

Facllity Percentage Owned
COLUMBUS PARK N & REHAS CENTER 6.60
MAPLEWOOD CARE 18.00
NEIGHBORS REHABILITATION CTR 10.01
REGENCY REHABILITATION CENTER 10.42
ALBANY CARE 7.31
ELMWOOD CARE 11.87

fdp¥ aafize home @% o8r3iag humes in iftinals
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-92/01/2813 14:35 B47475B316 ALBANY CARE PAGE 82/82
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engage !n the adfvltg,a! shdcméd' iow .
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-t—— DISPLAY THIS PART IN A
CONSPICUOUS PLACE

REMOVE THIS CARD TO CARRY AS AN
IDENTIFICATION

REGION ¢
07/23/13
APPLEHWDNOD REHABII.ITATION TR
21020 KOSTNER EﬁUE
MATTESON IL 60443

ATTACHMENT-12B
FEE RECEIPT NO.
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DENTIFICATION

REMOVE THIS CARD TO CARRY AS AN

CONSPICUOUS PLACE
REGION S
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82/18/2613 g9: 31

B1533976131

FAIRVIEW

PAGE

( LICENSE, PERMHT, CERTIFICATION, REGISTRATION )

The poraon, hfm or corporation whess hame sppears on his caditicats has gempled with the
provigions of the ilinois Statules and/or rules Bo raguiations snd ls hereby euthorizes to
sngags it the achvlly a3 ndizaled below.

LB MAR HASPRGULK, MD, MPH 'ﬂuosdmwun.:uﬂvmyu
SIRECTOR P | eSuo i

BTN e T SRIRGRY T T
Q272172015 | BGRE| DUITESS

LONG. T&Rﬁ CARE LICEMSE
SHILLED 099
IMTQ'RME»(AYE ii4

UNRESTRECTES 213 TOTAL  BEDS

BUSINESS ADDRESS
L ICENSEE

AIRVESH NURSING PLAZAy; TN

FAIRVIEN NUR-:IMF PLAZA
321 ARNOU’) AVEH U£
RO L 61104

> SFERALAN DATA: .m&

"J.)I"s\m},,l\wm ) l'ij(;x{ \: ;)“M
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Street Address:

. 811 W. 2nd Street
EI@ @RS Byron, lineis 61010
' Mailhig Address:
’ g . P.O. Box 585
Rehabilitation Center Byron, Tilinois 61010
November 1,2013
Ms. Courtn: ey
Administrator

Health Facilities and Services Review Board

525 West Jefferson Street, 2% Floor
Springfield, IL. 62761

Dear Avery:

Please be advised that no “adverse action” as defined under 1125.140 has been taken against the Applicant or
against any health care facility owned or operated by the applicant, directly or indirectly, within three years
preceding the filing of the Certificate of Need Application.

Sincerely,

Pawn Thammarath
Administrator

Subscnbed and in to before me

[ dayof 2013 . m
Notary Public W& { E; [,ﬁé

www.neighborsbyron.com

ph: 815.234.2511

127

fax: 815.234.3114
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ﬂlb , 901 Maple Avenue
an : Evanston, lilinols 60202

C phone: 847.475.4000

Qr 6 — » _ fax: 847.475.8316

= i S S —————
November 18, 2013

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, ond Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

Please be advised that no “adverse action” as defined under 1125.140 has been taken
- against the Applicant or against any health care facility owned or operated by the Applicant,
directly or indirectly, within three years preceding the filing of the Certificate of Need
Application.

Sincerely,
Dennis Tossi
Administrator

Subscribed and swormn to before me
This |8 day of 2013

Ot ovicrpmbia
Notary Public

QFFICIAL SEAL
STELLA ELAINE GERDULIS

puptic - State of B
"y NOLBYY ion Expires m 13, zm
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‘ ‘ 21020 Kostner Avenue
weé

- “: APPCLEWOOD Matteson, IL 60443

= . i Phone: 708-747-1300
4 Rehabilitation Center Fax: 708-747-6282

November 18, 2013

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

Please be advised that no “adverse action” as defined under 1125.140 has been takeri
against the Applicant or against any bealth care facility owned or operated by the Applicant,
directly or indirectly, within three years preceding the filing of the Certificate of Need
Application,

Sincerely,

peard .0
Dianne C. O’Connor

Administrator

Subscribgd and sworn to before me

This {€ day of Nlszemie 2013 - S
jﬂ%u‘/ ? :Uw%owv JANET £. HARPER

: 4 NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF RLINOIS
otary Public - § B4V COMMISSION EXPIRES JUK. 20, 2016

www.applewoodrehab.com

oy ATTACHMENT-12C




5547 N. Kenmore
Chicago, IL 60640
Phone: (773) 561-7040
Fax: (773) 561-7543

November 18, 2013

Ms. Courtney Avery

Admunistrator

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2" Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

Please be advised that no “adverse action™ as defined under 1125.140Q has been
taken against the Applicant or against any health care facility owned or operated by the
Applicant, directly or indirectly, within three years preceding the filing of the Certificate

of Need Application.

Sincerely,

Cynthia Schofield
Administrator

Subscribed and sworn to before me

This [ day of flichsr, 2013

Notary Public p

%%C%M

OFFICIAL SEAL

KIMBERLY A WALSH

NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS,
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:07/15/14

AP T

ATTACHMENT-12C
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N'ov 18 13 12:42p p.2

Clumbus

, ark
Nursing & Rehabilitation Cender
POt 5. Avatin Blvd, CThicago, It, 60644
phane: 773-287 059 faw) 75207 7907

November 18, 2013

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2" Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

Please be advised that no “adverse action” as defined under 1125.140 has been
taken against the Applicant or against any health care facility owned or operated by the
Applicant, directly or indirectly, within three years preceding the filing of the Certificate
of Need Application.

Sincerely,

A

Patrick Baaike
Administrator

Subscri})ed and swom 1o before me
Thisl8™ day of #ucle, 2013

OFFICIAL SEAL
KIMBERLY A WALSH
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINO'S
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:07/15/14

Notary Public

AAAAAAA
WAANNAIY

131 ATTACHMENT-12C




DECATUR MANOR HEALTHCARE

Specialists In Rehabilitation, Experts In Caring

Ms. Courtney Avety
Administrator

Health Facilities and Services Review Board

525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

1016 W. Pershing Road
Decatur, lllinois 62526
Telephone: 217-875-0833
Fax: 217-875-6851

November 18, 2013

Please be advised that no “adverse action” as defined under 1125.140 has been taken against the Applicant or
against any health care facility owned or operated by the Applicant, directly or indirectly, within three years preceding the

filing of the Certificate of Need Application.

Sincerely,

UbLR

Ruth Huber
Administrator

Subscribed and sworn to before me
This!&  day 0@2013
Notary Public

;7% Co-Hadoh

OFFICIAL SEAL

KIMBERLY A WALSH

NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:07/15114

AL AL SIS AP O IS
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7733 W. Grand Avenue
Elmwood Park, Hlinois 50707
phone: 708.452.9200

fax: 708.452,7913

November 18, 2013

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

Please be advised that no “adverse action™ as defined under 1125.140 has been taken
against the Applicant or against any health care facility owned or operated by the Applicant,
directly or indirectly, within three years preceding the filing of the Certificate of Need

Application.

Sincerely,

Colleen R, Swanson
Administrator

Subscribed\a 6rn to before me

This [§® day off)3akn, 2013

Notary Public

% /“é O Madod.

e W e

YUSLLOSTIdXT NO!SS!WWOO AR
3 SlOVIT!I 40 3LVLS-2NaNnd AYVLION

w1

NOTARY PUBL!C STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMM‘SSION EXPIRES:07/15/14

s

AN NI
NN h
Y. 7Y
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NURSING PLAZA

Ms. Courtney Avery
Administrator

November 18, 2013

Health Facilities and Services Review Board

525 West Jefferson Street, 2°® Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

321 Arnold

Rockford, Hlinols 61108
phone: 815.397.5531
fax: 815.397.6131

Please be advised that no “adverse action” as defined under 1125.140 has been taken
against the Applicant or against any health care facility owned or operated by the Applicant,
directly or indirectly, within three years preccdmg the filing of the Certificate of Need

Application.

Sincerely,

Marla D Murphy—Kenney
Administrator

Subscribed and swo:
This {£" day of /hwL, 2013

Notary Public

to before me

MMVWW
F OFFICIAL SEAL

» KIMBERLY A WALSH
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF RLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:07/15/14

A AP IAALALAIAIAIAAAAAAARAANA

AAAIAAN
APAAINAAA,

NAAAS

NANAPAAAAAANAIY
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GreenWOOd 1406 N. Chicago Avenue
C % Evanston, lllinois 60201
phone: 847.328.6503

ar e fax: 847.869.4878

— T — ——————

November 18, 2013

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

Please be advised that no “adverse action” as defined under 1125.140 has been taken
against the Applicant or against any health care facility owned or operated by the Applicant,
directly or indirectly, within three years preceding the filing of the Certificate of Need
Application.

Sincerely,

Arleen M. Sxap ?

Administrator

Subscribed and sworn to before me
This (" day off Jae L+, 2013

Notary Public AAAAAARAAAAARAAAAAARARAS

. OFFICIAL SEAL
G Ma bk

KIMBERLY A WALSH 5
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS ;
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:07/15/14 ¢

2 A AAAAAALAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
RAAAARAAANSAIAS

PpRpRpgpegy
NAAINANNAS
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50 N. lane Drive
Elgin, illinois 60123

Wy . phone: 847.697.3750
MAPLEWGOD CARE fax: 847.697.5385

November 18, 2013

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2" Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

Please be advised that no “adverse action” as defined under 1125.140 has been taken
against the Applicant or against any health care facility owned or operated by the Applicant,
directly or indirectly, within three years preceding the filing of the Certificate of Need
Application.

Sincerely,

Jamie Lloyd
Administrator

Subscribed and sworn to before me

This [§™ day of 2013 AAAAAAAAAAAAAAANAANAARAN :
g OFFICIAL SEAL 3
3 KIMBERLY A WALSH $
$  NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF LLINOIS  $
Notary Public § MY COMMSSION DPRESOTIS

?{' M LS
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Regency
abilitation Center

. Specialists in Rehabilitation
Experts in Caring

November 18, 2013

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2" Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

Please be advised that no “adverse action” as defined under 1125.140 has been taken
against the Applicant or against any health care facility owned or operated by the Applicant,
directly or indirectly, within three years preceding the filing of the Certificate of Need

Application.

Sincerely,

Lori Barrish
Administrator

Subscribed and sworn to before me
This [8_ day of #8¢ 2013

OFFICIAL SEAL
. . EDUARDO PUNZALAN
Notary Public Notary Public - State of ifinols
My Commisslon Expires Jan 08, 2014

6631 N. Milwaukee Ave., Niles, Illinois 60714 phone: 847.647.7444 fax:847.647.6403
www.regencyrehabcenter.com
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2545 24t Street  Rock Island, IL 61201
Phone (309) 788-0458 Fax (309) 788-5234

November 18, 2013

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

Please be advised that no “adverse action” as defined under 1125.140 has been
taken against the Applicant or against any heaith care facility owned or operated by the
Applicant, directly or indirectly, within three years preceding the filing of the Certificate
of Need Application.

Sincerely,

Shaila Hart
Administrator

Subscribed and sworn to before me
Thid 8 day of f£2013

OFFICIAL SEAL

KIMBERLY A WALSH

NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:07115/14

Notary Public

Q]{ L

SANAAANN

APANAAANAA
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4544 North Hazel Street
Chicago, IL 60640
Pheone: 773-561-7241
Fax: 773-561-0327

November 18, 2013

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor
Springfield, 1L 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

Please be advised that no “adverse action” as defined under 1125.140 has been taken
against the Applicant or against any health care facility owned or operated by the
Applicant, directly or indirectly, within three years preceding the filing of the Certificate
of Need Application.

Sincerely,

Subscribed and sworn to before me
This | ¥ day ofsz,& 2 » 2013
Notary Public AAAAAAARAAAAAAAARAAAAAAN,
$ OFFICIAL SEAL $
S - , 3 KIMBERLY A WALSH 3
C-’ M $  NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILUNOIS  §
' $ MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:07/15/14 $
AN AAAARAANAAARAAAAARAAASA
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Neighbors Property, LLC 6840 N. Lincoln Ave.

Lincolnwood, Illinois 60712
Ph: 847.675.5959

December 10, 2013

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2° Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

. I'hereby authorize the Health Facilities Planning Board and the Hlinois Department of
Public Heath (IDPH) access to any documents necessary to verify the information submitted,
including but not limited to: official records of IDPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of the states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized
accreditation organizations. I further authorize the Illinois Department of Public Health to obtain
any additional documentation or information that said agency deems necessary for the review of
the Application as it pertains to 1125.520.(3)

Sincerely,

la @l

chael Giannini
President, Bradlor Management
Manager of Neighbors Property, LLC

140 ATTACHMENT-12D




Streot Address:

811 W. 2nd Street

. EIG @R‘S Byren, Dinois 61010

} o Mailing Address:
T} . P.O. Box 585
Rehabilitation Center " Byron, Mineis 1000

R

October 14, 2013

Ms. Courtney

Administrator

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Avery:

I hereby authorize the Health Facilities Planning Board and the Hlinois Department of Public Health (IDPH)
access to any documents necessary to verify the information submitted, including, but not limited to: official records
of IDPH or other State agencies; the licensing or certification records of the states, when applicable; and the records
of nationally recognized accreditation organizations. I further authorize the Illinois Department of Public Heaith to
obtain any additional documeritation or information that said agency deems necessary for the review of the

Application as it pertains to 1125.520.(3)

Sincerely,

:

!

t

| ag .

Pawn Thammaral
Administrator

www.neighborsbyron.com
ph: 815.234.2511 fax: 815.234.3114
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SECTION IV — SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA Continued i

Criterion 1125.530 - Planning Area Need

1. Identify the calculated number of beds needed (excess) in the planning area. See HFSRB

website (http://hfsrb.illinois.gov) and click on “Health Facilities Inventories & Data”.

According to the “Applicable Review Criteria Outlined™ chart on pages 9 and 10 of this

application referring to <77 11l Admin Code 11257, this item is not germane.

2. Attest that the primary purpose of the project is to serve residents of the planning area

and that at least 50% of the patients will come from within the planning area.

The Applicant’s patient origin data for admissions to Neighbors Rehabilitation Center is
appended as ATTACﬂMENT—BA. This data illustrates that 82% of the known residents’ zip
code of origin are derived from the primary market area of the 30-minute travel time contour.
Moreover, 54% of the resident’s admissions are from within HSA 001, Health Planning Area
141 (Ogle County). The zip code areas are provided from the Microsoft MapPoint North
America 2009 software utilizing the HFSRB's mapped PSA’s. Please refer to the map appended
as ATTACHMENT-13B.

3. Provide letters from referral sources (hospitals, physicians, social services and others)
that attest to total number of prospective residents (by zip code of residence) who have
received care at existing LTC facilities located in the area during the 12-month period

prior to submission of the application. Referral sources shall verify their projections and
the methodology used, as described in Section 1125.540.

Appended as ATTACHMENT-13C are 2 hospital’s referral letters providing 53-60 of
the proposed and historical referrals. Moreover, appended as ATTACHMENT-13D are three
referral letters identifying 88 historical and projected referrals. Collectively, these referral
sources have identified 141-148 historical and potential annual referrals to Neighbors

Rehabilitation Center for the next two years.

ATTACHMENT-13
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@1-89-’14 ©9:17 FROM-

T-623 P@0@3/6011 F-874

SWEDISHAMERICAN @
HFALTH SYSTEM

Winner Of The Lincoln Award For Excellence

WILLIAM R, GORSK, M.D.
PRESIDENT AND CRIEF EXECUTIVE ORFICER

SwedishAmerican Hospital

SwedishAmeriean
Meglical Group/Belviderc

SwedishAmerican
Medical Group/Broakside
SwedishAmetican

" Mesdml Group/Byren

SwedishAmericon

Medicst (?mup/l)avis Juaction

SwedishAmerica
Mefica Croupive Poins

SwedishAmerican
Medical Group/iidiosen

SwedishAmeri
g Medics%lr?sp/Nonh\w

SwedishAweriean
Medica) GroupRoscoe

SwedishAmerican
Medica) GmupNalky

SwedishA
Medkal GmupIWoodslde

SwedithAmerican
Funelot

Anerican
" wnantlt Pediatrios
Swedishmnerimn
Breast Health Center

SwedichAmerican
Health Alliance

SwedishAmerican Healih
Management Comoration

SwedishAmerican
Home Health Care

SwedishAmerican
Inmediae Care

SwedichAmerican
Infusion ServicesDME

SwedishAmeric
Siedion Foundaion

SwedishAmerican MSO
SwedishAmerican Really

Greater Rocll;ford
Hemato gy/Oncolagy

hﬁdm Cenler Tor Heshh
And Healing

Medica! Aris Center
Medworks

Northewm Minol
Ni'iean:h o Network

Northem [linois
Surgery Center

‘Sincerely,

November 27, 2013

Ms. Pawn Thammarath '
Neighbors Rehabilitation Center

P.O. Box 585

Byron, Hinois 61010

Dear Pawn:

Swedish American Hospital has had a long-standing working relationship with Neighbors in
Byron, Hlinois. | understand that you will be seeking permission from the lliinois Health and
Service Review Board through Its certificate of need program to add 15 to 20 “Medicare
Suites” 1o your current complement of beds. | understand you also hope to be adding a
new gymnasium and other kinds of space which will allow you to take on more medically

complex patients.

$Swedish American Hospital has had a long-standing positive working relationship with
Ne:ghbors We do send patlents to you who need post acute nursing care in a structured
setting Our current rate of referrals to your facility is 4 cases per month. We have no
reason to conclude that these numbers will drop as we move forward overthe next two
years. Therefore, Neighbors could expect to see approximately forty-eight patient referrals
from Swedish American to your facility on an annual basis. These referrals have not been
used to support another pending or approved CON application.

if you should have 2ny questions or concemns, please feel free to reach our Director of Case
Management, Nancy Halfurd, at 779-696-6545.

BilkGarski, MD" + * v Fe

.y fony e oo.
R T I SNt L

SHbCHRERE ™ 8

1313 Bast State Stree, Rockford, MNiinois 61104-2227 Phone (815) 489-40_06 Fax (815) 967-5423 wwiwswedishamerican.org
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SWEDISH AMERICAN HOSPITAL

ZIP CODES
61108
61107
61114
61103
61111
61080
61072
61024
61008°
61074
61053
60115
60548
60550
61021
61031
61310°
61081
61071
60050
60098
60014
60033
60012
61010
61061
61054
61064
51068
61032
61048
53511
53546
53525
53545
53547
61087
60631
60611
60608
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" . RockrorD HEALTH Office of the President and CEO

. System Gary E. Kaatz
Rackford Medical Building
- Respectful Care 2850 North Rockion Avenue, Suite 402

Rackiord, inols 61703
Phone (815) 871-7250
Fax {815} 888-4808

January 20, 2014

Ms, Pawn Thammarath
Administrator

Neighbors Rehabilitation Center
P.O. Box 585

Byron, IL 61010

Dear Ms. Thammarath,

Thank you for asking me to provide a letter of support of the proposed Neighbors
Rehabilitation Center (NRC) addition and renovation. This project will be of great benefit to
Byron and surrounding communities.

Rockford Health System has enjoyed a long standing working relationship with NRC and
believe this will continue into the foreseeable future. Over the past 12 months (1/1-13 -
12/31/13) Rockford Memorial Hospital has transferred a total of 1313 patients to Post Acute Care
Skilled Nursing Facilities in the Northern [llinois region (see attached list of number of patients
per zip code). In that time frame, Rockford Memorial Hospital transferred 13 of those patients

to NRC,

1 anticipate that Rockford Memorial Hospital will continue to refer patients to NRC and that the
hospital would transfer 13 to 20 patients to NRC each year for the 24 month period after NRC
completes their renovation and expansion project. These referrals have not been used to
support another pending or approved CON application.

Ae Of further assistance, please contact me.

Rockford Memorial Rockford Health Van Matre HealthSouth Visiting Nurses Rockford Memorial
Hospital Physiclans Reohabliitation Hospita! Association Pevelopment Foundation
2400 North Rookion Avenue 2300 North Rockton Avenus 960 South Mulford Road 4223 East Stsle Streat 2400 North Roskton Avenue
Rockford, 1L 81103 Rocidord, 1L 61108 Rockford, 1L 61108 Rockiord, IL 81108 Rockford, IL 61108

148 ATTACHMENT-13C




RMH

2013 Discharges to a Skiiled Nursing
Facllity by Patlent 2ip Codn

Patlent Zip Code
32950
33982
34748
38482
53511

535113474
53520
53563
53587
55106
55987
60014
60033

600331836
60050

600743725
60098
60108
60115
60133
60142
60152
60404
60518
60548
60559
60622
60634
61006
61008

610084459
61010

610101464
61011
61013
61014
61016
61019
61020
61021
61024

Discharges
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610240398
610249590
61025
61028
61030
61031
61032
61036
61039
81046
61047
61048
61054
£1060
61061
610611815
610612222
61063
61064
610865
610677704
61068
61071
61072
610727115
61673
610735653
61074
61077
61078
61079
61080
610802001
61081
61084
61085
61088
610880699
61089
61101
611015530
611016066
61102
611021231
61103

U

2

12

13

11

o N

30

(==

3

NN R

301
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511031573
6150331922
511032026
611032869
611033618
$11034372
511034617
61104
511041234
611045360
811645547
61105
61107
511071818
611071823
£11074144
6116075238
61108
61168
613092806
11084972
61111
611115049
1112
81114
611147091
61415
611151810
611152068
$11152575
61132
61132572841
61277
61301
61310
61317
61326
61342
61354
61367,
61373
81378
62418
63146
65203
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66503
802092590
Total

1313
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November 5, 2013

LTC Medlcal, Inc
7117 Crimson Rldge
Rockford, IL 61107

This letter is written on behalf of Neighbor’s nursing facility in Byron, IL.

Dr. Eckburg, Dr. Aguero and | strongly recommend the addition and renovation of expanded
Medicare beds. We support, without hesitation the application for CON and subsequent hoard

approval.

Our MD/NP group specifically and exclusively provides care to resident’s of LTC/SNF facilities
and feels there is a paipable growing need for Neighbor's to be able to care for a farger number
of residents in this community. We have a positive and active relationship with ail three major
health systems in Rockford who will be able to support their growth. '

During the previous 12 months, we have provided care to 44 patients In the Byron area.
Following the completion of the building addition and renovation | would anticipate referring

15 patients to Neighbors Rehab each year over the ensuing 24 months. These referrals have
not been used to support another pending or approved CON application.

Neighbor's nursing facility delivers a high standard of patient-centered care in the Byron
community and warrants their ability to provide this excellent care to mare patients.

If there is anything we can do to be of assistance, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Heather Hartman, CNP, A/GNP

el

815-608-0867
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Heather Hartman/Carlos Aguero/loseph Eckburg patients

Zip Code

61020

61054

61115

61010

61107

61108

61061

61088

61104

61032

61047

61008

52807

61068

61109

60018

60150

61021

61063

61072

61102

61071
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Rehabifitation Center

Strect Address:
811 W. 2ud Street

*
FIGHRGRS e
> | Malliug Address:

P.O. Box 585
Byran, Ilinots 61010

November 12, 2013

Chester Durnas, MD
P.O. Box 7732
Raockford, IL 61126

Pawn Thammarath, Administeator
Neighbors Rehabilitation Center
P.O. Box 585

Byron, IL 61010

Dear Ms, Thammarath;

Thank you for asking me to provide a letter of support of the proposad Neighbors Rehebilitation

Center (NRC) addition and renovation, This project will be of great benefit to Byron sad

sutrounding comuunities.

Ag a physician who works primarily with skilled nursing facility patients, I can attest to the

changing needs and demands placed on skilled nursing facilities. One of the service gaps in the

Byron community is the lack of ptivate resident rooms to accommodate individuals who require ,

medical isolstion and/or speclalized medical equipment. Due to the lack of private rooms,
residents of Byron and the surrounding communities are forced to go outside of the ares to

receive the necessary services.
During the previous 12 months, I have provided care to 48 patients in the Byron arca. Following

the completion of the building addition and renovation, I would anfloipste referring 25 patients to
NRC each year over the ensuing 24 months, These referrals have not been used to suppott

another pending or approved CON application.
I look forward to working with you and applaud your efforts to improve the services offered in

our eqaymunity. If there is anything I can do to be assistance, please do not hesitats to contact
me, :
et COMMSSI

Sin A :
%ﬂ\ //-31-13
Chester Dursas, MD
www.neighborsbyran.com A
ph: 8152342511 fax: 8152343114
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Dr. Durnas patients

2ip Codes
: 61047

61102

61010

61109

61107

61015

60194

61103

61068

61008

61072}

60950

61061

61088

61063

61054

61115

61084

61021

61020

61023

61104

61046
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21-17-'14 12:@2 FROM- T-687 P@00@2/8806 F-210

OSF

SAINT ANTHONY MEDICAL CENTER
5‘ January 13, 2014

Pawn Thammarath

Neighbors Rehabilitation Center
P.O. Box 585

Byron, I 61010

Dear Ms. Thammarath,

OSF Saint Anthony Madical Center recommends the addition and renovation project which is proposed
for Neighbors Rehabilitation Center. We support your application for CON Board Approval.

Within the past 12 months, OSF Saint Anthony Medical Center transferred 2,078 patients to existing
skilled care facillties. Please see the attached table for the home zip codes of these patients.

We estimate the number of patients that OSF Saint Anthony will refer annually within a 24 -~ month
period after the project completion to Neighbors Rehabilitation Center will be an average of 40 per year,
this is a reasonable expectation based on our historical referrals. These referrals have not been used to
support another pending or approved CON application for the subject services.

As OSF has a new primary care office in Byron, we anticipate a potentially increased relationship, and
look forward to working with you, We commend your efforts to improve the quality of care and quality
of life for those served in our community.

If | can be of further assistance, please do not hesltate to contact me.

Sinceraly, :

Poula) Qrgnabc

Paula Carynski, MS, RN, NEA-BC, FACHE
President

' ¢
pae: _ 1~ /D -A0/Y NOtaW:_;@'MwP‘
' Pamela S. Jenkins ,

) OFEICIAL SEAL
T PUBLE S o
- STATE OF
MY COMMISSION XPIRES119815
MAARAAARANAA AN

5666 East State Street, Rockford, Hlinols 61103-2425 Phone (815) 226.2000 www.osfeaintanthony.org
b;'he Sisters of the Third Order ofsr.) Froneis &
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g1-17-'14 12:82 FROM-

OSF Saint Anthony Medital Center

Transfer to Skilled Care
DISCHARGE DATE RANGE: 10/01/2012 - 09/30/2013

SOURCE: KPM; REPORT RUN DATE: 11/20/2013

Zip Code
61108
61107
61008
61114
61111
61115
61109
61068
61073
61103
61102
61065
61104
61021
61101
61016
60152
61061
60115
60178
61010
61081
61011
61072
61088
60145
61080
60135
61112
60146
61024
61054
61012

City
ROCKFORD

ROCKFORD
BELVIDERE
ROCKFORD
LOVES PARK
MACHESNEY PARK
ROCKFORD
ROCHELLE
ROSCOE
ROCKFORD
ROCKFORD
POPLAR GROVE
ROCKFORD
DIXON
ROCKFORD
CHERRY VALLEY
MARENGO
OREGON
DEKALB
SYCAMORE
BYRON
STERLING
CALEDONIA
ROCKTON
WINNEBAGO
KINGSTON
SOUTH BELOIT
GENOA
ROCKFORD
KIRKLAND
DURAND
MOUNT MORRIS
CAPRON

Encounters
299

246
233
138
133
96
85
69
54
54
48
47
47
39
39
28
27
18
15
5
15
15
14
14
14
13
11
10
10

00 W Www
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81-17-°14 12:82 FROM-

61032
61063
60033
53511
61019
61071
61038
61064
61084
61310
60180
61006
61020
61342
. 61376
49684
60013
60098
60113
60150
60520
61270
61277
61378
80403
53545
60062
60102
60112
60151
60603
60914
61015
61041
61126
61132
61354
61802
62959
33950
34287
37187
46113

FREEPORT
PECATONICA
HARVARD
BELOIT

DAVIS

ROCK FALLS
GARDEN PRAIRIE
POLO _
STILLMAN VALLEY
AMBOY

UNION

ASHTON

DAVIS JUNCTION
MENDOTA
WALNUT
TRAVERSE CITY
CARY
WOODSTOCK
CRESTON
MALTA
HINCKLEY
MORRISON
PROPHETSTOWN
WEST BROOKLYN
GOLDEN
JANESVILLE
NORTHBROOK
ALGONQUIN
CORTLAND
MAPLE PARK
CHICAGO
BOURBONNAIS
CHANA
HANOVER
ROCKFORD
LOVES PARK
PERU

URBANA
MARION

CAPE CORAL
NORTH PORT
WHITE BLUFF -
CAMBY

Iv-\HHI—‘NNNNNNNNNNNNNNwwaJWu}wNwW-h-h-hhhmmu‘wmo\m\lm-m
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01-17-'14 12:@82 FROM-

46307
48092
49519
52403
52722
53548
53570
53803
54401
55305
60014
60020
60050
60093
60123
60134
60142
60183
60518
60530
60542
60548
60550
60553
60556
60560
60620
61001
61018
61030
61031
61039
61046
61048
61052
61053
61062
61074
61105
61261
61265
61348
61350

CROWN POINT
WARREN
WYOMING
CEDAR RAPIDS
BEYTENDORF
JANESVILLE
MONTICELLO
BENTON
WAUSAU
MINNETONKA
CRYSTAL LAKE
FOX LAKE
MCHENRY
WINNETKA
ELGIN

GENEVA
HUNTLEY
WASCO
EARLVILLE

LEE

NORTH AURORA
SANDWICH
SHABBONA
STEWARD
WATERMAN
YORKVILLE
CHICAGO

APPLE RIVER
DAKOTA
FORRESTON
FRANKLIN GROVE
GERMAN VALLEY
LANARK

LENA

MONROE CENTER
MOUNT CARROLL
PEARL CITY
SAVANNA
ROCKFORD
LYNDON
MOLINE
OGLESBY
OTTAWA

Ll i e R T R R R T s T T T I T S S P P P UG
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61356
61364
61367
61443
61447
61517
62401
62480
69038
92105
98387

PRINCETON
STREATOR
SUBLETTE
KEWANEE
KIRKWQOD
BRIMFELD
EFFINGHAM
WILLOW HILL
MOOREFIELD
SAN DIEGO
BETHEL

b B A B R R R R R R

161

T-687 PORE6/02LE F-210

ATTACHMENT- 13D




SECTION 1V — SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA continued iii

Criterion 1125.550 - Service Demand — Expansion of General Long-Term Care

The applicant shall document #1 and either #2 or #3:

1. Historical Service Demand

a. An average annual occupancy rate that has equaled or exceeded occupancy
standards for general LTC, as specified in Section 1125.210(c), for each of the

latest two years.

In CY2012, CY2011 and CY2010, the facility reported utilization rates of 91.8%,
92.6% and 91.6% respectively. Refer to ATTACHMENT-15A for the cited facilities

most recent 3-year IDPH Profile.

b. If prospective residents have been referred to other facilities in order to receive

the subject services, the applicant shall provide documentation of the referrals,
including completed applications that could not be accepted due to lack of the
subject service and documentation from referral sources. with identification of
those patients by initials and date.

Appended as ATTACHMENT-15B, is a listing of all (267) residents furned
away by the facility in the past 24-months (105 in CY2012 and 162 in CY2013). Of that
number (267), 65 of those were turned away due to the existing rooms having gender,
isolation or end of life issues that eliminated a bed or a rooms from being used or because
the proposed residents demand for private rooms for their rehabilitation (refer to
ATTACHMENT-15C).

2. Projected Referrals

The applicant shall provide documentation as described in Section 1125.540(d).
Appended as ATTACHMENT-15D are 2 hospital referrals letters providing 53-60 of the

proposed and historical referrals. Moreover, appended as ATTACHMENT-15E are three

referral letters identifying 88 historical and projected referrals. Collectively, these referral

ATTACHMENT-15
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SECTION IV - SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA continued iv

sources have identified 141-148 historical and potential annual referrals to Neighbors
Rehabilitation Center for the next two years.

3. If a projected demand for service is based upon rapid population growth in the
applicant facility's existing market area (as experienced annually within the latest 24-
month period), the projected service demand shall be determined as described in Section

1125.540 (e).

The need for this project is based upon the historical lack of accessibility of the existing

population. Moreover, this geographic service area has not been experiencing a rapid population

growth; therefore, this item is not germane.

ATTACHMENT-15
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Street Address:

811 W. 2nd Street

P | Byron, Illinois 61010
Mailing Address:

P.O. Box 585

Rehabilitaﬁon Center Byron, linois 61010

February 11, 2014

Ms. Courtney Avery, Administrator

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson St., 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

RE: Historical Service Demand

Dear Ms. Avery:

Neighbors Rehabilitation Center (NRC) has utilized a waiting list at different times over the past
24 months. Also during that time frame, 65 referrals were referred to other care facilities due to
lack of bed availability at NRC. Attached you will find a complete list of these referrals.

Please contact me if you have any questions or concerns regarding this information.

Pawn Thammarath
Administrator

PT:pk

ene
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NRC - HISTORICAL SERVICE DEMAND
1112 - 12/31/13

Date Referral SOR Reason for referral

Jan. 3, 2012 LT, Swedish American Hosp. No female bed available

Feb. 1, 2012 C.G. Univ. of Wisconsin Hosp. private room d/t age

Feb. 20, 2012 M.K. Swedish American Hosp. private room

Feb. 20,2012 |JS. family no bed available on Special Care Unit
Feb. 23, 2012 B.A. K5B Hosp. isolation

Mar. 12,2012 iS5, family no beds available

Mar. 23,2012 {Male family wanted a more updated room
Mar. 23,2012  (Female |family wanted a nicer looking facility
Mar, 24,2012  |Male Freeport Memorial Hosp. no bed available on Special Care Unit
Apr. 6, 2012 Male Freeport Memarial Hosp. no beds available

Apr. 11, 2012 KJ OSF St. Francis Hosp. private room d/t age

Apr. 11,2012  Ji.C. Swedish American Hosp. isolation

Apr.19, 2012 K.C. Swedish American Hosp. different facility with private room
Apr. 28, 2012 D.C. Rockford Memorial Hosp.  |no beds_ayaiiable

May. 24,2012 |S.D, OSF St. Anthony Hésp. isolation

Jul. 13, 2012 E.S. family private room

Aug. 1, 2012 H.S. Rockford Memorial Hosp. no bed available on Special Care Unit
Aug. 7, 2012 1S, QSF St. Anthony Hosp. isolation

Aug. 27,2012  |AP. Swedish American Hosp. Isolation

Aug. 27,2012  |I.B. Kindred Hosp, isolation

Aug. 29,2012 |S.C. OSF St. Anthony Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
Nov. 8, 2012 D.E, Heartland Hospice no beds available

Nov, 15,2012 |R.M. Univ. of Wisconsin Hosp. no beds available

Nov. 15,2012  ID.L. Kindred Hosp. private room d/t age

|Nov. 20,2012 .B. Select Speclalty Hosp. no bed available

Nov. 23,2012  |M.V. Kishwaukee Hosp. isolation

Nov. 26,2012  (R.P. Heritage Health no bed avilable

Nov. 27, 2012 M.F, {ilinois Masonic Hosp. na bed available

Nov. 27,2012 |W.B. : no bed on Special Care Unit

Nov. 27,2012 |CS. Swedish American Hosp no beds available

Dec. 4, 2012 W.H. St. Anthony Hospital | different facility w/ private room
Dec. 18, 2012 B.C. Rockford Memarial Hospital {different facility w/ private room
Dec. 21,2012 (P MacNeal Hosp. private room dft medical needs
Dec. 21, 2012 PT. QSF St, Francis Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
Jan. 22, 2013 R.S. Kindred Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
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NRC - HISTORICAL SERVICE DEMAND
1/1/12 - 12/31/13

Date Referral SOR Reason for referral
Feb.5,2013  |DG. Univ. of Wisconsin Hosp. isolation
Feb. 5, 2013 KT. Kindred Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
Feb. 6, 2013 E.F. Kindred Hosp. isolation
Feb. 21,2013 |DS. Rockford Memérial Hosp,  lisolation
Mar. 8, 2013 M.l family private room
Mar. 11, 2013  |W.M. Kindred Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
Mar, 20, 2013 |R.O. Swedish American Hosp. private room
Mar. 22,2013 |CS, Fairview Nursing Plaza private room d/t age
Mar. 22,2013  |M.R. Rush Medical Center private room d/t medical needs
Mar. 22, 2013 |D.R. Edwards Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
Mar. 28,2013  |S.S. Kindred Hosp. private room d/t age
Apr. 24,2013  IW.T. Swedish American Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
Apr. 30, 2013 R.B. Kindred Hosp. isofation
May. 2, 2013 E.L. Kindred Hosp. Isolation
May. 9, 2013 CH. Kindred Hosp. isolation
May. 15,2013 |L.D. Vitas Hospice isolation

-

Jun. 3,2013 K.N. Rockford Memarial Hospital |private room
Jul. 8, 2013 LM, Kindred Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
Jul. 30, 2013 D.S. Kindred Hosp. isolation
Aug. 8, 2013 G.W, Rockford Memorial Hosp,  |private room
Aug. 8, 2013 W.B, Kindred Hosp private room d/t medical needs
Dﬂug. 9, 2013 LV, Kindred Hosp. private room d/t medical needs
[Aug. 9, 2013 M.T. St. Anthony's Hospital private room
Aug. 12,2013 LK. St. Anthony's Hospital private reom
Sept. 3,2013  |W.B, Kindred Hosp, private room d/t medical needs
Nov. 1, 2013 AV, St. Anthony Hospital private room
Nov. 6, 2013 H.Y. Kindred Hosp. private room
Nov. 6, 2013 AV. §t. Anthony Hospital private room
Nov, 15,2013 {H.Y. Swedish American Hospital |private room
Dec, 11,2013 |PS. Kindred Hosp _|private room
Dec. 17, 2013 M.M, Kindred Hosp priva:e room
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November 27, 2013

Ms, Pawn Thammarath -
Neighbors Rehabilitation Center

P.0. Box 585

Byron, lllinois 61010

Dear Pawn:

Swedish American Hospital has had a long-standing working relationship with Neighbors in
Byron, Ninols. 1 understand that you wilf be seeking permission from the lllinois Health and
Service Review Board through its certificate of need program to add 15 to 20 “Medicare
Suites” to your current complement of beds. | understand you also hope to be adding a
new gymnasium and other kinds of space which will aliow you to take on more medically
complex patients,

$wedish American Hospital has had a long-standing positive working relationship with
Neighbors, We do send patients to you who need post acute nursing care in a structured
setting: Our current rate of referrals to your facility is 4 cases per month. We have no
reason to conclude that these numbers will drop as we move forward overthe next two
years. Therefore, Neighbors could expect to see approximately forty-eight patient referrals
from Swedish American to your facility on an annual basis. These referrals have not been
used to support another pending or approved CON application,

If you should have any questions or concerns, please feel free to reach our Director of Case
Managemsent, Nancy Halford, a1 779-696-6545.

Sincerely,

R P O TR I L R Y SR VTR Pt by e vttt maes . e e .
a“achmentd R N N e A O ,.,_:“ FIRYIE ML HNNNR TS AT S

1313 Bast State e, Rockford, Wincis 61104-2227 Phone (815) 480-4000 Fax (815 9675433 wvwisiedishamerican.ong
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SWEDISH AMERICAN HOSPITAL

ZIP CODES
61108"
61107
61114
61103
61111
61080
61072
61024
61008°
61074
61053
60115
60548
60550
61021
61031
61310
61081
61071
60050
60098
60014
60033
60012
61010
61061
61054
61064
61068
61032
61048
53511
53546
53525
53545
53547
61087
60631
60611
60608
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Office of the President and CEO
Gary E. Kaatz

Rockford Medical Building

Respectful Cere 2850 North Rockion Avenue, Suite 402
Rookford, linois 81108
Phona (815) 871-7260
Fax (81E) 688-4508

ve. ROCKFORD HEALTH
 system

January 20, 2014

Ms, Pawn Thammarath
- Administrator
Neighbors Rehabilitation Center
P.O. Box 585
Byron, IL 61010

Dear Ms. Thammarath,

Thank you for asking me to provide a letter of support of the proposed Neighbors
Rehabilitation Center (NRC) addition and renovation. This project will be of great benefit to
Byron and surrounding communities.

Rockford Health System has enjoyed a long standing working relationship with NRC and
believe this will continue into the foreseeable future. Over the past 12 months (1/1-13 -
12/31/13) Rockford Memorial Hospital has transferred a total of 1313 patients to Post Acute Care
Skilled Nursing Facilities in the Northern [llinois region (see attached list of number of patients
per zip code). In that time frame, Rockford Memorial Hospital transferred 13 of thase patients

to NRC.

1 anticipate that Rockford Memorial Hospital will continue to refer patients to NRC and that the
hospital would transfer 13 to 20 patients to NRC each year for the 24 month period after NRC
completes their renovation and expansion project. These referrals have not been used to
support another pending or approved CON application.

vl .
IF [ cagrffe Of further assistance, please contact me.

AT
A A

CEO

Rocktord Memorial Rockiord Heaith Van Matre HealthSouth Visiting Nurses Rockford Memorial

Hospitet Physicians Rehabilitation Hospita) Assoclation Development Foundation
2400 North Rockion Avenue 2300 North Rockton Avenue 850 South Mulford Road 4223 East State Strest 2400 North Rocktan Avenue
Rockford, [L 81108 Rockford, iL 61108 Rockford, fL 61108 Rocklord, It 61108 Rocklord, Il 61103
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RMH

2013 Discharges to a Skilled Nursing
Facllity by Patient Zip Code

Patient Zip Code
329550
33982
34748
38482
53511

535113474
53520
53563
53587
55106
55987
60014
60033

600331836
60050

600743725
60058
60108
601158
60133
60142
60152
60404
60518
60548
60559
60622
60634
61006
61008

610084459
61010

610101464
61011
61013
61014
61016
61019
61020
61021
61024

Discharges

e o T I I ¥ T e R e T 2 T R I T T T LT R S R T R Y

s I
[T

W N AP

13

[y

21

183

ATTACHMENT-15D




610240398
610249590
61025
61028
61030
61031
61032
61036
61038
61046
61047
61043
61054
61060
61061
610611815
610612222
61063
61064
61065
610677704
61068
61071
61072
610722115
61073
610735653
61074
61077
61078
61078
61080
§10802001
61081
61084
61085
61088
6510880699
61083
61101
£11015530
611016066
61102
611021231
61103

N

23

L

12

13

11

7 I A

30

P>

38

N o N R

29

27

114

54,

301

184

ATTACHMENT-15D




611031573
611031922
511032026
611032869
611033618
611034372
611034617
$1104
611041234
611045360
611045547
61105
61107
611071818
611071823
511078144
611075238
61108
£1169
511092806
5110944872
61111
611115049
61112
61114
611147091
61115
611151810
511152069
611152575
61132
611325281
§1277
81301
61310
61317
61326
61342
61354
61367
61373
61378
62418
53146

65208
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66503 1
802092590 1
Total 1313
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November 5, 2013

LTC Medical, Inc
7117 Crimson Ridge
Rockford, IL 61107

This letter is written on behalf of Neighbor’s nursing facility in Byron, IL.

Dr. Eckburg, Dr. Aguero and 1 strongly recommend the addition and renovation of expanded
Medlcare beds. We support, without hesltation the application for CON and subsequent board

appraval.

Our MD/NP group specifically and exclusively provides care to resident’s of LTC/SNF facllities
and feels there is a palpabie growing need for Neighbor’s to be ahle to care for a farger number
of residents in this community. We have a positive and active refationship with ali thres major
health systems in Rockfard who will be able to support their growth.

During the previous 12 months, we have provided care to 44 patients in the Byron area,
Following the completion of the building addition and renovation | would anticipate referring
15 patients to Neighbors Rehab each year over ghe ensuing 24 months, These referrals have
not been used to support another pending or approved CON application,

~ Nelghbor’s nursing facility delivers a high standard of patient-centared care in the Byron

community and warrants their ability to provide this excelient care to more patlents.

if there is anything we can do to be of assistance, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Heather Hartman, CNP, A/GNP

pA=

815-608-0867
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Heather Hartman/Cartos Aguero/Joseph Eckburg patients

Zip Code

651020

61054

61115

61010

61107

61108

61061

61088

61104;

61032

61047

61008

. 52807

61068

61109

60018

60150

61021

61063

61072

61102

61071
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Strect Address;
811 W. 2nd Strest

EI " @RS Byron, Itinois 61016
' Mailing Address:

R Cen P.O. Box 58S

Byron, fllinois 61010

November 12, 2013

Chester Durnas, MD
P.0. Box 7732
Rockford, L, 61126

Pawn Thammarath, Administeator
Neighbors Rehabilitation Center
P.O. Box 585

Byron, I, 61010

Dear Ms, Thammarath:

Thank you for asking me to provide a letter of support of the proposed Neighhors Rehabilitation
Center (NRC) addition and renovation, This project will be of great benefit to Byron and
surrounding communities. _

As a physician who works primarily with skilled nursing facility patients, [ can attest to the

chenging needs and demands placed on skilled nursing fucilities. One of the service gaps in the
Byron community is the lack of private resident rooms to accommadate individuals who require

medical isolation and/or specialized medical equipment, Due to the lack of private rooms,
residents of Byron and the surrounding communities are forced to go outside of the area to

receive the necessary services.

During the previous 12 months, I have provided care ta 48 patients in the Byron area, Following
the completion of the building addition and tenovation, I would anticipats referving 2 patients to
NRC each year over the ensuing 24 months. These referrals have not been used to support

enother pending ar approved CON application.

I look forward to working with you and appland your efforts to improve the services offered in
aur eqmmutity, If there Is anything I can do to be assistance, please do not hesitate to contact
Og

me, . ;
incetel} St M | EE ‘
i : ;?. //”d /" /5

Chester Dursas, MD

www.ngighborsbyran.com
ph: 8152342511 fax: 815.234.3114
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Dr. Durnas patients
2ip Codes
: 61047
61102
61010
61109
61107
61015
60194
61103
61068
61008
61072
60950
61061}
61088
61063
61054
61115
61084
61021
61020
61023
61104
61046
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SAINT ANTHONY MEDICAL CENTER
January 13, 2014

Pawn Thammarath

Neighbors Rehabilitation Center
£.0. Box 585

Byron, IL. 61010

Dear Ms. Thammarath,

OSF Saint Anthony Medical Center recommends the addition and renovation project which is proposed
for Neighbors Rehabilitation Center. We support your application for CON Board Approval.

Within the past 12 months, OSF Saint Anthony Medical Center transferred 2,078 patients to existing
skilled care facilities. Please see the attached table for the home zip codes of these patients.

We estimate the number of patients that OSF Saint Anthony will refer annually within a 24 ~month
period after the project completion to Neighbors Rehabilitation Center will be an average of 40 per year,
this is a reasonable expectation based on our historical referrals. These referrals have not been used to
support another pending or approved CON application for the subject services.

As OSF has a new primary care office in Byron, we anticipate a potentially increased relationship, and
look forward to warking with you. We commend your efforts to improve the quality of care and guality
of life for those served in our community.

if | can be of further assistance, piease do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,
Paula Carynski, MS, I/l%, NEA-BC, FACHE
President
' t
pate: [~ /3 -30/‘/ Nomwtwu
_ Pamela §. Jenkins )

PAMELA S JENKINS
NOTARY PUBLIC . STATE OF LLINDIS
MY COMMSSION XPIRES 117515 '§

5666 East State Street, Rockford, linois 61108-2425 Phone (813) 226-2000 www.osfsaintanthony.org
The Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis
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OSF Saint Anthony Medical Center

Transfer to Skilled Care
DISCHARGE DATE RANGE: 10/01/2012 - 09/30/2013

SOURCE: HPM; REPORY RUN DATYE: 11/20/2013

Zip Code
61108
61107
61008
61114
61111
61115
61109
61068
61073
61103
61102
61065
61104
61021
61101
61016
60152
61061
60115
60178
61010
61081
61011
61072
61088
60145
61080
60135
61112
60146
61024
61054
61012

City
ROCKFORD
ROCKFORD
BELVIDERE
ROCKFORD
LOVES PARK
MACHESNEY PARK
ROCKFORD
ROCHELLE
ROSCOE
ROCKFORD
ROCKFORD
POPLAR GROVE
ROCKFORD
DIXON
ROCKFORD
CHERRY VALLEY
MARENGO
OREGON
DEKALB
SYCAMORE
BYRON
STERLING
CALEDONIA
ROCKTON
WINNEBAGO
KINGSTON
SOUTH BELOIT
GENOA
ROCKFORD
KIRKLAND
DURAND
MOUNT MORRIS
CAPRON

Encounters

299
246
233
138
133
96
85
69
54
54
48
47
47
L)
39
28
27
18
15
15
15
15
14
14
14
13
11
10
10

w W W v
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61032
61063
60033
53511
61019
61071
61038
61064
61084
61310
60180
61006
61020
61342
. 61376
49684
60013
60098
60113
60150
60520
61270
61277
61378
80403
53545
60062
60102
60112
60151
60603
60914
61015
61041
61126
61132
61354
61802
62959
33980
34287
37187
46113

FREEPORT
PECATONICA
HARVARD
BELOIT

DAVIS

ROCK FALLS
GARDEN PRAIRIE
PoLO

STILLMAN VALLEY
AMBOY

UNION

ASHTON

DAVIS JUNCTION
MENDOTA
WALNUT
TRAVERSE CITY
CARY
WOODSTOCK
CRESTON
MALTA
HINCKLEY
MORRISON
PROPHETSTOWN
WEST BROOKLYN
GOLDEN
JANESVILLE
NORTHBROOK
ALGONQUIN
CORTLAND
MAPLE PARK
CHICAGO
BOURBONNAIS
CHANA
HANOVER
ROCKFORD
LOVES PARK
PERU

URBANA
MARION

CAPE CORAL
NORTH PORT
WHITE BLUFF
CAMBY

B e NN NN NNNNDNNNDWWWN KWW WWADLDLASRBRGUOIWM WO OO S 0.0
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46307
48092
49519
52403
52722
53548
53570
53803
54401
55305
60014
60020
60050
60093
60123
60134
60142
60183
60518
60530
60542
60548
60550
60553
60556
60560
60620
61001
61018
61030
61031
61039
61046
61048
61052
61053
61062
61074
61105
61261
61265
61348
61350

CROWN POINT
WARREN
WYOMING
CEDAR RAPIDS
BETTENDORF
JANESVILLE
MONTICELLO
BENTON
WAUSAU
MINNETONKA
CRYSTAL LAKE
FOX LAKE
MCHENRY
WINNETKA
ELGIN

GENEVA
HUNTLEY
WASCO
EARLVILLE

LEE

NORTH AURORA
SANDWICH
SHABBONA
STEWARD
WATERMAN
YORKVILLE
CHICAGO
APPLE RIVER
DAKOTA
FORRESTON
FRANKLIN GROVE
GERMAN VALLEY
LANARK

LENA

MONROE CENTER
MOUNT CARROLL
PEARL CITY
SAVANNA
ROCKFORD
LYNDON
MOLINE
OGLESBY
OTTAWA

L e I R R o T B O N T I S S T T T T T T
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61356
61364
61367
61443
61447
61517
62401
62480
69039
92105
98387

PRINCETON
STREATOR
SUBLETTE
KEWANEE
KIRKWOOD
BRIMFIELD
EFFINGHAM
WILLOW HILL
MOOREFIELD
SAN DIEGO
BETHEL

el o R
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SECTION IV — SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA continued vi

Criterion 1125.590 - Staffing Availability

1. For each category of service, document that relevant clinical and professional staffing
needs for the proposed project were considered and that licensure and JCAHO staffing

requirements can be met.

Nursing care is the only category of service applicable. It should be known that this
project includes the existing operations in good standing with IDPH and CMMS that meet all
licensing requirements to include staffing. Moreover, upon project completion, the facility will
maintain its good standing with IDPH and CMMS. The facility_ is not currently JCAHO

accredited; however it has been applied for and is awaiting JCAHO survey.

2. Provide the following documentation:

a. The name and qualification of the person currently filling the position, if
applicable; and

b. Letters of interest from potential employees; and

c. Applications filed for cach position; and

d. Signed contracts with the required staff; or

e. A narrative explanation of how the proposed staffing will be achieved.

Appended as ATTACHMENT-194, is the existing staffing péttem for the 101
bed facility and the proposed staffing pattern for the proposed 131 nursing care beds, by
position title. This project will reéult in an increase of full time equivalents, from 83.13
full time equivalents to 107.97 full time equivalents, a net increase of 24.84 full time
equivalents. The proposed staffing will be achieved in the following manner:

1. Neighbors Rehabilitation Center will maintain a copy of applications for all
candidates who apply for positions at the facility going forward. Applicants will be

contacted 90 days prior to opening to the opening of the unit to arrange for interviews,

ATTACHMENT-19
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SECTION IV — SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA Continued vii

hiring and training.

2. The facility will be utilizing the consultant recruiting service at SIR
Management in Lincolnwood, Illinqis to identify potential candidates to full all available

~ positions and assist with recruitment.”

3. Internet sources for posting and recruitment of candidates such as Career
Builders, LinkedIn, Health Callings, and Indeed will be utilized.

4. Advertising for positions will be places in the local newspaper.

5. A plan has been developed to determine the direct care staffing needs of the
facility based on census and level of care. Staff will be hired as census increases to

ensure the needs of the residents will be met and staffing regulations are complied with.

ATTACHMENT- 19
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center

811 West 2nd Street
Byron, tllinois 61010

Staff Current Staffing Proposed Staffing
DON 1FTE 1FTE
ADON 1FTE 1FTE
Staff Nurse 11.4 FTE 16.8 FTE
Certified Nurses Aid 32.2 FTE 41.1 FTE
Medical Records 1FTE 1FTE
Activity Department 4 FTE 5.4 FTE
MDS/ Care Plan 1FTE 2FTE
Social Services 2.8 FTE 3 FTE
Restorative Nurse 1 FTE 1FTE
Restorative Aids 1.8 FTE 4.2 FTE
Housekeeping 6.3 FTE 9.3 FTE
Laundry 3.4 FTE 3.4 FTE
Maintenance 1.75 FTE 2 FTE
Dietary 10.48 FTE 11.97 FTE
Administrators 1FTE 1FTE
Office 3FTE 3.8 FTE
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SECTION IV - SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA continued viii

Criterion 1125.600 Bed Capacity

The maximum bed capacity of a general LTC facility is 250 beds, unless the applicant
documents that a larger facility would provide personalization of patient/resident care and
documents provision of quality care based on the experience of the applicant and compliance
with [DPH's licensure standards (77 Ill. Adm. Code: Chapter 1. Subchapter ¢ (Long-Term Care
Facilities)) over a two-year period.

This project is only for the addition of 30 nursing beds to an existing 101-bed long term
care nursing facility. Upon project completion the licensed be capacity will be 131 nursing beds.

Therefore, as the proposed project is complaint with this criterion.

ATTACHMENT- 20
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SECTION IV - SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA céntinued ix

Criterion 1125.610 - Community Related Functions

The applicant shall document cooperation with and the receipt of the endorsement of community
groups in the town or municipality where the facility is or is proposed to be located, such as, but
not limited to, social, economic or governmental organizations or other concerned parties or
groups. Documentation shall consist of copies of all letters of support from those organizations.

Appended as ATTACHMENT-21A are nine (9) letters of support for the proposed
addition to Neighbors Rehabilitation Center. These letters are from Chris Millard, Mayor of
Byron; Deanna Mershon, Executive Director of Byron Area Chamber of Commerce; John
Rickard, City of Byron Alderman, Chairman of Community Services Committee; Todd R.
Murray, Chief of Police of Byron Police Department; Galen Bennett, Fire Chief of Byron Fire
Protection District; Reverend Raﬁdy L Snider, Senior Pastor of First Baptist Church; Jerry
Bueche, President of Byron Kiwanis; Dr. Eckburg, Dr. Aguero and Heather Hartman, CNA,

A/GNP of LTC Medical, Inc.; and Diann Frison, President of Byron Women's Club.

ATTACHMENT- 21
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Christopher R. Millard - Mayor

October 18, 2013

Pawn Thammarath, Administrator
Neighbors Rehabilitation Center
P.O. Box 585

Byron, IL 61010

Dear Ms. Thammarath:

I am happy to write a letter of endorsement on behalf of Neighbors Rehabilitation Center (NRC).
As a lifetime Byron resident, I have worked with NRC in multiple ways over the years first as a
Byron firefighter and now as Mayor.

I’m very happy that our community has a facility that can provide rehabilitation as well as long
“term care for residents who are in need of those services. In addition to the excellent care you
provide, I think it’s important to mention the home town nature of NRC. People from the Byron
area want to be able to receive their healthcare services in the Byron area. By completing your
expansion and renovation, more of our local residents will be able to stay in their home
community to receive the necessary services. As a firefighter, I saw many families’ lives
disrupted by illness and injuries. Following a hospitalization, people just want to get home.
Your proposed expansion and renovation will allow more of our residents to get one step closer
to home.

In addition to the benefit for residents and families, your proposed project will also benefit
businesses in Byron. For each of the residents you serve, histher family will be patronizing our
restaurants, grocery stores, etc.

I appreciate the work you’re doing and look forward to many more years working with NRC.
Please feel free to contact me if I can be of further assistance.

Mayor of Byron

(815) 234-2762 FAX (815) 2342646 ¢ P.O. BOX 916 » 232 WEST SECOND STREET * BYRON. ILLINOCIS6 1010

WWW.CITYOFBYRON.COM ATTACHMENT-21A




Christopher R. Millard - Mayor

November 3, 2013

Pawn Thammarath, Administrator
Neighbors Rehabilitation Center
P.O.Box 55

Byron, IL. 61010

Dear Ms. Thammarath,

Thank you for asking me to write a letter of endorsement for Neighbors Rehabilitation Center.
As a City Council member, | am always interested in projects that will improve the city of
Byron. [ anticipate the addition of private rooms and renovation of your existing building will
increase the amount and types of healthcare services that could be provided in Byron, This
would add value to the city and be of great benefit to its citizens. As you are aware Byron’s
population has grown tremendousty over the past 30 years. Qur local businesses need to grow
and continue to adapt in order to remain responsive to the needs of the population.

I support your proposed project and look forward to the changes in store for Neighbors
Rehabilitation Center. Please let me know if I can be of further assistance in the future.

Sincerely,

/ ‘
John Rickard

City of Byron Alderman
Chairman of Commuinity Services Committee

{8158) 2342762 FAX(815) 2342646 * P.O. Box 916 » 232 WEST SECOND STREET * BYRON, ILLINOIS 61010
WWW.CITYOFBYRON.COM
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ByYrRoN PoLICE DEPARTMENT

.+ 232 WEST SECOND Smm-:r Phone: 815-234-5000

.. --P.0: Box 923 o  Fax 815-234-2523
. BYRO\’, ILLJNors 6}010 T email: bYI'OﬂPOllCB@bYl'OIlﬂ ner -

3 Tt e el L B ; . . e,

Topp R. MURRAY -
Chief of Police

October 21, 2013

Pawn Thammarath, Administrator
Neighbors Rehabilitation Center
P.O. Box 585

Byron, IiL 61010

Dear Ms. Thammarath,

| am pleased to write a letter of endorsement for Neighbors Rehabilitation Center {(NRC). As the Byron
Chief of Police, | have enjoyed a positive working relationship with NRC over the years.

As you know, the Police Department is especially interested in public safety. | appreciate the efforts .
made to protect the safety of your residents from internal and external events; e.g., fire, severe
weather, nuclear disaster, and elopement drills,

| am pleased to hear about your plans to expand and renovate your facility. | think it is important that
the Byron community be able to offer the very best services to our residents. Updating and modernizing
NRC will be a real benefit to Byron. People who need rehabilitation will be able to return to their home
community and continue receiving the support of their family, friends, and neighbors. Being closer to
home will ensure a feeling of safety and security, not just for your residents, but their families as well.

t greatly appreciate NRC's presence and participation in the Byron community. Please feel free to

contact me if | can be of further assistance.

Sincerely,

Ay

Todd R. Murray
Chief of Police
Byron Police Depariment
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\{ .\ BYRON FIRE

S
AN PROTECTION DISTRICT

Galen Bennett Fire Lhief October 23, 2013
{23 N. Franklin Street

P.0. Box 304
BYRON IL GIOIO-D304 Pawn Thammarath, Administrator
PH (8'5)23 b 45” Neighbors Rehabilitation Center
FAX (8152342580 0. Box 583

Byron, IL 61010-0585
AOARD OF TRUSTEES Dear Ms. Thammarath:

PRESIDENT On behalf of the Byron Fire Protection District and Board of Trustees, I am please to
Ralph £ Larson endorse Neighbors Rehabilitation Center (NRC). Neighbors has been a part of the
VIEE-PRESIDENT Byron community providing inpatient skilled nursing and therapy services since 1971.

fan Bayer During this time, the Byron Fire District has provided ambulance service to their pa-

tients. Moreover, the Fire District has worked directly with NCR employees by way

SECRETARY of Fire Extinguisher Training and promoting Fire Prevention. Part of the Fire Dis-

Jay Hoover trict’s mission statement is to provide “quality care” to the Residents of Byron, when

we transport patients from NCR we are assured that the patients we are transporting

TREAS”RER have been receiving quality care. It is nice to see the personal relationships that are

biene Smith built between the patients and workers, this bond is visible, and duly noted.

ASST. TREASURER e s . . . e
Randy Lest Over the years, the Fire District has participated in many community activities includ-

ing the homecoming parade and Memorial Day parade, both of these parade include
visiting NCR. NCR has made “community” a priority. NCR is aware that their pa-

_ tients are members of the Byron Community and that is evident in their involvement
with the community. It is my opinion that their patients are not treated as numbers, but
as people and respected members of the Byron Community.

It is our hope that NCR is allowed to expand and/or remodel it’s current facility in or-
der to continue to provide the quality care to members of the Byron Community. It
has been our pleasure to work with NCR over the years, and we look forward to work-
ing with NCR for many more years to come.

Sincerely,

- ot GonnL

Galen Bennett
Fire Chief
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FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH

205 North Peru Street

Byron, lllincis 61010
815-234-8737

October 23, 2013

Randy Snider, Senior Pastor
First Baptist Church

205 N. Peru St.

Byron, Il. 61010

Dear Ms. Thammarath,

1 would like to give a letter of endorsement for the Neighbors
Rehabilitation Center of Byron, lllinois. Neighbors has been in our
community for the past 42 years. As Youth Pastor and now Senior
Pastor | have been involved in the Neighbors for the past 34 years. |
also worked part time as night custodian. | have done volunteer work
there in preaching on Sunday afternoons and often visited members
from our church at the facility.

Neighbors has always impressed me for their cleanliness and
their staff is always personal and caring. We are a small town
community and people tend to be friendly and caring. Much of their
staff comes from our community and carry on that attitude. | think it
is of great value to havé Neighbors in our community so that our
residents can stay here locally and have the personal touch. | have
seen how difficult it is for families to care for older loved ones and
what a relief it is to have a local facility for their care. It has also
been a blessing for those who just need rehab after a surgery or
illness.

Neighbors have also been very involved in the community hosting
events like Gospelfest and Memorial Day. Every parade begins or
passes through the Neighbors. They host Salad luncheons and
community picnics and support local churches when we host an event.

AFFILIATED WITH THE BAPTI§E GENERAL CONFERENCE  ATTACHMENT-21A




i have been glad to see some recent renovations to modernize
the facility. As the leader of our church | know the importance of
keeping a facility kept up and updated. [ think it’s important for the
Neighbors to moderize and expand so we can keep our people close
to home for their care. Qur community has grown, cur schools have
built new, so should our skilled care and rehab needs grow.

i hope this is helped you. Please feel free to contact me if | can
be of further heip. | look forward to working with the Neighbors Rehab
for the coming years.

Sincerely,

Jo Mo 1S

Rev. Randy L. Snider
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November 6, 2013

Pam Thammarath, Administrator
Neighbors Rehabilitation Center
P.0. Box 585

Byron, IL 61010

Dear Ms. Thammarath,

On behalf of the Byron Kiwanis Club, | am pleased to write this letter of endorsement for
Neighbors Rehabilitation Center (NRC). NRC has been a highly valued part of the
Byron community since 1971, and as such it is well known to the members of our
community service organization. | recognize that NRC is the only provider of inpatient
skilled nursing and therapy services in Byron, and the availability of a quality provider of
these services within our community enables citizens of the Byron area to receive vital
care while remaining in the community they have long been a part of. NRC also allows
members of the Byron community to receive this care while remaining close to their
friends and family, which can greatly contribute to their quality of iife.

Many of our Kiwanis club members have participated in activities with NRC through
various Byron school, community and local church organizations. We have witnessed
the value of having NRC located in the heart of our community. it's close proximity to
the Byron schools enables our young people to interact with the senior members of our
community through various activities including the Halloween parade (where young
school children march to NRC to share their costumes with the residents) and the
Homecoming parade, which goes right in front of NRC and where student athletes come
up to and individually greet the NRC residents. Furthermore the Byron Key Club, a
Kiwanis organization for high school students, is one of the groups which supports
Bingo activities at NRC. '

| recently had an opportunity to tour the NRC facility and to learn of the desire to
renovate and make additions to the existing facility. | wholeheartediy agree that the
proposed improvements and additions will significantly improve NRC's contribution to
the Byron community and improve the quality of life for their residents. If one of my
family members were to require the type of care offered by NRC, | would not want to
have to choose between the amenities of a modernized facility and remaining within the
community where they can enjoy ready access to family, friends, church, and
neighbors. | aiso think both being in 2 home community and high guality care and living
facilities can strongly affect the health and recovery of inpatients, and therefore |
anticipate the proposed addition and modernizations will favorably impact the health
costs for bath the patients and the community at large.

| hope that this information and sharing of my opinions and those of the Byron Kiwanis
club regarding NRC’s proposed facility improvements has been helpful, and we look
forward to many more years of working with NRC and enjoying the services you provide
to our community. Please feel free to contact me if | can be of further assistance.

Sincerely,

Qg Buccke

Jerry Bueche
President, Byron Kiwanis
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{ November 5™, 2013

|

; LTC Medical, Inc
7117 Crimson Ridge

Rockford, i 61107

This letter is written on behaif of Nelghbor's nuriing facility in Byron, IL.

Or Eckburg, Dr Agberu and | strongly recommend the addition and renovation of expanded Medicare
beds. We support, without hesitation the application for CON and subsequent board approval.

Our MO/NP group specifically and exclusively pravides care to resident’s of LTC/SNF facitities and feels
there is a palpable growing need for Neighbor's to be able to care for 2 larger number of resident’s in
{ ) this community. Wa have 3 positive and active relationship with sl three major health systems in
' Rockford who will be able to support their growth

Neighbor's nursing facility delivers 3 high standard of patient-centerad care in the Byron community and- -~ -
warrants thele ability to provida this excefient care to more patients,

{f there is anything wa an do to ba of assistance, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Heathar Hartman, CNP, A/GNP

815-608-0867

ATTACHMENT-21A
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November 19, 2013

Pawn Thammarath, Administrator
Nelghbors Rehabilitation Center
P.0. Box 585

Byron, Il, 61010

Dear Ms. Thammarath:

This is a letter of endorsement for Neighbors Rehabilitation Center (NRC), a facility In the Byron
Community since 1971, [t is the hope of the community that this facility can extend its services
with the addition and renovation of the current bullding. This addition can better meet the
needs of post op physical therapy and convalescence. This transition from hospital to home is
difficult for the patient and family, but would be smoother and easier with a facility near the
homes of residents from Byron and sutrounding communities. Receiving care in the patient’s
home community allows the patient to preserve relationships with friends and family as well as
giving them the feeling of “one step closer” to familiar surroundings.

| am president of Byron women’s Club and speak for many who feet this addition would be a
great asset to NRC. My mother is a resident in this facility and has received exceptional nursing
care for the past six years. She enjoys the holiday parties, luncheans, picnics, and “Gospelfest.”
The schools and churches in Byron are excellent at making NRC the focus for the Homecoming
Parade, Halloween Parade, and Memorial Day Parade. After a recent hospitalization my
mother was part of a challenging but tolerable Physical Therapy regime. Had it not been for the
diligence and dedication of the “PT” staff she would not be ambulatory today. The addition of a
bigger facility would be an invitation for more patients to benefit from the staff at NRC.

Sincerely, Diann Frison, President of Byron Women’s Club

e Fretsc
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SECTION 1V — SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA continued x

Criterion 1125.620 - Project Size

The applicant shall document that the amount of physical space proposed for the project is
necessary and not excessive. The proposed gross square footage {(GSF) cannot exceed the GSF

standards as stated in Appendix A of 77 lll. Adm. Code 1125 (LTC rules), unless the additional

GSF can be justified by documenting one of the following:

Upon project completion, Neighbors Rehabilitation Center will comprise 59,765 gross
square feet of space for 130 nursing care beds. This equates to 459.73 gsf per bed upon project
completion. It should be noted that the proposed project is in compliance with this criterion as

the full bed compliment is well within the range limit of 435-713 gross square feet per bed.

ATTACHMENT- 22
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SECTION IV - SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA continued xi

Criterion 1125.630 - Zoning

The applicant shall document one of the following:

1. The property to be utilized has been zoned for the type of facility fo be developed;
2. Zoning approval has been received; or
3. A variance in zoning for the project is to be sought.

Part of this process is the acquisition of additional land. The Applicant has not
approached the City of Byron regarding zoning as one of the required submittals is a current land
survey that has not yet been completed. The survey has been ordered and will be submitted upon
receipt. It should be noted that this project does require a Special Use Permit and will need to be
submitted to the City of Byron Zoning Board for review. It is the Applicant's desire to work on
the zoning process parallel to that of the Certificate of Need. One of the required submittals for
zoning is a current land survey. This is not yet complete although the survey has been ordered

and will be submitted upon receipt.

ATTACHMENT- 23
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SECTION IV - SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA continued xii

Criterion 1125.640 — Assurances

1. The applicant representative who signs the CON application shall submit a signed and
dated statement attesting to the applicant's understanding that, by the second year of
operation after the project completion, the applicant will achieve and maintain the
occupancy standards specified in Section 1125.210(c) for each category of service
involved in the proposal.

2. For beds that have been approved based upon representations for continuum of care
{Section 1125.560(a)} or defined population (Section 1125.560(b)), the facility shall
provide assurance that it will maintain admissions limitations as specified in those
Sections for the life of the facility. To eliminate or modify the admissions limitations,

prior approval of HFSRB will be required.

Appended as ATTACHMENT-24A, is a letter signed by the Appvlicant_ addressing item
number 1.

The proposed project is for the expansion of a free standing nursing care facility and not
part of a continuum of care community (CCRC). Therefore, item number 2 above is not

applicable to this project.

ATTACHMENT- 24
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Street Address:

811 W. 2nd Street
Byron, Illinois 61010
Mailing Address:
P.O. Box 584

Rehabilitation Center By, Mineia 61610

November 30", 2013

Ms. Courtney Avery, Administrator

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson St. , 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL. 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

This is to certify that Neighbors Rehabilitation Center understands and intends to maintain
capacity of newly constructed unit at an in-house annual bed census of 90 % or greater by the
second year of operation after the project completion. The facility will provide sorely needed
private rooms within this unit, which are currently often requested by consumers but that facility
is currently unable to provide. In addition, the proposed therapy gym will be of an adequate size
to allow facility to provide additional equipment needed by therapists to properly treat a variety
of diagnosed conditions thus allowing facility to accept a wider range of potential consumers.

T

Administrator

Nursing and Rehabilitation Center

www.neighborsbyron.com

ph: 815.234.2511 fax: 815.234.3114
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SECTION 1V - SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA continued xii

Criterion 1125.650 - Modernization

1.

If the project involves modernization of a category of LTC bed service, the applicant
shall document that the bed areas to be modernized are deteriorated or functionally

obsolete and need to be replaced or modernized, due fo such factors as. but not Jimited to:

a. High cost of maintenance;
b. Non-compliance with licensing or life safety codes;
c. Changes in standards of care (e.g., private versus multiple bed rooms); or

d. Additional space for diagnostic or therapeutic purposes.

The above does not directly apply to the facility, Neighbors Rehabilitation Center.
The facility appears to be in good repaif although dated according to their architect. The
facility is in compliance with all licensing and life safety codes; this Applicant fully
sprinkled the facility ahead of the deadline (see 2012 cost report data appended as
ATTACHMENT-25A). Since 2008 (6 years of history), this applicant has spent nearly
$650,000 in upkeep and improvements to the existing building. Thus, the issue appears
to be not a change in the standards of care but the change in environment and amenities
that are demanded by today's residents specifically those seeking Medicare rehabilitative
or end of life services.

More specifically, Neighbors Rehabilitation Center is currently less able to attract
and accommodate maﬁy potential residents due to the following issues: The number of
residents requiring isolation has risen due partly to the increased infection screenings
done at hospitals. This facility consists mostly of two-bed rooms with a connecting
bathroom. Should a resident require strict isolation, two two-bed rooms are often utilized
to accommodate just one resident due to the fact that an isolated resident must have a

private bathroom that cannot be shared with any other resident.
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SECTION 1V - SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA continued xiv

Additionally, potential residents are demanding private rooms with private
bathrooms. Many potential admissions are not interested in recuperating in a semi-
private room and sharing a toilet with up to three other patients.

The facility aléo lacks the space to provide a state of the art therapy gym and
equipment as well as other therapy related lab-arcas such as a home type bedroom,
kitchen, and laundry room. These areas are needed by professional therapists to work
with patients in a home-like environment in order to prepare them for their return to the
community.

Finally, the building, although clean and well maintaineﬂ, is lacking in the
updates aesthetics that both families and residents desire. Collectively, for the
aforementioned issues the moderization is being proposed.

2. Projects involving the replacement or modernization of a category of service or facility
shall meet or exceed the occupancy standards for the categories of service, as specified in

Section 1125.210{(c).

The proposed project involves the modernization and expansion of the long-term nursing
care category of service, as such, the 77 Illinois Administrative Code, Chapter II of Subchapter
b, Section 1125.210(c) sets the target utilization rate at 90 percent. Neighbors Rehabilitation
Center, in the most recent three calendar years for which the State has published date, shows the
average utilization at 91.6%, 92.6% and 91.8% for CY2010, CY2011, and CY2012. Refer to
ATTACHMENT-25B for the State's most recen‘t three years of facility profiles for the Subject

facility. Therefore, this project is in compliance with this criterion.
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SECTION V — FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY REVIEW continued i

Criterion 1125.800 Estimated Total Project Cost

The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants
responsible for funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a
bond rating of A- or better from Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or_A3 or
better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed within the latest 18 month period prior
to the submittal of the application):

e Availability of Funds — Review Criteria
¢ Financial Viability — Review Criteria
¢ Economic Feasibilitv — Review Criteria, subsection (a)

Availability of Funds

The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed
the estimated total project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient
financial resources from the following sources. as applicable: Indicate the dollar amount to be
provided from the following sources:

a. Cash and Securities — statements (e.g.. audited financial statements. letters from financial
institutions. board resolutions) as to:

The cash and securities that will be used to fund the project are coming out of the
facility's existing cash and the cash generated through ongoing operations with the added benefit
of traditionally member disbursements not being made until the equity portion of the project is
fully funded. Appended as ATTACHMENT-27A are copies of the owner's and the operator's
projected and historical financial statements for the most current three years and through the first
full year at target utilization. Appended as ATTACHMENT-27B, is a members resolution to
stop disbursements outside of covering tax liabilities to assist in funding the equity portion of the
project costs, as well as an amendment to the management consulting agreement stipulating that

their annual management fee would be reduce.

ATTACHMENT-27
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SECTION V - FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY REVIEW continued ii

d. Debt — a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt time period,
variable or permanent interest rates _over the debt time period, and the anticipated
repayment schedule) for any interim and for the permanent financing proposed to fund
the project, including:

3. For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to the expectation of
making the loan in the amount and time indicated, including the anticipated
interest rate and any conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but not
limited to, adjustable interest rates, balloon payments, etc.;

Appended as ATTACHMENT-27C is a letter from The PrivateBank’s Michael
Monticello, Managing Director and Patrick Malone, Officer providing the terms and
 conditions and stating it’s expectations in making the loan.  Appended as
ATTACHMENT—27D is also a letter from The PrivateBank’s Michael Monticello,
Managing Director and Patrick Malone, Officer describing this long-standing history that
The PrivateBank has with Neighbors Rehabilitation Center and its strong intent to
provide the project's financing. It should be known that The PrivateBank is the existing
Mortgage holder for the facility. Moreover, it is The PrivateBank's position that it cannot
finalize its commitment to finance without Certificate of Need approval among other due

diligence items.
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NEIGHBORS PROPERTY, LLC
BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

ASSETS
12/31/12 12/31/11
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $18,149 $3,056
Rent Receivable ____ 60,000 61,800
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS ' _$78,149  $64,856
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Acquisition $2,550,000  $2,550,000
Goodwill : 657,500 657,500
Partner Redemption Account 200,000 200,000
Total Cost Basis ~ $3,407,500  $3,407,500
Less: Accumulated Depreciation _ (631,521)  (493,417)
NET CARRYING VALUE $2,775,979  $2,914,083
OTHER ASSETS
Mortgage Costs ' $83,752 $83,752
Less: Accumuiated Amortization ___(76,771) _ (60,021)
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS %6981  $23731
TOTAL ASSETS $2,861,109 _ $3,002,670

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Accrued interest $12,463 $13,429
Accrued Real Estate Taxes 60,000 61,800
Due To Neighbors Rehab Center, LLC 0 130,000
Mortgage Payable - Private Bank 2,391,784 2,449,408
TOTAL LIABILITIES $2,464,247 $2 654 637
MEMBERS' EQUITY
Capital Contributed - net $816,200 $706,800
Accumulated Eamings(Losses) (338,167) (259,653)
Net Income (81,1 71) (78,514)
Partners Distributions 0 {20,600)
TOTAL MEMBERS' EQUITY $396 862 $348,033
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY __$2,861,109  $3,002,670
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NEIGHBORS PROPERTY, LLC
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENSE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

Year Ended Year Ended
1213112 123111

RENTAL INCOME _...5284,800  $289,800
CAPITAL EXPENSES
Amortization of Mortgage Costs - Private Bank $16,750 $16,750
Depreciation Expense 138,104 138,103
Fees . 275 0
Interest Expense 151,338 154,417
Reai Estate Tax Expense 56,599 57,844
Professional Fees 1,500 0
Office Expense 1,205 1,200
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 365,771 368,314
INCOME (1 OSS) BEFORE QTHER INCOME ($81,171) ($78,514)
QOther income - Interest Income | 0 0
NET INCOME " | 381.171) __($78,514)
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NEIGHBORS PROPERTY, LLC
BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Rent Receivable
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Acquisition
Goodwill
Partner Redemption Account
Total Cost Basis
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
NET CARRYING VALUE

OTHER ASSETS
Mortgage Costs
Less: Accumulated Amortization
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS! EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Accrued Interest
Accrued Real Estate Taxes
Due To Neighbors Rehab Center, LLC
Member Loans Payable
Mortgage Payable - Private Bank

TOTAL LIABILITIES
MEMBERS' EQUITY

Capital Contributed - net
Accumulated Earnings(Losses)
Net Income
Partners Distributions
TOTAL MEMBERS' EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY

247

12/31/11 12/31/10

$3,056 $2,083
61,800 61,800

. $64856  $63,883

$2,550,000 $2,550,000
657,500 657,500
200,000 200,000

1 $3,407,500 $3,407,500

(493,418)  (355,314)

$2,914,082 $3,052,186

$83,752  $83,752
_ (60,021)  (43,271)
$23,731  $40,481

“—$3 e _2_\[66._‘9 _. i e s T T LT LT

$13,429 $13,947
61,800 61,800
130,000 260,000

0 0
2,449,408 2,503,656

$2.654,637 $2,839,403.

$706,800  $597,400

(259,653)  (174,796)
(78,515)  (84,857)

{20,600)  (20,600)

..$348032  $317,147

_$3,002,669 _$3,156,550
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NEIGHBORS PROPERTY, LLC
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENSE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

Year Ended Year Ended
128111 12731710

RENTAL INCOME $289,800 _ $289,800
CAPITAL EXPENSES
Amortization of Mortgage Costs - Private Bank $16,750 $16,750
Depreciation Expense 138,103 138,103
Fees 0 618
Interest Expense 154,418 168,766
Real Estate Tax Expense 57,844 60,020
Professional Fees 0 0
Office Expense . 1200 400
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES ~..3688,315 374,657
~ INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OTHER INCOME | ($78,515)  ($84,857)
ither Income - Interest Income 0 0
NET INCOME ... ($78,515) . ($84,857)
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. : Frost 1S, Plingsien Road
A ' ‘ . Suite 300
RUttenberg & Neorfield. Hinois 60015

Rothblatt PC AMain 847,230,111

f_. CPAS & Business Advisons

To the Members
Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC

Independent Accountant’s Review Report

We have reviewed the accompanying balance sheet of Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC (ihe
“Company”} as of December 31, 2012, and the related statements of operations and cash flows
for the year then ended. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to
management's financial data and making inquiries of Cempany management. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion
regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally occepted in the United States of America and for
designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparatior and fair
presentation of the financial statements.

Qur responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services issued by the Americon Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance that there are no
material modifications that should be made to the financial statements. We believe that the results
of our procedures provide o reasonable basis for our report.

Based onh our review, with the exception of the matter described below, we are not aware of any
material modifications that should be made to the accompanying financial statements in order for
them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

As disclosed in Note (1} D to the financial statements, accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America require the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity fo
consclidate the variable interest entity in its financial statements. Management has informed us
that the Company's financial statements do not include the accounts of Neighbors Property, LLC,
that the Company has determined is o variable interest entity and in which the Company holds a
varlable inferest and is the primary heneficiary.

-1-

Wo Cound, You Matter,
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Our review was made primarily for the purpose of expressing a conclusion that there are no
material modifications that should be made to the financial statements in order for them to be in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The
supplementary information included in the accompanying schedules is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required port of the baosic financial statements. The
supplementary information has not been subjected to the inquiry ond analytical procedures
applied in the review of the basic financial statements, but has been compiled from information
that is the representation of management, We have not audited or reviewed the supplementary
information, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on such
supplementary information. :

Frost, Ruttenborg & Iotlblatt, 12C.

March 27, 2013
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
3alance Sheet

December 31, 2012
ASSETS
Current Assels
Cdsh and cash equivalents $ 121,645
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts 1,266,050
Prepaid insuronce 30,806
Prepaid expenses 4,960
Total Cutrent Assets 1,423,461
Property and Equipment
Leasehold improvements 432,540
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 127,115
Computer equipment 31,374
Vehides 19,000
Total Cost 610,029
Less: accumulated depreciation (83,935)
Property and Equipment, Net 526,094
Other Assels
Construction in process 62,282
Total Other Assets 62,282
TOTAL ASSETS 2 2,011,837

See independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes.
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. Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
" 3alance Sheet

December 31, 2012
'LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Trade ' $ 139,254
Accrued Liabilities '
Payrell and payroll toxes 130,378
Vacation pay 118,177
Expenses : , 130,183
Rent 60,000
Consulting fees 7,569
Line of credit 700,000
Residents’ trust fund Hability, net 70
Deferred replacement tax : 11,000
Note payable - vehicle - current portion 3,500
Total Current Liabilities 1,300,131
Long-Term Liabilities
Note payable - vehide 16,780
Less: current portion {3,500}
Total Long-Term Liabilities 13,280
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,313,411
MEMBERS' EQUITY :
Members' Equity - Beginning - 680,412
Net income : 570,314
Distributions {552,300}
Total Members' Equity - Ending 698,426
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY $ 2,011,837

See independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
‘tatement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Amount Per
Amount Resident Day

Nef Resident Revenue $ 5,199,047 $ 153.56
Operating Expenses _
Nursing 2,053,933 &60.65
Housekeeping and plont 393,694 11.65
Dietary 439,928 12.99
Employee welfare 471,466 13.92
Laundry and linen 103,937 3.08
Total Operaling Expenses 3,462,958 102.29
Income Before General and Administrative Expenses 1,736,089 51.27
General and administrative expenses 902,816 2667
Income Before Capifal Expenses 833,273 24.60
Capital Expenses
Rent : 282,800 8.35
Interest expense : 25,484 075
Depreciation 29,568 0.87
Total Capital Expenses 337,852 9.97
Income Before Other Income 495,421 14.63
Other Income
Interest income 3,973 0.12
Other income : 4,996 0.15
Total Other Income 8,969 0.27
Income Before Revision of Prior Accounting Estimates 504,390 14.90
Revision of prior accounting estimates 65,924 1.95
NET INCOME -3 570,314 $ 16.85

See Independent accountant'’s review report and accompanying notes.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income

$ 570,314

Adjustments To Reconcile Net Income To Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

Depreciation
Bod debts
(Increase) Decrease in Assets
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Increase {Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Tolal Adjustments
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for acquisition of property and equipment
Payments for construction In process
Net Cash Provided by (Used in} Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments on line of credit - net
Payments on loan payable - member
Payments on note payable - vehicle
Member distributions
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Aclivities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents - December 31, 2011

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - DECEMBER 31, 2012

See independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes.
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29,568
9,295

569,496
10,106

5,481

(27,101)
596,845
1,167,159

(129,611}
(15,184)
(144,795)

{400,000)
{150,000)

(2,220)
(422,300
(974,520)

47,844

73,801

$ 121,645
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

Note (1) Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Nature of Operafions

Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC {the “Company") is an lllinois Limited Liability
Company which operates o Long-Term Care facility located in Byron, llinois and is
licansed by the lllinois Department of Public Health (IDPH) to operate 107 beds, all
of which are licensed for skilled nursing care. The Compony has been certified by
the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services {CMS) for 101 Medicore beds.
The annual inspection for Medicare beds is performed by the lllinols Department of
Public Health {IDPH).

B. Form of Organization
The Company Is a Limited Liability Company (“L.L.C."), which is governed by an
Operating Agreement (“Agreement”) and is managed by its owners (“Members”).

The more significant provisions of the Agreement include:

Profit and Loss and cash distributions are in accordance with ownership,
There is o single class of Member, ‘
The LL.C. is perpetual untif an occurrence of a qualifying event

C. Properly and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful fives:

Years
Leasehold improvements 20-40
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-20
Computer equipment 3-10
VYehicles 10

The Company reviews the recoverability of long-lived assets when circumstances
Indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The carrying amount of
assets held and used is generally not recoverable if it exceeds the undiscounted
sum of cash flows expected fo result from the use and eventual disposition of the
asset, or for assets held for sale if it exceeds market valve. If the Company
identifies impairment for long-lived assets to be held and used, the Company
compares the assets’ current carrying valve to the assets’ fair value. Fair value Is
based on current market values or discounted future cash flows. The Company
records impairment when the carrying value exceeds fair value. There were no
impalrment indicaters during the year ended December 31, 2012.

The Company has made expenditures of $62,282 toward a potential facility
renovation project. As of December 31, 2012, the Company has not made any
commitments toward future construction.

See independent accountant’s review report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

Note (1) Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

D. Variable Interest Entities

The Consolidation of Variable interest Entities Topic requires efther the
consolidation of, or certain disclosures about, previously unconsolidated related
parties that constitute "variable interest entities”, as defined (VIEs). The Topic
addresses the consolidation of business enterprises to which the vsual condition
(ownership of a majority vofing interest) of consolidation does not apply. Such
determinations and other aspects of applying the provisions are extremely
complex and often require extensive analysis to complete. Management hos
elected to omit the required consolidation of related party lessor.

Neighbors Property, LLC., with total unaudited assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses of $2,861,000, $2,464,000, $282,800, and $366,000, respectively as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2012, has been determined to be a VIE
(See Note (3}). ~

E. Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as a Limited Liabllity Company. Under those
provisions, the Company does not pay federal Income taxes on its taxable income.
Instead, the Members are liable for individual income taxes on their respective
share of the Company's taxable income. The Company is liable for Mlinois
Replacement Tax. The tax returns of the Company are filed on the cash basis of
accounting.

Deferred tuxes are provided for based on the cumulative fiming differences
between income reported on the financial statements ond the tax retum. These
differences relate primarily to the differences between the accrual and cash
methods of recording revenves and expenses.

The Company accounts for any potential Interest or penalties related to the
possible future liabilites for unrecognized income tax benefits as interest/other
expense. The Company is no longer subject to examination by tax authorities for
federal, state or local income taxes for periods before 2008.

F. Revision of Prior Accounting Estimates
Revision of prior dccounting estimates consists primarily of prior years' revenves

and expenses, which for finoncial statement purposes have been segregated to
present more meaningful “Per Resident Day” amounts.

See independent accountant’s review report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

Note (1) Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

G. Cash Flows

The Company considers cash equivalents to be ail highly liquid investmenis with a
maotyrity of three months or less when purchased.

Cash flows from operating activities reflect cash payments for interest of $25,484
for the year ended December 31, 2012,

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company converted $130,000
due from an affiliate to a member distribution. In addition the Company financed
the purchase of a vehicle with a $19,000 note payable {See Note (7)). These

- transactions have been treated as non cash activities for purposes of the statement
of cash flows.

H. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilitles
and disclosure of confingent assets and liabilities ot the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. While actual results may differ from those estimates,
management does not expect the differences, if any, to have a material effect on
the financial statements.

i. Cash Balances in Excess of Insured Amounts

The Company maintains its cash in accounts which, at times, may exceed federally
insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses due to these limits.

J. Advertising

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expense was
$21,859 for the year ended December 31, 2012.

K. Subsequent Events

The Compaony evaluated all significant events or transactions that occurred through
March 27, 2013, the date that the finandal statements were available to be
issued. During this period, the Company did not have any material recognizable
subsequent events. :

See independent accountant’s review report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

Note (2) Revenue Recognition

Revenue and the related accounts recelvable is recognized for each day o resident
resides in the facility. The amounts are based on a reimbursement methodology
determined by the rules and regulations of the applicable third-party payor or by the
facility for private pay residents. The third-party poyor rules and regulations and
required record keeping and documentotion requirements are complex and
noncompliance may result in delay, adjustment or loss of revenue.

The majority of the Company's revenve is based on the rules of the following third-
party payors:

Hedlthcare and Family Services (HFS] - the Medicaid Program - A daily rate is
established utilizing three components - capital, support and nursing services. The
Company's daily rate ranged from $129.14 to $132.47 during the year ended
December 31, 2012. The capital ond support rates are based on the annual cost
report filings in accordance with HFS policy. The nursing component of the rata is
determined by resident clinical documentation that is derived using mandated
software ond may increase or decrease on a quarterly basis. Amounts billed
under the Medicaid program can take 60 to 120 days or more for collection. The
amounts puaid are subject to audit and are reviewed on a refroactive bas?s,
normally for a period of one to two years.

Centers for Medicore and Medicald Services (CMS) - The Medicare program uses
a Prospective Payment System (PPS) which is based upon the RUGS {Resource
Utilization Groups) IV System. The RUG category, and therefore the amount of
revenpe, Is determined by resident clinical documentation and level of care
information that is derived using mandated software. The amounts poid are
subject fo post payment medical review and may be adjusted retroactively
normally for a period of one to two years. Each RUG category Is assigned a
geogrophically adjusted federal reimbursement rate.

Estimates are made to provide for uncollectible amounts billed ond for adjustments
made by the above third-party payors, however, those estimates are subject to
revision and the resulting change, shown as revision of prior accounting estimates on the
Statement of Operations, may be significant. As of December 31, 2012, the Company
has established a $90,000 allowance for uncollectible accounts.

Note (3) Lease

The Company leases its facllity from Neighbors Property, LL.C,, a related entity. The
lease expired on April 1, 2012, but automatically renews for one year terms. Under
terms of the lease, the Company Is required to pay base rent plus real estate taxes and
insurance. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company made monthly rent
payments of $19,000 and payments for real estate taxes totaling $60,000.

Future minimum lease payments for 2013 are $72,000.

See independent accountant’s review report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

Note {4) Related Party Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company incurred costs of
approximately $533,000 from related entities for varlous operating expenses,
administrative expenses and consulting fees of $271,944.

Note (5) Employee Benefit Plan

A. Health and Welfare Plan

Through May 31, 2012, the Company participated in a Voeluntary Employee
Benefit Association (VEBA) to provide health insurance coverage for eligible
employees. Contributions to the Plan were at the discretion of the Board of
Directors, provided that the contributions provide the VYEBA with sufficient funds to
meet its obligations. Effective June 1, 2012, the Company withdrew from the
VEBA. Simultaneously, the Company together with other related entities, created
its own partially self insurance program. Management believes that premiums
paid for the initial period ended December 31, 2012 are sufficient to cover any
Incurred but unreported claims of the Plan which have not been determined as of
the date of this report.

B. Incentive Savings Plan
The Company has a 401(k) Plan covering eligible employees, which allows
employee contributions under a deferred salary arrangement as described in
Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenve code. The Company paid $9,813 in
matching contributions to the Plan for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Note (6) Line of Credit

The Company has $1,350,000 revolving line of credit arrangement with The
PrivateBank and Trust Company, which motures on May 25, 2013. The note is
secured by substantially all assets of the Company ond is guoranteed by certain
shareholders. The note bears inferest at prime (3.25% as of December 31, 2012},
As of December 31, 2012, total borrowings outstanding on the line of credit were
$700,000. The line of credit requires the Company to meet certaln financial
covenants including specific debt service ratios.

See independent accountant’s review report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

Notfe (7} Nofe Payable — Vehicle

During 2012, the Company financed o vehicle for the original loan amount of
$19,000. The loan bears interest at 5.24%, requires sixty monthly payments of
principal and interest in the amount of $361, and matures in April 2017. As of
December 31, 2012, the outstanding balance on the loan was $16,780. The loan is
secured by the vehicle,

Maturities of the note are as follows:

2013 $ 3,500
2014 3,732
2015 3,932
2016 4,144
2017 1,472
Total § 16,780

No!g_ (8) _Collective Bargaining Agreement

The majority of the Company’s employees are members of a collective bargaining
agreement that expired December 31, 2017. The Company Is presently negotiating
with the union to renew the collactive bargaining agreement. Management does not
anticipate that the new agreement will have a material impact on the Company's
operations. '

See independent accountant’s review report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
. Schedule of Resident Income
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Average
Resident Residents Amount Per
Days Per Day Amount Resident Day
Routine Services
Private ' 4,232 146 $ 808,089 $ 190.95
Private - bedhold - - 3,395 § -
Medicare 3,109 8.5 1,396,671 § 449.23
Medicald 22781 622 2,980,398 § 130.83
Hosplce 3,546 97 463,268 § 130.65
HMO 189 0.5 76,162 $ 402.97
Day care services - - 1,600 § -
Total Routine Services 33,857 92.5 5,729,583 $ 169.23
Less: Provider license fee and assessments (239,838) (7.08)
Net Routine Services 33,857 92.5 5,489,745 162.15
Net ancillary services (290,698) {8.59)
Net Resident Income 33,857 925 $ 5199047 $ 15356
Census 33,857
Average Residents Per Day 92.5
Percent to Capacity 91.6%

See independent accountant's review report,
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
“chedule of Net Ancillary Services
For the Ygar Ended December 31, 2012

Part A Other Total Profit
Charges Charges _Charges Cost or (Loss)
Pharmacy $ 63760 $ 6976 $ 70736 $ 79519 § (8.783)
Radiology 2,724 202 2,926 3,261 {335)
Laboratory 5112 500 5612 6,131 {519)
Physical therapy 374,600 189,120 563,720 175,075 388,645
Speech therapy 293,700 167,400 461,100 86,094 375,006
Occupational therapy 352,100 171,530 523,630 161,922 361,708
Medical supplies 3,401 - 3,401 2,971 430
Rentals 1,706 - 1,706 671 1,035
Enteral products 260 2,301 2,561 27 2,534
Total Ancillary Services 1,097,363 538,029 1,635,392 515,671 1,119,721
Less: Contractual adjustments {1,410,419) {1,410,419)
Net Ancillary Services $ 1,097,363 §$ 538,029 $ 224973 § 515,671 290,698)
See independent accountant's review report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Schedule of Operating Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Amount Per
Amount Resident Day
Nursing Salaries _
Director of nursing _ $ 77014 $ 2.27
Assistant director of nursing” ' 57,091 1.69
Registered nurses _ 211,736 6.25
Licensed practical nurses 358,731 10.60
Nurses aides 812,443 24.00
Therapy aides 104,706 3.09
Care plan and medical records 76,325 2.25
Total Nursing Salaries 1,698,046 50.15
Contract nursing 33,447 0.99
Total Nursing Labor 1,731,493 - 51.14
Activity Salaries '
Psycho-social 56,480 1.67
Director and assistants : : 104,980 3.10
Total Activity Salaries 161,460 4.77
Total Nursing and Activity Salaries 1,892,953 - 5591
Other Nursing Costs
Medical and nursing supplies 58,336 1.72
Wound care supplies 4,122 0.12
Infusion supplies 50 -
Enterol supplies 15,609 0.46
Oxygen 6,442 0.19
Prescription drugs 5,858 0.7
Activity program expense 9,457 0.28
Consultants
Activity 1,734 0.05
Soclal worker ' 1,734 0.05
Medlcal records 800 0.02
Pharmacy 7,052 0.21
Speech therapy 1,102 0.03
Medical director 2,900 0.29
Specialized rehab ' 9,696 0.29
Nursing program : 29,088 0.86
Total Other Nursing Costs 160,980 4.74
Total Nursing i 2,053,933 i 60.65

See independent accountant’s review report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Schedule of Operating Expenses - Continued
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Amount Per
Amount Resident Day
Housekeeping and Plant
Housekeeping salaries $ 125,348 § 370
Maintenance salarles 40,809 1.21
Director of envirenmental services 12,120 0.36
Housekeeping supplies 20,161 0.60
Grounds maintenance ' 4,598 0.14
Painting and decorating 28,277 0.84
Equipment repair and maintenance 20,258 0.640
Maintenance supplies 23,201 0.69
Qutside labor 1,035 0.03
Scavenger ' 9,943 0.29
Extermincting service 905 0.03
Fire service 8,455 0.25
Usilities 98,584 2.91
Total Housekeeping and Plant S 393694 § 11.65
Dietary
Dietary salarles $ 247,527 $ 7.31
Food 150,050 4.43
Dietary supplies . 19,751 0.58
Sales tax - food 526 0.02
Dietory consuitant 2,954 0.29
Director of food services 12,120 0.36
Total Dietary $ 439928 $ 12.99 -

See Independent accountant's review report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Schedule of Operating Expenses - Continued
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Amount Per
Amount Resident Day
Employee Welfare
Payroll taxes o $ 238,162 $ 7.03
Workers' compensation insurance 61,159 1.81
Employee insurance 144,020 4.25
Classified advertising : 1,210 0.04
Other employee benefits 26915 079
Total Employee Welfare $ 471,466 13.92
Laundry and Linen
Laundry salarles $ 80,814 § 2.39
Laundry supplies 15,443 0.46
Linen replacement 7,680 0.23
" Total Laundry and Linen § 103,937 $ 3.08

See independent accountant's review report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Schedule of General and Administrafive Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Amount Per
Amount Resident Day
General and Adminisirative Expenses :

Administrative salaries $ 90,091 $ 2.66
Office salaries 105,775 3.12
Director of admissions 14,544 0.43
Director of reimbursements 14,544 043
Director of administrative services 29,088 0.86
Director of regulatory services 14,544 0.43
Ancillary administrative charges 29,640 0.88
Accounting fees 54,213 " 1.60
Advertising and promotion : 21,859 0.65
Bad debts 9,295 0.27
Bank charges 6,998 0.21
Bookkeeping services 49,692 147
Computer support charges 8,484 0.25
Consulting fees 271,944 8.03
Contributions 1,750 0.05
Dues and subscriptions 22,215 0.46
Education and seminars 6,953 0.21
Equipment rental 3,009 0.09
Generadl insurance 73,217 2.16
Legal fees 9,289 0.27
Licenses and penmits 5,434 0.16
Office expense 14,929 0.44
Cther professional fees 18,925 0.56
Telephone 18,274 0.54
Travel - staff 8,110 0.24
Total General and Administrative Expenses _;__$___ 902,816 $ 26.67

See independent accountant's review report.
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CPAs & Business Advisors

To the Members
Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC

Independent Accountant’s Review Report

We have reviewed the accompanying balance sheet of Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC {the
“Company”} as of December 31, 2011, and the related statements of income and cash flows for
the year then ended. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to
maonagement's financial dota and making inquiries of Company management, A review is
substantiolly less in scope than an audit, the objective of which Is the expression of an opinion
regarding the finoncial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for
designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and feir
presentation of the financial statements.

Our responsibllity is to conduct the review In accordance with Statements on Stondards for
Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited ossurance that there are no
material modifications that should be made to the financial statements. We believe that the results
of our procedures provide & reasonable basis for our report.

Based on our review, wlth the exception of the motter described below, we are not aware of any
material modifications that should be made to the accompanying financial statements in order for
them to be in conformity with occounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

As disclosed in Note {1) D to the financial stotements, cccounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America require the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity to
consolidate the varioble interest entity in its financial statements. Management has informed us
that the Company's financial statements do not include the accounts of Neighbors Property, LLC,
that the Company has determined is o variable Interest entity and in which the Company holds a
variable interest and is the primary beneficiary.

-1-
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Our review wos made primarily for the purpose of expressing o conclusion that there are no
material modifications that should be made fo the financial statements in order for them to be in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, The
supplementary information included in the cccompanying schedules is presented for purposes of
additional onalysis and is not @ required part of the basic finoncial statements. The
supplementary information has not been subjected to the inquiry and anclytical procedures
applied in the review of the basic financial statements, but has been compiled from information
that is the representation of management, We have not audited or reviewed the supplementary
information, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any dassurance on such
supplementary information.

Frost, Rittenberg & bl FC

March 27,2012
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Balance Sheet ‘

December 31, 2011

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash $ 73,801
Accounts recelvable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts 1,844,840
Prepaid insurance 44,212
Prepaid expenses 1,660

Total Current Assets 1,964,513

Property and Equipment

Leasehold Improvements 321,485
Computer equipment ' 23,661
Furniture and fixtures . 116,272
Depaosits on equipment _ 47,098
Total Cost 508,516
Less: Accumulated depreciation {54,367)
Property and Equipment, Net ' 454,149
Other Assets
Due from affiliate 130,000
Total Other Assets 130,000
TOTAL ASSETS g 2,548,662

See Independent Accountant's Review Report and accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2011
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilifies
Accounts payable $ 133,774
Accrved Liabliities
Payroll and payroll taxes 111,782
Yacation 113,556
Expenses 150,705
" Management fees 35,625
Rent : 61,800
Line of credit 1,100,000
Residents' trust fund liability, net ' 10
Deferred replacement tax 11,000
Loan payable - member 150,000
Total Current Liabilities 1,868,252
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,868,252
MEMBERS' EQUITY 4
Members' equity 471,590
Net Income ' 565,420
Distributions {356,600}
Total Members' Equity 680410
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY : $ 2,548,662

L
See Independent Accountant's Review Report and accompanyling Notes 1o Financial Statements,
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
“tatement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Amount Per
Amount Resident Day

Net Resident Revenue

Operating Expenses
Nursing
Housekeeping and plant
Dietary
Employee welfare
Laundry and linen
Total Operating Expenses

income Before General and
Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses

income Before Capltal Expenses

Capital Expenses

Rent
Interest expense
Deprediation

Total Capital Expenses

income Befare Other Income
Interest income
Other income

Total Other income

Income Before Revision of Prior Accounting Estimates
Revision of prior accounting estimates

Income Before State Replacement Tax
State replacement tax

NET INCOME

$ 5180494 $ 1

53.23

2,034956 60.20
446,395 13.20
426,351 12,61
424,575 1256
101,204 2.99

3,433,481 101.56

1,747,013 51.67
862,337 25.55
884,676 26.12
289,800 8.57

13,443 0.40
22,199 0.66
325,442 9.63
559,234 16.49
5,445 0.16
2,720 0.08
8,165 0.24
567,399 1673
1,521 0.04
568,920 1677
(3,500) (0.10)
$ 565420 § 16.67

" See Independent Accountant's Review Report and accompanying Notes to Financial Statements,
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
{ Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income $ 565,420
Adjustments To Reconcile Net Income To Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating
Activities
Depreciation 22,199
Bad debt : 3,600
Deferred replacement tax 7,250
{Increase) Decrease in Assets
Accounts receivable {1,103,946)
Prepuoid expenses and other assets 9,409
Increase (Decrease} In Liabilities :
Accounts payable 51,233
Accrued expenses ond other current ligbilities 138,215
Total Adjustments (872,039)
Net Cash Provided by {(Used in) Operating Activities (306,619)
' CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for acquisition of property and equipment (297,597)
Payments for deposits on equipment {47,098}
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities (344,695)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds on line of credit - net 650,000
Increase in loan payable - member 150,000
Distributions {226,600)
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 573,400
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (77,914)
Cash - December 31, 2010 151,715
CASH - DECEMBER 31, 2011 2 73,801

-
See Independent Accountant's Review Report and accompanying Notes to Financlal Statements.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

Note (1) Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Nature of Operations

Nelghbors Rehabllitation Center, LLC (the "Company"} Is on lilinois Limited Liability
Company which operates a Long-Term Care facility located in Byron, Hlinols and is
licensed by the lllinois Department of Public Health {IDPH) to operate 101 beds, dll
of which are licensed for skilled nursing care. The Company began operations on
June 1, 2008. The Company has been certifled by the Centers for Medlcare and
Medlicald Services (CMS), for 101 Medicare beds. The annual inspection for
Medicare beds Is performed by the llinols Deporiment of Public Health.

B. Form of Organization
The Company is a limited Liabllity Company (“L.L.C."), which is governed by an
Operating Agreement {("Agreement”} and Is managed by Its owners {“Members”),
The more significant provisions of the Agreement include:
Profit and Loss and cash distributions are In accordance with ownership,
There Is a single class of Member,
The LLC. Is perpetual untll an occurrence of a qualifying event

C. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carrled at cost. Depreciation Is provided using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Leasehold improvements 10-30
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-20
Computer equipment 3

The Company reviews the recoverability of long-lived assets when circumstances
indicate that the carrying omount may not be recoverable. The carrying amount of
assets held and used Is generally not recoverable if it exceeds the undiscounted
sum of cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the
asset, or for assets held for sale if It exceeds market valve, If the Company
identifies impalrment for long-lived assets to be held ond used, the Company
compares the assets’ current carrylng value to the assets’ foir valye. Fair volue is
based on current market volues or discounted future cash flows. The Company
records impairment when the carrying volue exceeds falr value. There were no
impatrment Indicators during the year ended December 31, 2011,

See Independent Accountant's Review Report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

Note (1) Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continved

D. Variable Interest Enfities

The Consolidation of Varioble Interest Entities Topic requires either the
consolidation of, or certain disclosures about, previously unconsolidated related
parties that constitute "varlable Interest entities”, as defined {VIEs). The Topic
addresses the consolidation of business enterprises to which the usual condition
(ownership of a malority voting Interest) of consolidation does not apply. Such
determinations and other aspects of applying the provisions are extremely
complex and often require extensive anaclysis to complete. Management has
elected to omit the required consoildation of related party lessor,

Neighbors Property, LLC,, with total unaudited assets, liabilitles, revenves and
expenses of $3,002,000, $2,655,000, $290,000, and $370,000, respectively as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2011, has been determined to be a VIE.

E. Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as a Limited Liability Company. Under those
provisions, the Company does not pay federal Income taxes on its taxable income.
instead, the Members are liable for individual income taxes on their respective
share of the Company's taxable Income. The Company Is liable for illinols
Replacement Tax and has net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$570,000 expiring from December 31, 2020 through December 31, 2023.

Deferred taxes are provided for bused on the cumulative timing differences
between income reported on the finuncial statements and the tax return. These
differences relate primarily to the differences between the accrual and- cash
methods of recording revenues and expenses.

‘The Company accounts for any potential interest or penaities related to the
possible future liabilities for unrecognized income tax benefits as Interest/other
expense.

F. Cash Flows

The Company considers ¢cash equlvalents to be all highly liquid investments with a
maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Cash flows from operating activities reflect cash payments for interest of $13,443
for the year ended December 31, 2011,

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company made a $130,000 non
cash transfer to Neighbors Property, L.L.C, o related entity.

See Independent Accountant's Review Report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

Note (1) Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

G, Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted In the United States of America requires management to moke
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
ond disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. While actual results moy differ from those estimates,
management does not expect the differences, If any, to have a materlal effect on
the financial statements.

H. Cash Balances in Excess of Insured Amounis

The Company maintains its cash In accounts which, at times, may exceed federally
Insured limits, The Company has not experlenced any losses due to these limits,

. Adverttising

The Company expenses advertising costs as Incurred. Advertising expense was
$23,884 for the year ended December 31, 2011.

J. Subsequent Evenis

The Company evaluated all significant events or transactions that occurred through
March 27, 2012, the date that the financial statements were available to be
issved. During this period, the Company did not have any moterial recognizable
subsequent events,

See independent Accountant's Revlew Report,
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

Note (2) Revenue Recognition

Revenue and the related accounts receivable i1s recognized for each day o resident
resides in the facility. The amounts are based on a reimbursement methodology
determined by the rules and regulations of the applicable third-party payor or by the
facility for private pay residents. The third-party payor rules and regulations and
required record keeping and documentation requirements ore complex and
noncomplance may resuvlt in delay, adjustment or loss of revenve.

The majority of the Company's revenue is based on the rules of the following third-
party payors:

Hedithcare and Family Services {HFS) - the Medicaid Program - A daily rate Is
established vtilizing three compenents - capital, support and nursing services. The
Company's daily rate ranged from $114.96 to $132.43 during 2011. The copital
and support rates are based on the annual cost report filings in accordance with
HFS policy. The nursing component of the rate is determined by resident clinical
documentation that is derived using mandated software and may Increase or
decrease on a quarterly basis. Amounts billed under the Medicaid program can
take 60 to 120 days or more for collection. The amounts pald are subject to audit
and are reviewed on o retroactive basis, normally for ¢ period of one to two
years.

" Centers for Medicare and Medicald Services (CMS} - The Medicare Program uses
o Prospective Payment System {PPS} which Is based upon the RUGS (Resource
Utilization Groups) IV System. The RUG category, and therefore the omount of
revenue is based on the RUGS IV System. The RUG category, and therefore the
amount of revenue, is determined by resident clinical documentation and level of
care information that is derived using mandated software. The amounts poid are
subject to post payment medical review and may be adjusted retroactively
normally for a period of one to two years. Each RUG category is assigned a
geographically adjusted federal reimbursement rate.

For the year ending December 31, 2011, as a result of a law signed by Governor
Quinn duting February, 2011 and subsequently approved by CMS in early January,
2012 the Company has recorded a receivable and corresponding revenuve for a
Medicaid rate increase refroactive to May, 2011 In the amount of $245,000 and o
payable and corresponding expense for a provider tax Increase retroactive to May,
2011 in the amount of $122,000, which results In a net increase in net income and
member’s equity of $123,000. Any adijustment to this retroactive rate Increase and
provider tax increase will be reflected in the future period’s financial statements.

Estimutes are made to provide for uncollectible amounts billed and for adjustments
made by the above third-party payors, however, those estimates are subject to
ravision and the resulting change, shewn os revision of prior accounting estimates on the
Statement of Operations, may be significant. As of December 31, 2011, the Company
has established a $65,000 allowance for uncollectible accounts.

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Nofes to Financial Statements
_December 31, 2011

Note (3) lease

The Company leases its facility from Neighbors Property, LLC,, a related entity, and Is
currently paying $19,000 per month plus real estate taxes. The lease expired on April 1,
2011 ond automaticolly renews for one year terms. Future minimum lease payments for
2012 are $228,000.

Note (4) Related Party Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company incurred costs of
approximately $523,000 from related entiles for various operating expenses,
administrative expenses and consulting fees of $267,890.

Note (5) Employee Benefit Plan

A. Health and Welfare Plan

The Company participotes in a Voluntary Employee Benefit Assoclation (VEBA]} to
provide health insurance coverage for eligible employees. The VEBA provides
coverage for numerous related entities through a combination of various options,
which include limited self-funding and "stop-gap” Insurance. Contributions to the
Plan are at the discretion of the Board of Directors, provided that the contributions
provide the VEBA with sufficient funds to meet Its obligations, Contributions to the
VEBA could vary significantly and the results of such variations could be material.

B. Incentive Savings Plan

The Company has o 401{k) Plan covering eligible employees, which allows
employee contributions under o deferred salary arrangement as described in
Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenwe code. The Company paid $12,782 in
matching contributions to the Plan for the year ended December 31, 2011.

See Independent Accountant's Review Report. .
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Noies to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

Note {6) Line of Credit and Loan Payable - Member

The Company has entered into a line of credit arrangement with Private Bank, in which
the assets of the Company are used to collateralize the line of credit in the amount of
$1,350,000. The line of credit bears interest at prime (3.25% as of December 31,
| 2011) ond matures on December 22, 2012, As of December 31, 2011, total debt on
: the bank line of credit was $1,100,000.

The line of credit requires the Company to maintaln specific debt service ratios and is
also partially guaranteed by certain members of the Company.

In addition, the Company owed its members $150,000 ot December 31, 2011,
The Company was charged $13,443 for its portion of interest on the above foans.

Note (7) Dve fro_m' Affiliate

The Company hos a $130,000 noninterest bearing receivable from Neighbors
Property, LL.C,, a related entity,

Note {(8) Colleclive Bargaining Agreement

The majority of the Company’s employees are members of a collective bargaining
agreement that expired December 31, 2011, The Company is presently negotioting
with the union to renew the collectlve bargaining agreement. Management does not
anticlpate that the new agreement will have a material impact on the Company’s
operations.

See Independent Accountant's Review Report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC

“chedule of Resident Income

" For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Routine Services
Private
Medicare
Medicald
HMO
Hospice
Total Routine Services
Less: Illinols nursing home license fee
Net Routine Services
Net andliory services
Net Resident Income

Census
Average Residents Per Day
. Tercent to Capacity

See Independent Accountant's Review Report.

Average
Resident Residents Amount Per
Days Per Day Amount Resident Day
4,375 119 § 829,103 § 189.51
3,562 9.8 1,524,805 $ 428.08
23,291 63.8 2,941,533 § 126,29
119 0.3 51,362 § 431.61
2,463 6.7 283,146 §$ 114.96
33,810 92.5 5629949 $ 166.52
{177,298} {5.24)
33,810 92.5 5452,651 161.28
{272,157) (8.05)
33,810 925 $ 5180494 $ 153.23
33,810
92.5
91.6%

«3.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
“chedule of Net Ancillary Services
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Pharmacy
" Radiolagy
Laboratory
Physical therapy
Speech therapy
Oceupational therapy
Medical supplies
Rentals
Vent Supplies
Enteral Products
Total Ancillary Services
Less: Contractual adjustments
Net Ancillary Services

Part A Other Total Profit
Charges Charges Charges Cost or (Loss)

$ 70,704 $ 74659 § 78,363 § 774662 § 701
3,518 - 3,518 3,348 170

- 8,770 8,770 8,733 37

335,550 128,770 464,320 151,233 313,087
49,800 16,100 65,900 2,988 55912
296,120 113,380 409,500 139,624 269,876
2,767 - 2,767 2,834 {67}

8,906 - 8,906 4,509 4,397
258 399 1,357 6,318 {4,961)

105 5,505 5610 - 5,610

768,428 280,583 1,049,011 404,249 644,762
{916,919) {916,919)

$ 768,428 $ 280,583 $ 132,092 $ 404,249 $ (272,157)

See Independent Accountant's Re_vtew Report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
“chedule of Operating Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Amount Per
Amount Resident Day
Nursing Salaries
Director of nurses 75856 §$ 2.24
Assistant director of nurses 57,355 1.70
Registered nurses 293,657 8.69
Licensed practical nurses 268,881 7.95
Nurses aides 805,903 23.84
Care plan and medical records 75,589 2,24
Rehab aides 99,649 2.95
Total Nursing Salaries 1,676,890 49.61
Contract nursing 36,898 1.09
Total Nursing Labor 1,713,788 50.70
Activity Salaries
Director and assistants 108,411 2
Psycho-sacial 58,241 172
Total Activity Salaries 166,652 4.93
Total Nursing and Adlivity Salaries 1,880,440 55.63
Aher Nursing Costs
Medical and nursing suppllies 61,498 1.82
Oxygen 2,605 0.08
Enteral supplies 12,669 0.37
Equipment rental 2,858 0.08
Pharmoacy 4,294 0.13
Preseription drugs 11,380 0,34
Consultants
Activity 1,774 0.05
Physical therapy 1,227 0.04
Qccupational therapy 1,086 0.03
Social worker 1,774 0.05
Speech therapy 75 -
Maedical records 960 0.03
Nursing program 24,240 072
Pharmacy 6,056 0.18
Medical director 9,900 0.29
Specialized rehab 12,120 0.36
Total Other Nursing Costs 154,516 4.57
Total Nursing __;L 2034956 $ 60.20

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
“chedule of Operating Expenses - Continued
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Total Dietary

See Independent Accountant's Review Report,

%8 -

Amount Per
Amount Resident Day
Housekeeping and Plant
Housekeeping salaries $ 125164 $ 3.70
Maintenance salarles ' 41,996 1.24
Director of enviromental services ] 2,1 20 0.36
Qutside labor 25,438 0.75
Housekeeping supplies - 18,853 .56
Grounds maintenance 5,529 0.16
Painting and decorating 14,019 0.41
Repairs and maintenance 65,490 1.94
Scavenger ‘ 21,562 0.64
Exterminating service 893 0.03
Fire service 13,072 0.39
Utilittes 102,259 3.02
Total Housekeeping and Plant $ 446,395 13.20
Qistory
. ietary salarles $ 240,599 $ 7.12
Food 144,796 4.28
Dietary supplies 17,251 0.51
Sales tax - food 423 0.01
Dietary consultant 11,162 0.33
Director of food services 12,120 0.36

$ 426351 § 1261
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
“chedule of Operating Expenses - Continued
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Amount Per
Amount Resident Day

Employee Welfare
Payroll taxes $ 217,252 § 643
Workers' compensation insurance 67,194 1.99
Classified Advertising 2,044 0.06
Other employee benefits 29,416 0.87
Employee insurance 108,669 3.21
Total Employee Welfare § 424,575 g 12.56

Laundry and Linen
Laundry salaries ' $ 77415 % 2.29
Laundry supplies 16,660 049
Linen replacement 7,129 0.21
Total Laundry and Linen $ 101,204 $ 2.99

See Independent Accountant's Review Report,
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
“chedule of General and Administrative Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Amount Per
Amount Resident Day
General and Administrative Expenses
Salaries _
Administrator $ 85,043 $ 2.52
Office 100,935 2.99
Director of admissions 12,120 0.36
Director of reimbursements 12,120 0.38
Director of administrative services 24,240 072
Director of regulatory services ' 12,120 0.36
Ancillary administrative charges : 24,240 0.72
Accounting fees 57,013 1.6%9
Advertising and promotion 23884 0.71
Bad debts 3,600 0.11
Bank charges 7,808 0.23
Bookkeeping and data processing services 44,844 1.33
Computer support 3,636 0.11
Contributions 750 0.02
ves and subscriptions 21,908 0.65
Educotion and seminars 5,030 0.15
Equipment rental : 4,319 013
. General insurance 71,945 213
legal 8,721 0.26
Licenses and permits ' 2,815 0.08
Consulting fees 267,890 7.92
Office expense 18,800 0.56
Professional fees 21,989 0.65
Telephone 19,236 0.57
Transportation 7,331 0.22
Total General and Administrative Expenses $ 862,337 _$ 2555

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC

Additional Management Information
December 31, 2011

Analysis of Nursing Stoff salaries and hours paid for the year ended December 31, 2011,
is as follows:

Hours Cost Per
Amount Hours Worked Paid Hour

DON and ADON $ 133,211 3,888 4304 $ 30.95

RNs 293,657 11,894 12,370 § 23.74

LPNs 268,881 11,879 12,6400 § 21.34

Aides 905,552 67,602 73,228 % 12.37
CPC/Medical Records 75,589 3,935 4,146 § 18.23
Contract Nursing 36,898 1,004 1,004 $ 3675

Total Salaries $ 1,713,788 100,202 107,652 $ 15.92

Total Resident Days . 33,825
Aver_gge Number of Hours Worked per Resident Day 2.96

See Independent Accountant's Review Report,
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
December 31, 2010
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Focus. Dedication. Relutionships,

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
AND BUSINESS ADVISORY

To the Members
Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC

Independent Accountant's Review Report

We have reviewed the accompanying balance sheet of Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC (an Illinois
Limited Liability Company) as of December 31, 2010, and the related statements of operations and cash
flows for the year then ended. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to
management's financial data and making inquities of Company management. A review is substantially
less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial
statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principies generally accepted in the United States of America and for
designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements,

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting
and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require us to perform procedures to obtain fimited assurance that there are no material modifications
that should be made to the financial statements. We believe that the results of our procedures provide
a reasonable basis for our report.

Based on our review, with the exception of the matter described below, we are not aware of any
material modifications that should be made to the accompanying financial statements in order for them
to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

As disclosed in Note (1) B to the financial statements, accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America require the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity to consolidate the
variable interest entity in Its financial statements. Management has informed us that the Company's
financial statements do not include the accounts of Neighbors Property, LLC that the Company has
determined is a variable interest entity and in which the Company holds a variable interest and Ts the
primary beneficiary. The effects of this departure from accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America on the financial position, results of cperations, and cash flows have not been
determined.

Our review was made for the purpose of expressing a conclusion that there are no material
modifications that should be made to the financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The information included in
the accompanying supplementary schedules is presented only for purposes of additional analysis and
has not been subjected to the inquiry and analytical procedures applied in the review of the basic
financial statements, but was compiled from information that is the representation of management,
without audit or review. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on
the supplementary information.

Frost, Ruttonberg & Botlblutt, P°C.

March 25, 2011

_ Frost, S aq-
Rutreubrery L’}‘ . o % ATTACHMENT-27A :
Rothbiatr, PC. | 1118 Pirngsten Koad, Suite 300 + ) )?Tr_' el 11 6001 o 81T 236-1111 = wiowe frrontiie.com e cn
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2010
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 151,715
Accounts Receivable - (Net of Allowance for

Uncollectible Accounts) 744,495
Prepald Expenses

Insurance 44,300

Expenses 10,982
Total Current Assets 951,492
Property and Equipment
Leasehold Improvements 68,891
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 79,477
Computer Equipment 15,451
Total 163,819
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (32,168)
Net Property and Equipment 131,651
Other Assets
Due from Affiliated Organization 260,000
Total Other Assets 260,000

1,343,143

Total Assets

See Accountant's Review Report and accompanying Notes to Financlal Statements.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC

Balance Sheet

December 31, 2010

Liabilities and Members' Equity

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable ' $ 82,541

Accrued Liabilities
Expenses 27,358
Consulting Fees 13,735
Payroll 103,206
Payroll Taxes 12,219
Rent ' 61,800
Vacation Pay _ 112,932
Replacement Tax 3,750

Commitment ~ Line of Credit 450,000

Deferred Replacement Tax 3,750

Residents' Trust Fund Liability - (Net of Cash of $6,241) 263

Total Current Liabilities 871,554

Members' Equity

Members' Equity - January 1, 2010 695,992

Net Income 208,197

Less: Dividends : (432,600)

Total Members' Equity 471,589

Total Liabilities and Members' Equity $ 1,343,143

See Accountant’s Review Report and accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC

Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Amount Per
Amount Resldent Day

Net Resident Income $ 4,760,786 $ 141.00
Operating Expenses
Nursing 2,046,341 60.61
Housekeeping and Plant 401,238 11.88
Dietary 422,467 12.51
Employee Welfare 413,167 12,24
Laundry and Linen ’ 105,024 3.1
Total Operating Expenses 3,388,237 100.35
Income Before General and

Administrative Expenses 1,372,549 40.65
General and Administrative Expenses 850,983 25.20
Income Before Capital Expenses 521,566 15.45
Capital Expenses
Rent 289,800 8.58
Interest Expense 9,965 0.30
Depreciation 16,524 0.49
Total Capital Expenses 316,289 9.37
Income From Operations 205,277 6.08
Other Income
Interest Income 394 0.01
Miscellaneous Income 1,917 0.06
Total Other Income 2,311 0.07
Income Before Revision of

Prior Accounting Estimates 207,588 6.15
Revision of Prior Accounting Estimates 1,259 0.04
Income Before State Replacement Tax 208,847 6.19
State Replacement Tax 650 0.02
Net Income ' $ 208,197 $ 6.17

See Accountant’s Review Report and accompanying Notes to Financial Statements,
-f -
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net Income $ 208,197
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash
Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities
Depreciation 16,524
Bad Debt 39,734
Decrease in Deferred Income Taxes (3,100)
(Increase) Decrease In Assets
Accounts Receivable 215,685
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets (12,641)
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts Payable (42,079)
Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities (19,995)
Total Adjustments 194,128
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities 402,325
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Payments for Acquisition of Property and Equipment (31,446)
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Investing Activities {(31,446)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds on Commitment - Line of Credit 100,000
Dividends (432,600)
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Financing Activities (332,600)
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 38,279
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 113,436
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 151,715

See Accountant's Review Report and accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010

Note (1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

A.

Business

Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC (the "Company") is an Illinois Limited Liability Company
which operates a Long-Term Care facllity located in Byron, Illinois, and is licensed by the
Tliinols Department of Pubtic Health (IDPH) to operate 101 beds, all of which are licensed for
skilled nursing care, The Company began operations on June 1, 2008. The Company has been
certified by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), for 101 Medicare beds. The
annual inspection for the Medicare beds Is performed by the lllinols Department of Public
Health.

Form of Organization

The Company is a Limited Liability Company ("L.L.C."), which is governed by an Operating
Agreement ("Agreement”) and Is managed by its owners ("Members®). The more significant
provisions of the Agreement include:

Profit and Loss and cash distributions are in accordance with ownership,
There s a single class of Member,
The L.L.C. is perpetual until an occurrence of a qualifying

Variable Interest Entities

The Consolidation of Varfabie Interest Entities Topic requires either the consolidation of, or
certain disclosures about, previously unconsolidated related parties that constitute "variable
interest entities,” as defined (VIEs). The Topic addresses the consolidation of business
enterprises to which the usual condition (ownership of a majority of voting interest) of
consolidation does not apply. Such determinations and other aspects of applying the
provisions are extremely complex and often require extensive analysis to complete.
Management has elected to omit the required consolidation of related party lessor,

Neighbors Property, L.L.C. with total unaudited assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of
$3,160,000, $2,840,000, $290,000, and $370,000, respectively as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2010, has been determined to be a VIE.

See Accountant's Review Report,
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010

Note (1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

D.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided on the straight-line

- method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Leasehold Improvements 10-30
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment - 5-20
Computer Equipment 3

The Company reviews the recoverability of long-lived assets when circumstances [ndicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The carrylng amount of assets held and used is
generally not recoverable if it exceeds the undiscounted sum of cash flows expected to result
from the use and eventual disposition of the asset, or for assets held for sale If it exceeds
market value. If the Company identifies impairment for long-lived assets to be held and used,
the Company compares the assets' current carrying value to the assets' fair value, Fair value is
based on current market value or discounted future cash fiows. The Company records
impalrment when the carrying value exceeds fair market value. There were no impairment
indicators during the year ended December 31, 2010.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as a Limited Liability Company. Under those provisions,
the Company does not pay federal income taxes on its taxable income. Instead, the members
are liable for individual income taxes on their respective share of the Company’s taxable
income. The tax returns of the Company are filed on the cash basis of accounting, The
Company Is liable for Illinois Replacement Tax. The Company has approximately $550,000 of
State net operating loss carryforwards at December 31, 2010 due to expire in 2020.

Deferred taxes are provided for based on the cumulative timing differences between Income
reported on the financial statements and the tax return. These differences relate primarily to
the differences between the accrual and cash methods of recording revenues and expenses.

The Company accounts for any potential interest or penalties related to possible future
liabilities for unrecognized income tax benefits as interest/other expense.

See Accountant’s Review Report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 |

Note (1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

F.

G.

I

Cash Flows

Cash equivalents are all highly liquid Investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased.

Cash flows from operating activities reflect payments of $9,965 for interest in 2010,

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabllities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. While actual results may
differ from those estimates, management does not expect the differences, If any, to have a
material effect on the finandal statements.

Cash Balances in Excess of Insured Amounts

The Company maintains its cash In bank accounts which, at times, may exceed federally
insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses due to these limits.
Advertising -

The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. For the year ended
December 31, 2010, advertising expense was $23,158,

Subsequent Events

The Company evaluated all significant events or transactions, that occurred through March 25,
2010, the date that the financial statements were avallable to be issued. During this period,
the Company did not have any material recognizable subsequent events.

See Accountant’s Review Report,
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010

Note (2) Revenue Recognition

Revenue and the related accounts receivable is recognized for each day a resident resides in the
facility. The amounts are based on a reimbursement methodology determined by the rules and
regulations of the applicable third-party payor or by the facility for private pay residents, The third-
party payor rules and regulations and required record keeping and documentation requirements are
complex and noncompliance may result In delay, adjustment or loss of revenue,

The majority of the Company's revenue Is based on the rules of the following third-party payors:

Healthcare and Family Services (HFS) - the Medicaid Program - A daily rate, which may be
recalculated on a quarterly basis, is established utilizing three components - capital, support and
nursing services. The Company's dally rate was $112.13 to $113.70 for the year ended
December 31, 2010. The capital and support rates are based on the annual cost report filings in
accordance with HFS policy. The nursing component of the rate is determined by resident
clinical documentation that Is derived using mandated software and may Increase or decrease on
a quarterly basis., Amounts bilied under the Medicaid program can take 60 to 120 days or more
for collection. The amounts pald are subject to audit and are reviewed on a retroactive basis.
The Company's new Medicaid rate is $114.96 effective January 1, 2011,

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) - The Medicare Program uses a Prospective
Payment System (PPS) which Is based upon the RUGS (Resource Utilization Groups) III System
through September 30, 2010. Effective October 1, 2010, reimbursement is based on the RUGS
IV System. The RUG category, and therefore the amount of revenue, is determined by resident
clinical documentation and level of care information that is derived using mandated software.
The amounts paid are subject to post payment medical review and may be adjusted
retroactively normally for a period of one to two years. Each RUG category is assigned a
geographically adjusted federal reimbursement rate.

Estimates are made to provide for uncollectible amounts billed and for adjustments made by the

. above third-party payors, however, those estimates are subject to revision and the resulting
change, shown as revision of prior accounting estimates on the Statement of Income, may be
significant. As of December 31, 2010, the Company has established a $40,000 allowance for
uncollectible accounts.

See Accountant's Review Report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010

Note (3) Lease

The Company leases its facility from Neighbors Property, L.L.C., a related entity, and is currently
paying $19,000 per month plus real estate taxes. The lease term expires on April 1, 2011, and
automatically renews for one year terms. Future minimum lease payments for 2011 are $76,000.

Note (4) Related Party Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company incurred costs of approximately $463,000
with related entities. These costs were for various operating expenses, administrative expenses,
and consulting fees of $240,000.

Note (5) Employee Benefit Plan

A. Health and Welfare Plan

The Company participates in a Voluntary Employee Benefit Association (VEBA) to provide
health insurance coverage for eligible employees. The VEBA provides coverage for numerous
related entities through a combination of various options, which include limited self-funding
and "stop-gap” insurance. Contributions to the Plan are at the discretion of the Board of
Directors, provided that the contributions provide the VEBA with sufficient funds to meet its
obligations. Contributions to the VEBA could vary significantly and the results of such
varlations could be material,

B. Incentive Savings Plan

The Company has a 401(k) Plan covering eliglble employees, which allows employee
contributions under a deferred salary arrangement as described in Section 401(k) of the
Internal Revenue code. The Company paid $10,000 in matching contributions to the Plan
during 2010.

See Accountant's Review Report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2010

Note (6) Commitment - Line of Credit

The Company has entered Into a line of credit arrangement with Private Bank, in which the assets

of the Company are used to collateralize a line of credit in the amount of $900,000. Theline of
credit bears interest at prime (3.25% as of December 31, 2010) and matures on May 28, 2011. As
of December 31, 2010, total debt on the bank line of credit was $450,000. Interest expense on the

line of credit was $9,965 during 2010,

The line of credit requires the Company to maintain specified debt service ratios and is also partially

guaranteed by certain members of the Company.

Note (7) Collective Bargaining Agreement

The majority of the Company's employees are members of a collective bargaining that expires

December 31, 2011.

See Accountant’s Review Report.
-11-
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC

Schedule of Resident Income
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010
Average
Resident Residents Amount Per

_ Days Per Day Amount Resident Day
Routine Services
Private 4,520 124 $ 848,308 $ 187.68
Medicaid 24,191 66.3 2,726,944 $ 112.73
HMO 468 1.3 158,672 $ 339.04
Hospice 1,695 4.6 191,053 $ 112.72
Medicare 2,891 7.9 1,096,845 ¢ 379.40
Total Routine Services 33,765 92.5 5,021,822 $ 148.73
Less: Illinois Nursing Home License Fee 55,298 1.64
Net Routine Services 33,765 92.5 4,966,524 147.09
Net Ancillary Services (205,738) (6.09)
Net Resident Income 33,765 925 $ 4,760,786 $ 141.00
Census 33,765
Average Residents Per Day 92.5
Percent to Capacity 91.6%

See Accountant's Review Report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC

Schedule of Ancillary Services
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Income ~ Cost Gross Profit
Supplies and L.V. Therapy $ 1,753 $ 4 % 1,749
Pharmacy 104,047 83,516 20,531
Vent Supplies 1,672 1,895 - (223)
Physical Therapy 353,790 142,695 211,095
Speech Therapy ' 59,850 - 13,515 46,335
Laboratory Expense 5,794 7,454 (1,660)
Occupational Therapy 304,720 123,274 181,446
Equipment Rental 2,044 0 2,044
X-Ray - 2,535 3,212 (677)
Gross Ancillary Services 836,205 375,565 460,640
Less: Contractual Adjustments ~ (666,378) 0 (666,378)
Net Ancillary Services , $ 169,827 $ 375565 $ (205,738)

. See Accountant’s Review Report.

-13-
310 - ATTACHMENT-27A




Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC

Schedule of Operating Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Amount Per
Amount Rasident Day
Nursing Salaries :
Director of Nursing $ 70,430 $ 2.09
Assistant Director of Nursing 51,011 1.51
Registerad Nurses 225,494 6.68
Licensed Practical Nurses 352,939 10.45
Nurses Aides 789,438 23.38
Rehab Nurses 98,560 2.92
Care Plan and Medical Records 77,540 2.29
Total Nursing Salaries 1,665,412 49.32
Contract Nursing 69,788 2.07
Total Nursing Labor 1,735,200 51.39
Activity Salaries
Director and Assistants 107,355 3.18
Psycho-Social 49,528 1.47
Total Activity Salaries 156,883 4.65
Total Nursing and Activity 1,892,083 56.04
Other Nursing Costs
Medical and Nursing Supplies 62,454 1,85
Oxygen 1,105 0.03
Enteral Supplies 5,347 0.28
Nursing Equipment Rental 8,444 0.25
Prescription Drugs 6,876 0.20
Activity Program Expense 10,809 0.32
Consultants ‘
Activity 1,700 0.05
Physical Therapy 1,344 0.04
Cccupational Therapy 1,118 0.03
Soclal Worker 1,700 0.05
Speech Therapy 187 0.01
Medical Records 720 0.02
Nursing 21,816 0.65
Pharmacy 5,830 0.17
Medical Director 9,900 0.29
Specialized Rehab 10,908 0.32
Total Other Nursing Costs 154,258 4.57
Total Nursing Costs $ 2,046,341 $ 60.61
See Accountant’s Review Report,
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Schedule of Operating Expenses - Continued
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Amaunt Per
Amount Restdent Day
Housekeeping and Plant
Housekeeping Salaries $ 123,038 ¢ 3.64
Maintenance Salaries 50,802 1.50
Director of Environmental Service 10,908 0.32
Qutside Labor 5,037 0.15
Housekeeping Supplies 18,696 0.55
Grounds Maintenance 11,168 0.33
~ Painting and Decorating 14,220 0.42
Repairs and Maintenance 45,269 1.34
Scavenger , 19,977 0.61
Exterminator 744 0.02
Fire Service 7,022 0.21
Utilities 94,357 2.79
Total Housekeeping and Piant $ 401,238 $ 11.88
Dietary
Dietary Salaries $ 244,295 $ 7.24
Food 141,744 4.19
Dietary Supplies 15,517 0.46
Sales Tax on Food 667 0.02
Dietary Consultant 9,336 0.28
Director of Food Services 10,908 0.32
Total Dietary $ 422467 $ 1251

See Accountant's Review Report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Schedule of Operating Expenses - Continued
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Amount Per

Amount Resident Day
Employee Welfare
Payroll Taxes | $ 207,771 $ 6.15
Workers' Compensation Insurance 73,753 2.18
Classified Advertising 2,875 0.10
Employees' Benefits 26,353 0.78
Employee Insurance 102,415 3.03
Total Employee Welfare $ 413,167 $ 12.24
Laundry and Linen
Laundry Salaries $ 80,962 $ 2.40
Laundry Supplies 18,197 0.55
Linen Replacement 5,865 0.16
Total Laundry and Linen $ 105024 $ 3.11

See Accountant's Review Report,
-16-
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Schedule of General and Administrative Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Amount Per

Amount Resident Day
Administrative Salaries $ 75,145 $ 2.23
Office Salaries 100,401 2,97
Director of Admission 10,908 0.32
Director of Reimbursement 10,908 0.32
Director of Administrative Services 21,816 0.65
Director of Regulatory Services 10,908 0.32
Ancillary Administrative Charges 22,428 0.66
Accounting Fees 55,275 1.64
Advertising and Promotions 23,158 0.69
Bad Debts 39,734 1,18
Bank Fees 8,115 0.24
Bookkeeping Services 42,408 1.26
Computer Support Charges 2,424 0.07
Contributions 2,438 0.07
Dues and Subscriptions 25,028 0.74
Education and Seminars 4,895 0.14
Equipment Rental 1,810 0.05
General Insurance 67,092 1.99
Legal | 7,789 0.23
Licenses and Fees 1,723 0.05
Consuiting Fees 240,104 7.11
Office Supplies 22,057 0.68
Other Professional Fees 30,003 0.89
Telephone 17,265 0.51
Travel - Staff 7,151 0.19

Total General and Administrative Expenses $ 850,983 $ 25.20

See Accountant's Review Report.
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Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC
Additional Management Information
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Comment (A) Analysis of Nursing Staff salaries and hours paid for year ended

December 31, 2010, is as follows:

Comment (B)

Hours Hours Cost Per

Amount Worked Paid Hour

DON and ADON $ 121,441 3,791 4,201 $ 28.91
RNs 225,494 8,802 9,246 $ 24.39
LPNs 352,939 15,135 16,473 $ 21.43
Aides 887,998 65,360 71,857 $ 12.36
CPC/Medical Records 77,540 3,584 4046 $ 19,16
Contract Nursing 69,788 2,901 2901 $ 24.06
Total Salaries $ 1,735,200 99,573 108,724 $ 15.96
Total Resident Days 33,765
Average Number of Hours

Worked Per Resident Day 2.95
Illinois Nursing Home License Fee

Effective July 1, 1993, this fee is computed at $1.50 multiplied by the total licensed
beds on a dally basis and is paid quarterly to the Illinols Department of Healthcare
and Family Services.

This fee has been recorded as a reduction of resident income.

See Accountant's Review Report.
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Feb. 13. 2014 10:53AM  PREFERRED No. 6289 P. 2

NEIGHBORS REHABILITATION CENTER, LLC
RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company
(the “Company”), is the licensee of that certain skilled nursing facility commonly known as The
Neighbors, located at 811 West 2™ Street, Byron, Illinois, which is to be constructed (the
“Fuacility”); and

WHEREAS, the Company intends on performing construction at the Facility that will
necessitate additional costs and expenses.

RESOLVED, in order to ensure the Company has sufficient funds to complete the

construction, the Managers of the Company agree to not make any distributions while

" construction is ongoing (from the date on which construction commences until substantial

completion) except to pay for members’ income taxes associated with each member’s share of
the profits in the Company.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Managers of the Company have entered into this
Resolution as of the ____ day of , 2014,

BRYSSON CARE, INC.,, an Illinois
corporation

S50

Bryan G. Barrish, President

BRADLOR MANAGEMENT, INC,, an
Illinois corporatig

Q
| RN
‘s 0> r-
chael Giannini, efiden;

CENTRAL STREET MANAGEMENT,
LLC, an Hlinois limited liability company

Steven Miretzky, Manager
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Feb. 13. 2014 10:53AM  PREFERRED No. 6289 P 3

NEIGHBORS REHABILITATION CENTER, LLC
RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC, an [llinois limited liability company

{the “Company'™), is the licensee of that certain skilled nursing facility commonly known.as The

Neighbors, located at 811 West 2° Street, Byron, Illinois, which is to be constructed (the
_ “Facility”); and

WHEREAS, the Company intends on performing construction at the Facility that will
necessitate additional costs and expenses

RESOLVED, in order to ensure the Company has sufficient funds to complete the
construction, the Managers of the Company agree to not make any dishibutions while
coristruction. is ongoing (from the date on which constiyction commences until substantial
completion) except to pay for members’ income taxes associated with each meraber's share of
the profits in the Company.

IN WITNESS WHERECF, the Managers of the Company have entered into this
Resolutionasofthe  day of 2014,

BRYSSON CARE, INC,, an Illinois
corporation

Bryan G. Barrish, President

. BRADLOR MANAGEMENT, INC., an
Tilinois corporation

Michae] Giannini, President

CENTRAL STREET MANAGEMENT,
LLC, an Wlinois limited liability company

Ste@%ex
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Feb. 13 2014 10:53AM  PREFERRED 7 No. 6289 P. 4

FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSULTING AGREEMENT

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSULTING AGREEMENT (this “First
Amendment to Consulting Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the day of
2014 by and between Neighbors Rehabilitation Center, LLC, an Illinois
limited lLiability company (“Licensee”), and SJIR. Management, Inc., an Illinois corporation
(“Consultant”).

RECITALS:

A.  Licensee and Consultant entered into a Consulting Agreement dated October |,
2009 (the “Consulting Agreement™) whereby Licensee retained the services of Consultant with
respect to the operations of that certain assisted living facility commonly known as The
Neighbors, located at 811 West 2* Street, Byron, Illinois (the “Facility”).”

B. Licensee and Consultant hereby desire and have agreed to, among other things,
amend the terms and conditions of the Consulting Agreement with the terms and conditions set
forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, which are incorporated
herein by this reference, the mutual covenants contained herein, and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt, adequacy, and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the
parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amendment. Exhibit B of the Consuiﬁng Agreement is hereby replaced with a
new Exhibit B, attached hereto.

2. Terms of the Consulting Agreement. Capitalized terms used but not defined in
this Amendment shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Consulting Agteement.

3. Ratification of the Consulting Agreement. Except as otherwise amended hereby,
the terms and covenants of the Consulting Agreement remain in full force and effect and the
parties hereto, by execution of this Amendment, ratify and confirm same.

[Signature Page Follows]
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Feb. 13, 2014810:53ANe152;,PREFERRED NEIGHBORS OFF ICE No. 6289 P, 5 @3/ma

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the patties heweto have exccuted this First
Amendment 1o Consulting Agreement as of the date first above written. :

CONSULTANT: LICENSEE:
S.I.R. MANAGEMENT, INC. _ NEIGHBORS RER, ATION CENTER,
LLC

By:
Name:

(YY) (%%M
Its: sl vty WM

ATTACHMENT-27B
319




Feb. 13. 2014 10:53AM  PREFERRED No. 6289 P 6

EXHIBITB

Pursuant to Section 8 of the Consulting Agreement between Licensee and
Consultant, for the period commencing with the construction at the property and ending
eighteen (18) months thereafter, the annusl fee shall be one percent (1%) of Resident
Income. After such eighteen (18) month period, the annual fee shall increase to five
percent (5%) of Resident Income.
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rfl.!'?'ﬁPrivateBank
January 31, 2014

Neighbors Rehabilitation Center
¢/o Tom Winter

To whom it may concern:

We have worked with Bryan Barrish and Michael Giannini for over 10 years on a variety of
financings. They have been excellent customers, handling all accounts as agreed. In all of the
loans, they and their affiliates have provided the equity necessary for a successful transaction.

The Bank would consider providing construction financing for the addition to the Neighbors
Rehabilitation Center, in Byron, IL. The Bank currently provides approximately a $2.3min
mortgage to the RE entity and a $1.35min operating working capital line of credit. The request
for the construction loan is approximately $7.8min, The total $10.1min would represent no more
than 75% as complete / as stabilized value, secured by the subject facility. The contemplated
terms include both construction and post construction financing. The underwriting process and
due diligence would be done under this pretext.

It is important to note that this is not 8 commitment and that a commitment would be subject to
the successful completion of a thorough due diligence and approval process, including
finalization of terms and conditions, formal approval by the Bank’s loan committee, and
documentation acceptable to the Bank and its counsel in its sole discretion. Any final
commitment would also require approval of the Certificate of Need from the Health Facilities
and Services Review Board.

Please feel free to contact me as noted below.

Sincerely,

Michael Monticello Patrick Malone

Managing Director Officer

(312) 564-1223 (312) 564-6917
mmonticello@theprivatebank.com alone@theprivatebank.com
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@PreivateBank

January 31, 2014

Neighbors Rehabilitation Center
¢/o Tom Winter

To whom it may concern:

We have worked with Bryan Barrish and Michael Giannini for over 10 years on a variety of
financings. They have been excellent customers, handling all accounts as agreed. In all of the
loans, they and their affiliates have provided the equity necessary for a successful transaction.

The Bank would consider providing construction financing for the addition to the Neighbors
Rehabilitation Center, in Byron, IL. The Bank currently provides approximately a $2.33mln
mortgage to the RE entity and a $1.35mIn operating working capital line of credit. The Bank
engaged a 3¢ party valuation group to appraise the property. The appraisal effective September
19, 2013 indicates As-Is Market Value of $4.60mlIn. Effective in place LTV is 50.7% based on
As-Is Value. '

It is important to note that this is not a commitment and that a commitment would be subject to
the successful completion of a thorough due diligence and approval process, including
finalization of terms and conditions, formal approval by the Bank’s loan committee, and
documentation acceptable to the Bank and its counsel in its sole discretion. Any final
commitment would also require approval of the Certificate of Need from the Health Facilities
and Services Review Board.

Please feel free to contact me as noted below.

Sincerely,

Michael Monticello Patrick Malone

Managing Director Officer

(312) 564-1223 (312) 564-6917
mmonticello@theprivatebank.com pmalone@theprivatebank.com
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SECTION V - FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY REVIEW continued iii

Financial Viability

1. The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of
the project shall provide viability ratios for the latest three vears for which audited
financial statements are available and for the first full fiscal yvear at target
utilization, but no more than two vears following project completion. When the
applicant's facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the facility is a
member of a health care system that has combined or consolidated financial statements,
the system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care system includes one or
more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the

applicable hospital standards.

The worksheets for the all viability ratios from both the ownership and operating entities
as well as for the entities on a combined basis are appended as ATTACHMENT-29A. The

corresponding financial statements are previously appended as ATTACHMENT-27A.

ATTACHMENT-29
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NEIGHBORS REHABILITATION CENTER
VIABILITY RATIOS WORKSHEET
LTC FACILITY OWNER OPERATOR COMBINED

2011 2012 2013 2018
CURRENT RATIO
1. CURRENT ASSETS $ 2029369 § 1,501,610 $ @ 1360,618 § 3,416,760
2. CURRENT LIABILITIES $ 1,999,080 § 1431658 § 1385065 $ 1,668,065
3. CURRENT RATIO 1.0 1.0 1.0 2.0
(LINE 1 DIVIDED BY LINE 2)
NET MARGIN PERCENTAGE
4. NET INCOME OR (LOSS) h) 486,906 $ 489,143 § 190,603 § 1,186,497
5. NET OPERATING REVENUE $ 1,174476 $ 1,117873 § 634,366 $ 6,849,100
6. NET MARGIN PERCENTAGE 41.5% 43.8% 30.0% 17.3%
(LINE 4 DIVIDED BY LINE 5)
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE
NET INCOME(LOSS) + DEPR +
7. INTEREST + AMORTIZATION $ 679,140 $ 850,387 § 521,741 § 2,170,497
8. PRINCIPAL + INTEREST $ 222,626 $ 235412 % 200,697 § 544,000
9. DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO 3.1 3.6 2.6 4.0
(LINE 7 DIVIDED BY LINE 8)
DEBT CAPITALIZATION RATIO
10. LONG TERM DEBT § 2,523,800 § 2,346,000 § 2,346,642 $ 10,167,642
1. LONG TERM DEBT + EQUITY $ 3,552,243 § 3441288 § 3,323,532 $ 12,730,532
12. DEBT CAPITALIZATION RATIO 71.0% 68.2% 70.6% 79.9%
(LINE 10 DIVIDED BY LINE 11)
DAYS CASH
13. CASH AND INVESTMENTS $ 76,857 $ 139,794  § 45,618 $§ 1,626,760
14. OPER EXPENSE LESS DEPR/365 h) 13,185 § 13,383 § 13,379 $ 20,460
15. DAY CASH ON HAND 58 10.4 34 79.5
(LINE 13/LINE 14)
CUSHION RATIO
16. CASH AND INVESTMENTS $ 76,857 § 139,794 § 45,618 § 1,626,760
17. MAX ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE 3 253,183 % 237,928 % 216,697 § 550,000
18. CUSHION (LINE 16 / LINE 17) 0.3 0.6 0.2 3.0
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NEIGHBORS REHABILITATION CENTER
VIABILITY RATIOS WORKSHEET
LTC FACILITY OWNER - NEIGHBORS PROPERTY, LLC

CURRENT RATIO
1. CURRENT ASSETS
2. CURRENT LIABILITIES

3. CURRENT RATIO
(LINE 1 DIVIDED BY LINE 2)

NET MARGIN PERCENTAGE
4. NET INCOME OR (LOSS)
5. NET OPERATING REVENUE

6. NET MARGIN-PERCENTAGE
(LINE 4 DIVIDED BY LINE 5)

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE
NET INCOME(LOSS) + DEPR +
7. INTEREST + AMORTIZATION
8. PRINCIPAL + INTEREST

9. DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO
(LINE 7 DIVIDED BY LINE 8)

DEBT CAPITALIZATION RATIO
10. LONG TERM DEBT
11. LONG TERM DEBT + EQUITY

12. DEBT CAPITALIZATION RATIO
(LINE 10 DIVIDED BY LINE 11)

DAYS CASH
13. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

14, OPER EXPENSE LESS DEPR/365

15. DAY CASH ON HAND
(LINE 13/ LINE 14)

CUSHION RATIO
16. CASH AND INVESTMENTS
17. MAX ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE

18. CUSHION (LINE 16/ LINE 17)

L]

]

©n 9

@ o

2011

64,856
130,837

0.5

(78,514)
289,800

-27.1%

78.078
209,183

04

2,523,800

2,871,833

87.9%

3,056
585

52

3,056
209,183

0.0
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2012

78,149
131,527

0.6

(81,171)
284,600

-28.5%

225,021
209,928

1.1

2,332,720
2,729,582

85.5%

18,149
578

314

18,149
209,928

0.1

(2

2013

70,618
70,065

1.0

(75.372)
288,000

-26.2%

201,766
188,697

1.1

2,337,642
2,638,532

88.6%

10,618
598

177

10,618
188,697

0.1

&3

2018

151760
70065

22

(356,000)
608,000

-58.6%

538,000
514,000

1.0

10,167,642
9,228,532

110.2%

91,760
1,600

574

91,760
514,000

0.2
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NEIGHBORS REHABILITATION CENTER

VIABILITY RATIOS WORKSHEET

LTC FACILITY OPERATOR - NEIGHBORS REHABILITATION CENTER, LLC

CURRENT RATIO
1. CURRENT ASSETS
2. CURRENT LIABILITIES

3. CURRENT RATIO
(LINE 1 DIVIDED BY LINE 2)

NET MARGIN PERCENTAGE
4. NET INCOME OR (LOSS)
5. NET OPERATING REVENUE -

6. NET MARGIN PERCENTAGE
(LINE 4 DIVIDED BY LINE 5)

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE
NET INCOME(LOSS) + DEPR +
7. INTEREST + AMORTIZATION

8. PRINCIPAL + INTEREST

9. DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO
(LINE 7 DIVIDED BY LINE 8)

DEBT CAPITALIZATION RATIO
10, LONG TERM DEBT
11. LONG TERM DEBT + EQUITY

12. DEBT CAPITALIZATION RATIO
(LINE 10 DIVIDED BY LINE 11)

DAYS CASH
13. CASH AND INVESTMENTS
14. OPER EXPENSE LESS DEPR/365

15. DAY CASH ON HAND
{LINE 13/ LINE 14)

CUSHION RATIO
16. CASH AND INVESTMENTS
17. MAX ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE

18. CUSHION (LINE 16 / LINE 17)

o3

- h P

& o

2011

1,964,513
1,868,252

11

565,420
884,676

63.9%

601,062
13,443

44.7

680410

0

73,801
12,600

59

73,801
44,000

1.7
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2012 2013 2018
1,423,461 § 1,290,000 §$ 3,265,000
1,300,131 8 1,315,000 $ 1,598,000
1.1 1.0 2.0
570,314 § 265,975 § 1,542,497
833,273 § 346,366 § 6,241,100
68.4% 76.8% 24.7%
625,366 § 319,975 $ 1,632,497
25484 § 12,000 $ 30,000
245 26.7 54.4

13,280 § 9,000 % -
711706 685000 3502000
0 0 0
121,645 § 35,000 § 1,535,000
12,806 § 12,780 § 18,860
95 2.7 814
121,645 § 35,000 $ 1,535,000
28,000 $ 28,000 § 36,000
4.3 1.3 42.6
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SECTION V — FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY REVIEW continued iv

Economic Feasibility

This section is applicable to all projects

A.

Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by
submitting a notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to one
of the following:

2. That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in
part by borrowing because: '

A. A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance
sheet asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 1.5
times for LTC facilities; or

B. Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and

the existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used
to retire debt within a 60-day period.

Appended as ATTACHMENT-30A, is a letter from the owner addressing
reasonableness of financing arrangements.

Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant
shall document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a

notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as
applicable:

1. That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net
cost available;

2. That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost
available, but is more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges,
no required mortgage, access to additional indebtedness, term {vears), financing
costs and other factors;

3, That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities

and that the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly
than constructing a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

Appended as ATTACHMENT-30B is a letter from the owner addressing the

conditions of debt financing.
ATTACHMENT-30
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" NEIGHBORS PROPERTY, LLC
. 6840 N. Lincoin Avenus
* Lincolnwood, 1L 60712
January 8, 2014
Ms. Kathryn J. Olson
Chair
Ilinois Health Facilities and Services Revww Board

525 W, Jefferson Street, Second Floor
Springtield, Hlinois 62761

RE: Ceruﬁmte of Need Applmt:on for

Dear Ms. Olson:
Reasonableness of Financing Armmemants

The applicant ehall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by
submitting a notarized statemsnt signed by an authorized representative that ettsststo
ane of the following:

1. Thatthe totsl estimated project costs and related costs will ba funded In
total with cash and equivalants, including Investment securities,
unrestricted funds, received pladpe recelpts and funded deprecistion; or

2 ThathetotalasﬁWpMectcostsandmhtedcosﬁsmﬂbehmdedln
total ar in part by botrrowing bacause:

A A portion or all of the caeh and equivalents must be retained in
the balance sheet asset accounts in order to maintain a current
ratio of at least 1.5 times for LTC faclities; or

B. Borrowing Is (eas costy than the liquidation of existing
- Investments, and the existing investments being retained may be
convertad to cash or used to refire debt within a 60-day pericd.

Map A7

Bradlor Management, Inc., Manager
Neighbors Propesty, LLC

Notarization: Notarization:
Subsctribed and swora to before me Subscribed and swom to before me
thisGés _day Of%mma%_ﬁsﬂ this G _day O%AQH

%Lﬁé % ;Wgegeé O Hodok
Signature @Nomy
Seal Seal

“““““““““““ ) -;\&WVWWNMAN“N.
SAAAAN AMANAAAASANAS ISP 4
§  OFFICALSEAL 3 VAL o
% KMBERLYAWALSH 3 H YA WALSH
» $ } NOTARY PUBLIC . STATE OF $
} NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS MY COMMSS vy
§  MYCOMMSSIONDPRESOTSN § S N EXPIRESOINENA 3
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NEIGHBORS PROPERTY, LLC
6840 N. Lincoln Avenue
Lincolnwood, IL 60712
January 8, 2014
Ms. Kathryn J. Olson
Chair

Hlinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board

525 W. Jefferson Street, Second Floor
Springfield, Dlinois 62761

Dear Ms. Ols;:n:

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

Certificate of Need Application for
o .
conditions of debt cing

This ariterion Is applicable only fo projects that Involve debt financing. The applicant shafl
document that the condifions of debt financing ere reasonable by submitling & notarized
‘gtatement signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as

applicable:

1. That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the fowest net

cost avallable;

2, That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost
avallable, but is more advantegeous due to such terms as prepayment privileges,
no required mortgags, sccees to addiional indebtedness, term (years), financing

costs and other faclors;

3, That the project Invoives (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facillties
and that the expenses incumred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly

than constructing & new facliity or purchasing new equipmant.

Notarization:

Subscribed and swom to before me

thist®h _ day of o
4;@4'_ a

Signature vt Notery

KIMBERLY A WALSH
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
$ wcommsszonsmassomw
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Bradlor Management, Inc., Maneger
Neighbors Property, LLC

Notarization: .
Subsoribaed and swom to before me
s 0 day w%ﬁw
AR

[

KIMBERLY A WALSH
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:07H5/14
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SECTION V - FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY REVIEW continued v

D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars
per equivalent patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target
utilization but no more than two years following project completion. Direct cost means

the fully allocated costs of salaries, benefits and supplies for the service.

2018
Salaries $3,759,700
Benefits $ 598,000
Supplies $ 315,800
Patient Days @ 90% 43,033
Total/Operating Cost/PT Day $4,673,500 $108.60

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per
equivalent patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than

© two vears following project completion.

2018
Depreciation $440,000
Interest Expense $544.,000
Patient Days @ 90% 43,033
Total/Operating Cost/PT Day $984,000 $22.87
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